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' 8,555,646,000 #5Hks
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (audited)
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Board of Directors

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Wong Kong Chi *

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun *

Mr. Ng Siu Ping *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
(Deputy Chairman and a Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Wong Kam Yim (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Wong Yuk (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned as Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Senior Leadership Team

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
Mr. Wong Kam Yim
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)
Mr. Wong Yuk
Mr. Ho Sai Hou
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu
Mr. Ip Kwan
Mr. Fung Ping Kwong
Ms. Yau Ching Man
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2016)
Ms. Tse Yik Chu
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2017)
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Audit Committee

Mr. Wong Kong Chi (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ng Siu Ping (Chairman of the committee)
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Company Secretary
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35/F., One Pacific Place
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Solicitors
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Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Bank of China Limited

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Construction Bank

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas

KBC Bank N.V., Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House
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Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
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Registered Office
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Head Office and Principal Place of
Business (up to 30 April 2017)

Yip's Chemical Building

13 Yip Cheong Street, On Lok Tsuen
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Hong Kong

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business (with effect from 1 May
2017)

27/F., Fortis Tower
Nos. 77-79 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Internet homepage:
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I am pleased to report to all shareholders the Group’s performance
for the year 2016. Though Mainland China was still able to
achieve the predicted GDP growth, the 5.7% depreciation in
the Renminbi (“RMB"”) as well as unfavourable factors in the
overall market such as sluggish demand, feeble exports, capital
shortages and growing credit risks all worked against the Group
in attaining its sales targets. During the period, the Group's
turnover was around HK$8.6 billion, which was basically the
same as in the preceding year. Yet, after discounting the fact that
product average selling prices were still hovering at low levels, the
Group's overall sales volume was up by 17% from last year. As
to the profit attributable to owners of the Company, thanks to
the leadership of our new management team, who implemented
a host of proactive measures in focusing on the Group’s core
businesses and raising its earning quality, effectively minimised
book loss brought about by RMB depreciation. This, coupled
with the relatively stable raw material prices during the period,
had provided the Group with a sound operating foundation.
Consequently, the Group's overall performance returned to a more
reasonable level, resulting in HK$169 million in profit attributable
to owners of the Company, an increase of 254% from a year
before. As the Group continued to uphold the principle of stable
development and prudent financial management, customer credits
were under tight control and asset quality was continuously
optimized. Consequently, the Group’s gearing ratio was
maintained at a healthy and manageable level of 50.4%, which
was a decrease of 3.6 percentage points compared to last year.
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After carefully balancing the long-term development needs of the
Group and the long-held dividend policy of actively rewarding
shareholders, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved
to recommend a final dividend of HK10 cents per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK5 cents per share, the dividend for
the full year is HK15 cents per share. | am glad that the Group is
able to maintain its established dividend policy despite the brutal
operating environment.

Review

Just as | mentioned in reviewing the interim results of our business,
two factors had a crippling effect on the Group’s business in the
year of 2015. The first was the large fluctuations in raw material
prices and the increasing ferocity of competition in the market that
had led to low profit margin levels in recent years. The second
was the sustained downward revision of the RMB exchange
rate which, though not affecting our cash flow, was having a
direct negative impact on the reported profit of the Group. The
alleviation of these two factors in the year of 2016 had brought
positive influence to the Group’s operating environment during
the period. Yet externally, the macro operating environment was
still littered with challenges. These included (1) the sustained
depreciation of the RMB and the associated slowdown in inbound
investment; (2) lower demand from a lethargic global economy
which had been curbing exports; (3) incessant volatility in the real
estate and financial markets which led to shortages in funds and
thus unsatisfactory growth in domestic demand; (4) increasingly
strict state regulations on the safety and environmental aspects
of the chemical industry which inevitably led to substantial
increases in operating costs. Confronted with these dire operating
circumstances, the Group, under the leadership of a new
management team, was able to carry out all foundation fortifying
works in accordance with predetermined operating strategies and
targets. In the period under report, though individual business
segments might have encountered temporary difficulties during
re-organisation and fell short of expectation in their performance,
others were able to achieve better-than-expected results, including
significant improvements, steady and sound growth and more
distinctive competitive advantages. Consequently, the Group's
business as a whole had turned the table from last year in terms
of both sales and operating profits. Not only had we achieved all
our targets, we had also laid a robust cornerstone for the Group’s
medium- to long-term objectives of focusing on core businesses,
building up the businesses and generating value for shareholders
sustainably.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Outlook

The bleak and challenging 2016 has already passed. Looking
ahead to 2017, a number of uncertainties lie ahead. For instance,
the new US administration leads to the potential advance of
protectionism and the increasing risk of Sino-American conflicts.
Meanwhile, the fait accompli of Brexit will unavoidably create
uncertainties to the economic prospects of the EU. Though
there is no cause for optimism in the macro global operating
environment in the coming year, we are still confident that
China’s economy will continue to grow at a steady pace. Hence
we are still cautiously optimistic that the Group’s various business
segments will be benefited as a result. This view is based on
several observations. First, as RMB may continue to depreciate
slightly, external investment will decrease while there will be more
variables to export business. Hence expanding domestic demand
and stepping up the pace of implementing Belt and Road outward
expansion projects will become priorities for the government of
Mainland China. Second, while the Group’s business strategies
will track national policies, we will adhere to focusing on our
profession and strengthen our efforts in R&D, in particular in the
area of innovative environmentally friendly products. At the same
time, we will abide by all the standards set by the government
on the chemical industry and unceasingly improve and upgrade
ourselves so as to consolidate our competitiveness and maximise
the chance of getting stronger. Third, the Group has been people-
oriented and is very mindful of sound corporate governance
and giving back to society actively, laying a sound cornerstone
for a healthy and steady development. Furthermore, the new
management team along with a new leadership structure we put
in place last year is viewing future challenges as the new normal.
They are united as one while performing their individual duties and
letting their creative juices flow. As a result, the various practical
reform measures they proposed have been implemented step by
step and are achieving initial successes. In summary, the Group
will as always strive to create better returns to its shareholders. |
would like to take this opportunity to convey my heartfelt thanks
to all our employees for their hard work and dedication, to our
various stakeholders for their support and guidance, and to the
Group’s Senior Leadership Team and every director for their
determination, courage, execution prowess and correct leadership.

IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN
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Business Review

The total product sales tonnage of the Group again hit a new high
of close to 1.2 million metric tons in the year ended 31 December
2016. The prices of various raw materials hovered at low levels
for the first three quarters and only picked up notably in the
fourth one. Average selling prices of products were lower than in
the previous year, coupled with the impact of RMB depreciation,
leading to a rise in sales volume while sales turnover remained
flat.

In the year, the Group's total sales turnover at around HK$8.6
billion was mildly down 0.3% year-on-year; net profit was up by
254% year-on-year to HK$169 million; gearing ratio once again
fell markedly by 3.6 percentage points year-on-year to 50.4%.

This year recorded a better profit and the major factors affecting
the profitability included:

1. While operating profit of solvents more than doubled and
that of the inks business grew by almost 46%, the lubricants
business succeeded in turning profitable. It was only in the
coatings business that operating profit dropped by 56%
in the year. The reason was that the coatings business re-
organised product lines to increase sales proportion of
emulsion paint, which is more eco-friendly yet with lower
margin; in addition to a one-off substantial cost due to
business consolidation incurred, leading to a decline in
profits.
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2. In response to the sustained depreciation of RMB, the
management adopted proactive and effective measures
that narrowed down exchange loss this year by 66% to
HK$17 million. Owing to the fact that surplus funds in the
Mainland China were remitted out for profit distribution, a
corresponding increase of HK$30 million in dividend tax was
incurred. This measure alleviates largely the impact to be
brought by the future fluctuation of RMB exchange rate.

3. As measures in actively optimizing operations, improving
customer credits and rectifying product mix were effective,
bad debts and obsolete stocks in the year were therefore
reduced by 50% over the same period last year.

4.  The fair value of Yip’s Chemical Building increased by HK$5.1
million from the year 2015, which was HK$19.4 million last
year, representing a 74% less in the amount increased year-
on-year.

The annual review and outlook of individual business segments
were given as follows:

Solvents

Total product sales tonnage grew satisfactorily and was up 20%
year-on-year to almost 950,000 metric tons. The main reason for
this was that the new production line of the Taixing plant has
been running smoothly since it commenced operation, providing
sufficient capacity to meet the market demands of the Eastern
China and Southern China, thus further expanding the Group’s
shares in these two markets. Export volume grew strongly by two-
folds to nearly 100,000 metric tons. Sales turnover, however, was
up only 4% year-on-year to HK$5.2 billion mainly because it was
hampered by the continuing downward revision in average selling
prices and the depreciation of RMB. Thanks to economies of scale
effects, operating profit saw further growth. Rise in raw material
prices in the fourth quarter was also favourable to gross profit
increase. Subsequently this business segment boasted an operating
profit of HK$340 million in the year, up by 150.7% from the same
period last year.

In assessing the situation, the management believes that the keys
to sustainable growth lie in having a strong competitiveness over
industry counterparts and also in making constant progress on the
Group. For this, the management has already started working in
the following directions:
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1. Optimize production capacity and develop market with the
aim to surpass the milestone of one million metric tons.

2. Further improve technology to reduce energy consumption
and wastage.

3.  Review operation of supply chain to continuously elevate
efficiency and reduce costs.

4.  Examine the corporate structure with the view of enhancing
operational efficiency.

The management has set the objective of taking the solvents
business to new heights by expanding product lines and further
enriching the Group's product mix while maintaining sustained
growth in business performance.

Coatings

2016 has proven to be a difficult year for the coatings group. The
business continued to be challenged by an ever changing and
stiffer competitive environment, more stringent measures to the
operations of coatings sector and not least soaring raw material
costs by end of the year.

Management of the coatings group confidently confronted
the structural challenges with undivided attention in executing
predetermined business strategies. These include stepping up the
sales growth of environmentally friendly water-based emulsion
paints, rebuilding our channel muscle to strengthen business
development, giving up a few businesses with high credit
risks to upgrade overall sales quality, further consolidating our
products portfolio including exiting from the electronic products
paint segment which is with low profit margin and unpromising
prospect, and taking cost reduction measures such as streamlining
corporate structure.

As a result, the overall performance of the business has tracked
the trend as outlined in 2016 interim report — where compared
to full year 2015, the business has recorded a growth of 12%
in overall product sales tonnage, yet the turnover was around
HK$1.7 billion, lower than the turnover of around HK$1.9 billion
last year, and the operating profit was approximately HK$27
million, down by 56.2% from the same period last year.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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To deal with the increasingly acute operating environment and
implement necessary transformation and reforms, the coatings
group has installed a “co-president” structure in early 2017.
One president will focus on the business development of
architectural coatings and furniture coatings, on building up
sales and distribution channels and on the R&D of higher tier
environmentally-friendly products, such as second-generation
water-based wood paints and multi-functional architectural
emulsion paints. The other president will concentrate on
optimizing the operation of supply chain and on bringing in
consultants and experts in a bid to structurally reduce costs
through the sustainable improvement on organisational capability.
Concertedly, they will lead the execution of various initiatives and
work towards the long-term development of the coatings business.

We firmly believe that, the coatings group, which strives for
segment focus, operating cost reduction and new product
development, will continuously improve its performance and
provide sustainably improving returns to the Group and its
shareholders.

Inks

Throughout the year, the inks business has successfully executed
its strategies of segment focus, operation excellence and margin
improvement, leading to a promising performance. Its product
sales tonnage increased to close to 70,000 metric tons, both
gross margin and cost control were improved, operating profit
amounting to HK$100 million, an increase of 45.8% compared to
last year.

New product development continued to be the major drive of the
business. Commercialization of eco-friendly inks went on quite
well in the second half of the year whereby a few customers have
started ordering. Though sales of the products depends on the
acceptance of customers, the group believes that eco-friendly
products would be gaining more grounds over the next couple of
years as government is stressing more stringent regulations in the
sector.

In the year to come, the inks business would leverage its
leadership position to strengthen the profitability of the food
packaging segment, further drive costs down structurally and build
the product pipeline by looking into other environmentally friendly
products including UV inks and plant oil offset inks (no mineral
oils).
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Lubricants

It has been encouraging to note that our lubricants business has
managed to turn back to black in the year, recording an operating
profit of HK$1.68 million compared to a loss of HK$26 million in
previous year.

With the discipline in driving segment focus and structurally
squeezing costs out throughout the value chain, from sales
process to raw materials to production and logistics, overall sales
product tonnage recorded a mild drop of 1%, sales turnover was
down by 6% to HK$328 million and gross margin saw a marked
improvement.

While the business has been back to a better shape, the
management has ventured into the higher tier automobile engine
oil with early success. The team will build on the momentum
to reposition the product offering, strengthen the distributor
network, facelift the brand of Hercules lubricants with an objective
to sustain a profitable business in the selected target segments
year on year.

Hong Kong Headquarters

The Group has purchased an office at HK$130 million in Wanchai
by late 2016 and will move its headquarters from Fanling in the
second quarter of 2017 after the renovation is completed. The
new office will be in refreshing style and equipped with new IT
facilities for better communication. Four and a half floors of office
and godown of the existing Fanling building have been rented out
to a third party since December 2016 and the entire building will
be occupied by the tenant after the Group moves out in 2017, to
meet the objective of better utilization of assets.

Outlook

In the new year to come, we will continue to uphold our policy
of sound operation and continuous improvement; we will further
enhance our staff capability, not least in the area of product
R&D; we will carry out in-depth studies of possible mergers
and acquisitions that may bring in new businesses, markets and
customers; we will further emphasize our “TIDE” core values of
Teamwork, Integrity, Determination and Excellence in achieving
the healthy growth of the Group’s businesses and in further
improving business performance.

YIP TSZ HIN WONG YUK
CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Group s Headquarters and Plants
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The Group’s R&D Centre in Zhangjiang,
Shanghai
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headquarters in Wan Chai,
ith effect from 1 May 2017)
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The solvents plant in Taixing, The solvents plant in Jiangmen,
Jiangsu Guangdong
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The coatings plant in Jinshan, The coatings plant in Chengdu, The coatings plant in Huizhou,
Shanghai Sichuan Guangdong
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The inks plant in Zhongshan, The inks plant in Tongxiang, The inks plant in Cangzhou,
Guangdong Zhejiang Hebei
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Distribution network covers all provinces in China
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Solvents form the largest part of the Group’s core businesses
and the Group is the world’s largest acetate solvents producer. A
major turn of event took place in 1993 when Handsome Chemical
Development Limited, a Group subsidiary, set sight on the
opportunities made available from the reform and liberalization
in China and formed a joint venture with Jiangmen Qisheng
Chemical Development Company Limited. By capitalizing on the
advantages of a sino-foreign joint venture and by complementing
each other, the two partners were able to achieve over 20 years
of dazzling performance.

The Group produces mainly eco-friendly industrial organic solvents.
These include ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, mixed butyl
acetate, ethanol and butyl acrylate which are extensively used
in industries in coatings, tannery, medicine and adhesives. The
solvents division has established production bases in Southern and
Eastern China. The production line of acetate solvents in Taixing,
Jiangsu has been running smoothly since its commencement of
operation in 2015. The business maintains a huge sales force
and operates a sales network that covers the whole of China and
reaches overseas. By operating mainly on a direct-sales basis, it
manages not only in ensuring thorough and satisfactory services,
but also in affording its sales team a better understanding of
customer needs — a vital edge of the business.

Customers have always been the Group’s main concern and the
pre- and post-sales customer-oriented services of the solvents
business have, over the years, won the trust and support of
customers. We cooperate with world-class chemical companies in
sourcing for raw materials of superior and stable quality as a way
to guarantee product quality.

Presented with China’s huge market demand, Yip's Chemical
grasps full advantage of the opportunity not only by expanding
its acetate solvents capacity to ensure its competitive edge in the
industry, but also by developing new related products that offer
synergic effects in order to expand product portfolio.
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The Bauhinia Coatings Group (“the coatings group”) officially
commenced operation on 1 January 2015 and its business scope
covers architectural coatings, industrial coatings and resins.

Architectural Coatings

The architectural coatings business includes household paints
(water-based emulsion paints and wood paints) and construction
paints (inner and outer wall paints). The coatings group strives
to be the leader in China’s household paints market. With
sales outlets covering China’s large and medium-sized cities as
well as the majority of townships, the coatings group has won
favourable comments and goodwill from innumerable users.
In the construction paints market, the professional products
and exceptional services of the coatings group have gained the
confidence of many well-known property developers. With long
term strategic partnership forged with many of these developers,
projects using the coatings group’s construction paints can now
be found across the country.

With the growing environmental awareness and health
consciousness of consumers, the coatings group has been staying
innovative in order to provide consumers with a safe, healthy
and refreshing home environment. To this end, it has rolled out
a number of new eco-friendly products and developed a range of
advanced environmental technologies. In order that it can meet
the needs of rapid business development in future, the coatings
group has set up a production base in Jinshan Fine Chemical
Industrial Park in Shanghai. This production base has an annual
capacity to produce around 200,000 metric tons of coatings,
complementary solvents and associated products.
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Industrial Coatings

Industrial coatings consist of a range of products, including
coatings for furniture as well as coatings for use in plastic and
mechanical products. The industrial paints of the coatings group
have been maintaining rapid growth over the years. Its superb
product quality and professional services have succeeded in
eliciting a high degree of trust from new and old customers alike.

Industrial coatings laboratory is an accredited laboratory
recognised by China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment (“CNAS”). As such, it can offer testing services upon
customer requests. It can also issue various types of testing reports
on customer products that have the same validity as those issued
by China Commodity Inspection Bureau. This serves not only to
provide solid guarantee on product quality, but also substantially
expand the room for cooperation between the coatings group and
the end-users or using entities of a host of international brands.

Resins

The coatings group also produces resins, so that vertical
integration with the production of finished coating products can
be made. This will provide more competitive raw materials and
will further raise product quality. It is specialized in six groups of
products, including alkyd resins, acrylic resins, PU hardeners, UV
resins, amino resins and water-based resins, with the flexibility to
develop coating resins in accordance to customers’ requirements.
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Yip's Chemical’s inks business was started in 1998. By now it is
China’s largest supplier of inks under the Bauhinia Variegata brand
and one of the top 20 ink enterprises globally. Plastic printing inks
and paper printing inks for use in food, drinks and gift packaging
and paper printing are the main Bauhinia Variegata products. With
manufacturing bases in strategic locations throughout Southern,
Eastern and Northern China, these products are sold over a
countrywide sales network. In 2013, the company launched post-
printing materials to support the Group’s business integration.

In order to meet safety production requirements, Bauhinia
Variegata takes the lead in establishing separate aromatic-free
production plant and introducing fully piped manufacturing mode.
The Bauhinia Variegata production system is not only equipped
with the most advanced automatic controls, but is also one of the
few in China linked to an Enterprise Resources Planning system.
In addition, in its effort to protect employee health and the
environment, Bauhinia Variegata has also become one of the first
companies in the China’s inks industry in adopting a hazardous
substance process management system.

Bauhinia Variegata is a staunch advocate of environmental
protection and is leading the industry in both environmentally
friendly products and green technologies. Not only named as
"Outstanding Eco-friendly Ink Manufacturer”, it successfully
develops water-based inks with low volatile organic compounds
(VOC) and its FD series of eco-friendly soy offset printing inks has
also won a “Green Technology Award” on the basis of its highly
effective environmental properties and clean operation practices.
In addition, equipped with a laboratory that has been certified by
CNAS, Bauhinia Variegata provides a professional product testing
service.
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The Group has been producing lubricants since 1992 and is now
supplying a complete range of automotive, industrial and specialty
lubricants under the Hercules and Pacoil brand names.

The Hercules lubricants consist of range of automotive and
industrial lubrication products including engine oils, antifreezes,
system coolants, brake fluids, greases, gear oils, automatic
transmission fluids, hydraulic oils, turbine oils, heat conducting oils,
slideway oils, compressor oils and circulating oils. The lubricating
oil Hercules developed specifically for use in methanol fuel engines
has successfully been recognised as a key achievement by the
National High-tech R&D Programme (the “863 Programme”).
The high performance Pacoil specialty lubricants are mainly used
in umpteen industries in metal processing, automobiles, home

appliances, electronics, steel, toys, power generation, cement,
textiles, foundry, plastics, chemicals, paper making, glass as well
as wires and cables. With a countrywide sales network, Pacoil is
one of the competitive specialty lubricant brands in China.
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Yip's Chemical always strives to raise the quality of its various
products and is relentless in developing new ones, so much so that
product research and development (R&D) is regarded as one of
the mainstays of the Group’s future expansion. As early as 2011,
it had set up an R&D Centre in Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-tech Park (the
“Centre”). The Centre now boasts an elite team of professionals
and an array of advanced trial production equipment and precise
testing instruments. Through stringent scientific management, the
Centre ensures the reliability and quality of new products.

The Group’s R&D personnel are active in developing innovative
products to further enhance the long-term competitiveness of
the Group. As of year-end of 2016, the Centre and the technical
departments of all subsidiaries have been granted 120 patents by
China’s State Intellectual Property Office. In addition, the Centre
was recognised as “Shanghai Patent Pilot Enterprise” (/8T E
FITIER 2 %) by Shanghai Intellectual Property Administration
(EBMABERER) in 2016. The Centre has been recognised as
a “Little Giant Science and Technology Incubation Enterprise” (£}
H/NE A BEM%), “National High-tech Enterprise” (BIX A& =H
Rt 2%), “Pudong New Area Enterprise R&D Institution” (HE
T EMEEIE) and “Shanghai Patent Pilot Enterprise” (/&
MEF TERA B E) since its establishment, all highlighting the
technological strength and competitive advantage of the Centre.

As market homogenisation increases, the development of new
products that meet market needs would be vital to the survival
and future expansion of an enterprise. The Group is fully confident
that, in the next three to five years, the Centre will become a
renowned R&D base in chemical technology in mainland, through
which better synergies will be created for existing businesses.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

25



—Z—X¥F[EF 2016 ANNUAL REVIEW

AFHBMER

Five Year Financial Summary

26

BETZR=+-HLFE

For the year ended 31 December

“E-RE “T-A1F —T-F “T-=F —T--F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
TEx THL TAR TEL TAR
%45 Results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEE Tumnover 8,555,646 8,584,225 10,255,839 9,876,033 8,894,409
SHES (M) Sales volume ('000 metric tons) 1,191 1,015 974 907 807
BRHRIEF Profit before taxation 391,912 162,034 371,248 391,457 421,344
T8 Taxation (148,744) (74,643) (100,280) (79,736) (81,455)
KEEHF Profit for the year 243,168 87,391 270,968 311,721 339,889
FE1G3% 7 Attributable to
RAFIRE Owners of the Company 169,343 47 847 223,182 250,622 276,302
JEFERR#E RS Non-controlling interests 73,825 39,544 47,786 61,099 63,587
243,168 87,391 270,968 311,721 339,889
BREH Per share data
FREF (L) Earnings per share (HK cents)
—EK Basic 30.0 85 39.7 44.6 49.4
—#3% Diluted 30.0 85 39.6 444 493
BRRAR B (L) * Dividend per share (HK cents)* 15.0 145 25.0 25.0 25.0
* ZE-RFZERRKREBEFIKRE4SHN -
* Dividend per share in 2015 included the special dividend HK4.5 cents per share.
B2 Financial ratios
FHEEELHFR Return on average total assets 2.3% 0.6% 2.7% 3.3% 4.1%
THRRE S EHRE Return on average shareholders’ funds 6.6% 1.7% 7.5% 8.8% 10.6%
R+=A=+-H
As at 31 December
ZE-NE —Z-hfF —T-QmE —T-ZF i3
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
TEx AT FAL AT AT
BEREM Assets and Liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEMIE Total assets 7,137,356 7,439,067 8,282,435 8,128,500 7,143,054
& {E4(E Total liabilities (4,132,368)  (4,394,868) (4,881,739) (4,720,088) (4,039,783)
3,004,988 3,044,199 3,400,696 3,408,412 3,103,271
KARRREGER
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,529,249 2,594,459 2,951,008 2,973,042 2,733,196
JHRIRHER Non-controlling interests 475,739 449,740 449,688 435,370 370,075
3,004,988 3,044,199 3,400,696 3,408,412 3,103,271
FROBEHREESE
Net bank borrowings to shareholders' funds 50% 54% 58% 47% 52%
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2% Turnover

BEt-A=+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

ZE-AF T-RF —TWF —T—=F —T—_F

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

FBT FHET T FHET FH&T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000

A A Solvents 5,225,315 5,006,792 6,204,174 5,697,296 4,879,302
%%} Coatings 1,696,080 1,890,989 2,140,393 2,182,575 2,297,016
SR Inks 1,431,869 1,492,634 1,666,183 1,754,440 1,445,498
SEJEH Lubricants 327,957 348,388 431,837 463,831 433,150
5 $H Elimination (125,575) (154,578)  (186,748)  (222,109)  (160,557)
4858 Total 8,555,646 8,584,225 10,255,839 9,876,033 8,894,409

%%ﬁ(ﬁ%%&i)
Turnover kswition)
HE+-A=1t—BItEE

For the Year ended 31 December
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o ¥4 Segment Results

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-RF ZT-RF ZT0F ZT—=F ZT—=F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
FET FHETT FHET FHET FH&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A H| Solvents 339,892 135,596 238,405 271,537 316,290
#k} Coatings 26,666 60,922 47,095 55,580 45,391
AR Inks 100,380 68,857 55,826 75,845 106,235
SESEH Lubricants 1,677 (25,519) (2,934) 9,996 (6,107)
T S Elimination (99) 353 180 6,780 (5,552)
4858 Total 468,516 240,209 338,572 419,738 456,257
ﬁﬁ%nﬁ(ﬁ%i&i)
Segment Results ismition
BHE+-_A=1t—BItEE
For the Year ended 31 December
500
s
Solvents
400 mES
Coatings
T ket
300 Inks
] [ mE
- Lubricants
200
100
-100
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

29



—Z—R¥[EE 2016 ANNUAL REVIEW

RBETRYBEIR

Liquidity and Financial Resources

30

RZE—XRE+-—A=+—H SEHE
fﬂﬁﬂu%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ$“ﬂ%%%ﬁ
ERATEREE)BS0.4% (ZT—HF+
—A —+ H :54.0%) - TFHK - £E
MEELRERENE BT —AF R
—E—FAE DRI TFE3 677 E (7
o BEERALTFEEEIEEMERNE
RERNMEREBLETN - M ERIRSE
EEESRBE  SERBRPIENK
RoMPEBEERERE  SEREAR
MERTRBEE  FERBEBKNTEE
BEIMER,KFBRESHBEEANE
HECERESE  WME-ZF—XFAZ
+AM=ZFE—AF+_A=+—HBE
IRITBR AR RGF R E — B T EMFRTT
BERKRD - REEFIMFERLEE
PHEEFHRSAA  RERFENEDR

RZE—RF+-A=+—0 " £E/NR
1748 R 3% /52,246,319,0005 T ( — & —
AF+=-HA=+—H :2,775,163,000/%
J0)  HMIBREERIT R  BITEBUR
I8 4£971,103,0008 (=2 —HF+ =
A =+4+—H8 :1,374,268,0005% 7T ) 1% -
EIR TR E A1,275,216,0008 T( = &
—hF+=-A=+—H :1,400,895,000
EIT) o IRITHRFAF - BR— imﬁ
i 255 BB 3 5789,848,000/8 T( =
—aAF+=-A=+—8: 1,171,344,000
B EHUAEEEBE(ZE—H
F+ = A=+ — H:1,124,764,000
7 JT BA B ¥ 5 {8 -+ 2,359,000/ T MA
A R ¥ & & 25,535,000 T WA B
JT F {8 18,686,000/ JT LA % T F
B) o boh —FRIANRAER A
1,456,471,0008 ( Z T — R F + =
B =+ — H :1,603,819,000/ 7T )
EPHUBEECE(ZE—RF+=A=
+—R: 2HUEBEE) - MHRT
GH - ROTEBRURBRSERUTERE
FE - B8 #5173,722,0005 7T WA 78 & F
{& - 582,928,000/ 7T LA A R & F & -
214,447,0007% 7T LA 2 7T 7E 1 ~ 6,000/
TUHMEMSEEE(ZE—AF+=
H=-+—H : 61,563,000/ Jt LA & ¥ F
B + 1,164,897,000/8 L A A R EE -
147,767,000 7T LA 7T 7 B M4 1,000
TTAEAMEREE)

ERCIEEMBERIA - —TRFEFR

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's gearing ratio (measured
by net bank borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the Company) was 50.4% (31 December 2015: 54.0%).
The gearing ratio has been continuously improved in recent years
with decline of 3.6 and 7.7 percentage points when compared
with the year 2015 and the year 2014, respectively. After the
completion of the Group’s several major capital investments on
increasing production capacity in the past few years, coupled with
efforts to improve its liquidity in operating capital, the Group
started to reap the benefits of its investments. As stated in our
interim report, the Group continued to remit back surplus RMB
fund in the mainland to Hong Kong via foreign debts repayments
and/or profit repatriation by its mainland subsidiaries in view of
the declining RMB exchange rate. Compared to both 30 June
2016 and 31 December 2015, total bank borrowings and bank
deposits further decreased while net bank borrowings were
reduced. The Group also manages to maintain a healthy cash
flow and generates net cash inflow from its operating activities in
recent years.

As at 31 December 2016, the gross bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$2,246,319,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$2,775,163,000). After deduction of short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash amounting to HK$971,103,000
(31 December 2015: HK$1,374,268,000), the net bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,275,216,000 (31 December
2015: HK$1,400,895,000). Out of the gross bank borrowings,
HK$789,848,000 (31 December 2015: HK$1,171,344,000) were
short-term loans and repayable within one year. Such loans
were all denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (31 December 2015:
HK$1,124,764,000 in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$2,359,000 in RMB,
HK$25,535,000 in Australian Dollar and HK$18,686,000 in US
Dollar). Long-term loans repayable after one year amounted to
HK$1,456,471,000 (31 December 2015: HK$1,603,819,000),
and they were all denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. The short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash were denominated
in the following currencies, namely HK$173,722,000 in Hong
Kong Dollar, HK$582,928,000 in RMB, HK$214,447,000 in US
Dollar and HK$6,000 in other currencies (31 December 2015:
HK$61,563,000 in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$1,164,897,000 in RMB,
HK$147,767,000 in US Dollar and HK$41,000 in other currency).
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In order to refinance previous mid-to-long-term loans which are
now due for repayments, the Group has obtained 4 to 5-year
bilateral long-term loans of HK$600,000,000 in 2016. As at
31 December 2016, mid to long-term loans (including portions
repayable within one year) accounted for 95% of the total
bank loans as most short-term loans have been repaid by the
surplus RMB funds returned from the mainland. Since some of
the borrowings of the Group carry interest at floating rates,
the funding costs are subject to interest rate fluctuation. In
anticipation of the rate fluctuation, the Group has, from time to
time, made arrangements with the banks such as interest rate
swaps to fix the interest rate for most of its bilateral long-term
and mid-term loans to hedge against the risk of such fluctuations.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s loans under fixed rate
arrangement accounted for 66% and 70% of its total and non-
current bank borrowings, respectively. This arrangement should
help to alleviate the expected higher interest costs resulting from
Hong Kong interest rate hikes following the increase of US federal
interest rate since early 2016.
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As at 31 December 2016, a total of 16 banks in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") granted banking facilities
totaling HK$5,075,325,000 to the Group, providing sufficient
funds to meet the present working capital and expansion
requirements. Of these banking facilities, 77%, 21% and 2%
were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, RMB and US Dollars
respectively. The Group has been arranging Hong Kong Dollar
bank loans in Hong Kong for its China operations to leverage the
lower borrowing rate of the Hong Kong Dollar in Hong Kong and
higher deposit interest rate of the RMB in Mainland China so as
to enhance return of funds. Under this arrangement, the Group
has already enjoyed substantial interest borrowing cost savings
in the past years. However, as the Group’s assets are mainly
located in the mainland and most of its income is generated in
RMB, the Group’s exposure to RMB exchange rate risk will be
worsen when the RMB depreciates against the Hong Kong Dollar.
The Group has thus adjusted its treasury strategies to cope with
the significant depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong Dollar
since mid 2015. As stated above, the Group has been remitting
back surplus RMB fund in Mainland China to Hong Kong for
repayment of loans in Hong Kong. The Group also entered into
US Dollar forward contracts to effectively hedge its exposure in
purchase contracts denominated in US Dollar. RMB depreciated
by 5.5% in 2015 and the Group recorded an exchange loss of
HK$62,294,000 from its financial assets and liabilities. Benefiting
from the adjustment in treasury strategies, RMB depreciated by
5.7% in 2016 while the related exchange loss was substantially
reduced to HK$10,297,000. The impact of policies put forward by
the new US President on the world economy and future trend of
interest and exchange rates have yet to be observed. The Group
remains cautious and closely monitors its exposure to potential
further RMB depreciation and interest rate increments. With
the reduction of surplus RMB funds in Mainland China, during
2016 the Group has obtained a RMB revolving loan equivalent to
HK$703,726,000 for supporting its operational needs. The Group
is also working closely with its major banks to set up cross-border
RMB cash pooling to facilitate fund management between Hong
Kong and the mainland. The Group will continue to strike an
optimal balance between lowering borrowing costs and minimizing
currency exposure by structuring an optimal combination of Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, RMB or other foreign currency bank loans
in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Creating Long-term Values—
Yip’s Chemical’s Goal in Sustainable
Development

The vision of “A Century of Revered Leadership” set in the
Group’s 45th anniversary is a testimony to its determination
in creating long-term values. It underscores the importance of
sustainable development to the Group’s businesses.

Sustainable development is the key for the Group to achieve “A
Century of Revered Leadership” from everyday decisions and
operations. With the desire to be a respectable company, the
Group has developed a corporate vision with seven driving forces
which interact to generate synergy. This corporate vision is built
on the basis of how the Group establishes long-term relationships
with its stakeholders; it stands for the Group’s respect and
commitment to its employees, customers and shareholders as well
as to the community and environment of the localities where the
Group operates.

To embed the consideration of sustainability in daily decision-
making and execution, the Group goes beyond regulations
and systems to the cultivation of its employees. The Group has
specifically allocated resources to promote corporate culture
and train employees, particularly in raising ethics awareness and
improving work attitude. Internal guidelines have also been put
in place so that, during annual appraisals and when drawing
up annual work plans, the theory and rules of sustainable
development are converted into performance indicators. The
Group also makes use of its influence on suppliers and customers
in driving sustainability throughout its value chain.

KB
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Social media, webpages, press releases,
media conferences, customer service departments,
annual shareholder meetings, teleconferences, on-site visits

Since the Group's four business segments have their own
industry peculiarities and related considerations, sustainability-
related matters will, depending on the situation, either be
centrally managed or left to subsidiaries for formulating
corresponding measures. Set up in 2012, the Health, Safety
and Environment Committee (the “HSE Committee”) is
currently formed by three independent non-executive
directors while its day-to-day affairs are run by the Health,
Safety and Environment Department (the”HSE Department”),
which is formed by group and subsidiary employees
responsible for health, safety and environment (“HSE")
matters. In the period under review, the HSE Committee has
convened four meetings to discuss and evaluate HSE status in the
Group and its subsidiaries. It has also carried out safety inspections
in three of the Group’s mainland plants to scrutinise the safety
operations of the Group. The work of the Group’s corporate
volunteer team is planned and executed by the Corporate
Communications Department and reported to Chief Financial
Officer. Other areas such as labour standards, supply chain and
product responsibilities are managed by the subsidiaries.

Communicating with Stakeholders

We believe it is important that there are continuity and practicality
in stakeholder communication. In addition to conventional
communication channels, the Group also set up a Facebook page
and a WeChat subscription page to carry out lively communication
with stakeholders on soft issues. It has also been constantly
expanding the functions of these new communication options by,
for example, holding experimental voting to collect the opinions of
stakeholders as a way to promote two-way communication.

The following is a summary of the Group’s various communication
channels:

(Ve
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Non-profit
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The Group will move its headquarters to Wan Chai in 2017. To better
understand the views of employees on the move, ever since location
selection was started, management has been engaging them by holding
meetings, collecting employee opinions and carrying out voting. Since half
a year before the proposed date of moving, the Group has been giving
progress briefing and collecting opinions regularly with members of the
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management answering employees’ queries.
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The Group holds the belief that sustainable development is a step-
by-step process. It has therefore drawn up a list of short- to mid-
term opportunities and challenges upon reviewing the opinions
of its stakeholders. The Group will report on the progress of
achieving the below targets in the next issue of Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”).
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Long-term Values in Employees

“Thirst for Talents” and “Respect for and Cooperation with All
Stakeholders” are two of the seven driving forces in the Group's
corporate vision, denoting that people is an important criteria
for the Group to attain sustainable development. The Group sees
rules and regulations as fundamental, and aspires to place more
emphasis on the quality of employees. In promoting corporate
culture, besides instilling business related objectives, the Group
also works to enhance the quality and ethical standards of
employees.
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An “Ethical and Merit-based” corporate culture was drawn up in
2012, the Group has since organised corporate-wide engagement
activities surrounding this concept as a theme. The 18 codes
of conducts list how an employee should demonstrate ethical
behaviours towards clients, stakeholders, colleagues, subordinates
and superiors while requiring that they should be honest, fair and
serious in carrying out their work. The Group also promotes “TIDE"
(Teamwork, Integrity, Determination and Excellence) as corporate
core values. The Board of Directors has adopted the “Group Codes
of Ethics and Conducts” in 2014. The purpose of these codes is
to lay down the Group’s core values and standards of behaviour
to serve as guidelines for the Group’s systems, decisions and
conducts. The Group believes that setting high ethical standard
not only boosts work quality, also is conducive to creating a
favourable work environment and retaining talents.

The Group pays particular attention to handling conflicts of
interest. Other than requiring every new recruit and employee
during annual appraisal to fill out a declaration of interest form,
the human resources departments of the Group and its subsidiaries
also explain the issue of conflicts of interest during orientation
training and describe some possible related scenarios in work and
ways of handling them. The Group’s Employee Handbook explicitly
prohibits employees from participating in activities where there is
a conflict of interest. It also prescribes an employee’s behaviours in
the acceptance of gifts and benefits, in business entertainments,
in the utilisation of company resources and even in how their
relatives should remain above suspicion. In the year, no employee
of the Group was prosecuted for corruption. The Group will
review the effectiveness of handling conflicts of interest in 2017
and report review progress in its next ESG report.

The Group explains its whistle-blowing mechanism to its employees
through orientation training and the Employee Handbook. In
making an appeal, an employee should first present the case to
the direct superior or human resources department concerned.
If there is any reasonable cause, the employee can also take the
appeal in writing or through email to the general manager or to
a member of Senior Leadership Team. The appealer, the head of
the business unit and the human resources department concerned
should be notified of the investigation results and the method of
handling the case by the department concerned. If the employee is
not satisfied with the results, an appeal can be made to a higher
level of management or department.
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Talent Development

The sustainable development of employees means the sustainable
development of the Group. For this, human resources departments
of the Group and its subsidiaries offer a variety of courses
to provide training in work-related knowledge and skills for
employees. For example, in the Group’s annual management
meeting, there will be a sharing session on the Group’s business
strategies as well as a leadership training session on special
topics so that the Group’s management personnel are not only
knowledgeable in the Group’s development direction, but also
have a chance to make self-improvement and upgrade their
leadership skills. For frontline staff, the Group also invests
resources every year in providing them with suitable on-the-job
training to equip them with necessary knowledge and skills to
ensure their workplace safety and raise their work efficiency.

Furthermore, considering that employees need professional
development within their respective job scopes, the Group
sponsors them to join external training courses. In some cases,
they are sponsored to join professional societies.

Detailed Training Data’

20162 4F
= 51| 4% B B

Total Training Hours in

76,629

2 F B
= 51| B 8K

Total Average Trainin
2016 Hours per Employee

2N\ z
P FAR
7> 3
=R
Total Avere
Hours per

(Male)

! BEEEEENMETEE

B F T IG5 5l B 2L

(—REI)
Total Average Training
Hours per Employee
(General Staff)

! The data cover both the Group and its subsidiaries.
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In addition, the Group is also uncovering and developing
talents continuously. For example, Senior Management Career
Development Committee has been formed to review the
organisation structures and personnel appointment of key
positions regularly. Employees with potentials are also nurtured as
management reserves in future so that management philosophy is
passed on.

The Group also runs a management trainee programme every
year. The Group begins its recruitment process across eastern and
southern China from the fourth quarter every year. From October
2016 to January 2017, the Group invited close to 40 candidates to
participate in 5 assessment workshops organised in Shanghai and
Guangdong. Senior management of the Group and subsidiaries
were the assessors to select eligible candidates. Upon four rounds
of assessments, three management trainees were recruited. In
their first two years, management trainees will be assigned to
different posts in different subsidiary groups, operation locations
and positions to familiarise them with business operations.

Favourable Working Environment

The Group considers ensuring employees’ occupational health
and safety as one of its primary tasks. It complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards. The HSE department
is responsible for the daily operation of this task, it regularly
conducts safety inspections of the Group’s factories with the
primary objective of ensuring compliance. In the period under
review, a total of 18 safety inspections and 5 single-aspect
inspections were conducted. Afterwards, the factories were
offered suggestions and required to take corrective actions and
carry out continual improvements in safety management. As a way
to raise inspection standards, third-party fire-safety inspections
were arranged to give an objective assessment of the related
standards of individual factories. As to the handling of hazardous
chemical substances, the Group has special safety production
rules and regulations that cover 32 requirements including safety
awareness education, preventive measures, risk assessment, safety
management of production processes and emergency responses.
For example, new recruits who are supposed to station in factories
must undergo a safety education course that includes basic
safety laws and regulations, hazard factors in the type of work
they engage, emergency responses and self-rescuing procedures.
Employees must pass a safety assessment before they can start
working.
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In the year, the Group and its subsidiaries conducted 64,658 hours
of HSE related training. While there was zero job-related fatality, 5
persons sustained work injuries? and 458 lost days were recorded.
Medical matters were dealt with in accordance with local laws.
Besides, the Group provided regular medical checks to employees
exposed to occupational hazards.

The Group recruits employees according to applicable laws in
relation to employment and labour at the locality of operation and
protects the interests of both parties by means of employment
contracts. Employment conditions, salaries, termination policy,
holidays and benefits are specified in employment contracts and the
Employee Handbook. For example, employees can enjoy marriage
leave and examination leave as well as more annual leave days
and higher mandatory provident fund contribution by employer
than the statutory minimum requirements under relevant laws and
regulations. For employees leaving on their own accord, the human
resources departments will collect the reasons for their resignation
for analysis in order to maintain competitiveness in retaining
personnel.

Provisions on equal opportunity and anti-discrimination in
accordance with relevant laws are specified in employment
contracts and the Employee Handbook. Employees getting unfair
treatments can raise complaints with the human resources
departments. This ensures that employees will not be discriminated
due to their gender, marital status, handicap or family status.
Child labour and forced labour are not allowed, which is in line
with the Group’s policy in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.

2 BETBEEATHBHEI AR LY
A% BREEEMAETEEET -

2 Work injuries are defined as cases involving loss of five or more
workdays for the Group or subsidiary groups.
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The detailed distribution was as follows:

The Group had a total headcount of 3,795° of which 80 were
Hong Kong employees while the rest were all mainland employees.

BB T4 AR

Total No. of Employees

3795

S TR

Gender

2 )

= iR
Gender Employment Type
FEMALE = LA A

Labour Contract

2909

636

B A R

Labour Service Contract

3751

44

£|E EI:V HE/DJJ Age Groups

<20

18

>21-<30

1054

>31-<40

1422

>41-<50

1039

>51-<60

248

14
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employees.

BERKLL R B13% A HIT Employee turnover rate was 13%?% detailed distribution was as
follows:
8 T 1% R 8 TR 2 28 Bl Age Groups
CEmer Gender <20 >21-<30 | 231-<40 | 241-<50 | >51-<60 >60
A H 10 274 160 54 5 1
() |
MALE FEMALE
I [& Region
7 BB R b,
3 2 1 32 Hong Kong 13 Mainland 491
RZZE—R"FE+ZA=1+—H "  B8EFE%E 3 As at 31 December 2016; inclusive of Group and subsidiary group

For the reviewing period ended 31 December 2016; turnover rate
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is calculated as number of employees leaving on own accord/total
number of employees.
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Long-term Values in Supply Chains

The Group needs support from various business partners owing
to its business nature as chemical company and expansive
geographical scope of its operations. The Group’s suppliers can
broadly be classified as engaging in raw material procurement,
mechanical equipment and construction engineering as well as
information technology and goods shipment. Because the quality
of the suppliers is closely related to the Group’s overall operational
efficiency, the Group and its suppliers have to work in concert to
build a sustainable value chain that serves as a sound foundation

for long-term development.
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> 95% In the year, subsidiaries collaborated with 813° suppliers, over

95% of which were from the localities of operations so that
carbon emission resulting from shipments and business trips can
be minimized.

-

AEMEE

TFTRERIRBR  EBHEEREEE
R EEmETEREER - HhFE
BRUARTEREE  REXNSMHEE
BIEE - BmAREFIA EIEHE SR E R
BEREEFE  EMEIRBSR L2 R
RERAR - SEHREMEMEERE &
REVER - B SRR EX S
TRHY (R EHE o

s R BIEEN RhR T o

Systematic Management of Supply Chains

The procurement department set up in each subsidiary manages
and monitors its suppliers according to designated procedures.
Subsidiaries compile a list of qualified suppliers and, according to
the nature of the suppliers, procurement department cooperates
with different departments in carrying out appraisals regularly
and in regard to individual projects. When the project involves
chemical raw materials which pose safety and environmental risks,
the Group has more stringent requirements on its raw material
suppliers, including, for example, the evaluation of the protective
measures taken by the suppliers during shipment.

5

The data include the coatings and inks businesses.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

43



—Z—R¥[EE 2016 ANNUAL REVIEW

B HERERRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

44

REERA  FEFEEEEHERESD
BT @B EERFNIRE - flInEk %
BEeFRHtERRER—HBRESTER
RF BRREEMNBRIEFE Bt
RS o MREEERESE Y BM
REERIDARNE  AgBEP IHR
B-REesFEYN AUHERSFR
D RBEBRBEEHNFENE - THME
NEMERDHERIFELER 2R E
BRFERETT T /NRAARERHE

BTRAEMAARBE LHHER - UK
EHEEFERERANBILAT - BR
RIENEEREFHERETRIME
EHIBR - TRER QR KHBERKER
EREMEEBAT - M HIEHE TR
EEETEEMESS - (REHREHREY
BEEMEBREERA -

RE#HE

BEBERRABEEENERED KEE
Rt @BEENEE  RETEETHEREK
BE#NESEEHEA - BHERET
ErERER - FTRESRFIH— 7 RER
BHRHIERHEE - FANBTAERZOMN G
WRITRIARRRES « ERRTENE
R ARBGFES - ERIRABZRFRE
AR KBRS - TRESETNE
HimE AR HER RN E THEBE -

FRRAHERFE R Bl FofGaT
BEXEERF2HURAE - EHNEE
AW NIRRT - RERER
AMERFHAEE XN T RTEOELERR
HENESESTZER - KRESHEE
BRHESREAERE  SFEEIR
REEBART RIFEEP RIIEE -

ERCIEEMBERIA - —TRFEFR

Other than quality inspection and testing, whether or not a
supplier undertakes its social responsibility is also a scoring item in
the annual appraisal. Each year, for example, the coatings group
prepares a self-evaluation list on labour standards, environmental
protection and occupational health and safety management for its
suppliers and sample checks are carried out. If a supplier fails to
get a qualifying score and has not shown any improvement after
warning, procurement from it will be stopped. Supplier lists are
updated annually, so each supplier will have to undergo an annual
procurement department appraisal at least once a year. Each
subsidiary group will also pay on-site visits to its suppliers through
random sampling. In the year, the coatings group carried out 6
related appraisals.

Employees can only select suppliers in the qualified list and can
decide on the priority of using suppliers according to their previous
appraisal results. This policy is also conducive to maintaining long-
term stable relationships with exceptional suppliers. Subsidiaries will
communicate with suppliers on the latest corporate policies and
national laws and regulations. They also carry out periodic talks
on hazardous substances with chemical raw material suppliers and
push them into setting up hazardous substance control systems.

Anti-corruption Measures

Strict observance of ethical standards is the philosophy of the
Group governance. Other than quality and social responsibility
monitoring, probity is a critical area for the Group to safeguard
the whole value chain. In entering into a cooperation agreement
with a supplier, subsidiaries will specify a probity declaration
or undertaking which lists out inadmissible benefit accepting
behaviours to avoid grey areas, the consequences of any violation
and whistle-blowing mechanism. The contact information of
designated personnel for handling whistle-blowing or feedback
is stated in the declaration. Subsidiaries will make unscheduled
checks to keep suppliers and employees of the Group alert.

In the period under review, no supplier was warned or disqualified
for violating the above-mentioned declaration and undertaking.
There was no litigation against the Group in relation to bribery
and fraud. The Group believes that the detailed listing of
requirements and the carrying out of periodic professional
appraisal prove to be effective management measures against
corruption-related activities. The Group's efforts in maintaining a
long-term collaborative relationship with its business partners are
conducive to providing stability to its operations and furnishing a
sound foundation for its mid- to long-term development.
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Long-term Values in Customers

The Group’s products have extensive uses, such as printing inks for
food packages, household wall paints and home furniture coatings
which are closely related to our daily lives and have a long usage
time. Product safety and health is, therefore, one of the major
concerns of stakeholders and also a material item in the area of
product responsibility for the Group. The Group complied with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to health and safety of products provided. The
Group abides by its commitment as a responsible enterprise and
sees safety and health issues as a foundation for the development
of its business. It carries out monitoring in accordance with national
or international standards when applicable.

For example, both its coatings and inks businesses are ISO 9001
certified for their respective quality management systems. They also
implement Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to manage the
efficiency of their production processes and to ensure the precise
usage of materials so as to minimise human errors and wastage of

resources.
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The Group's inks business is the first batch of chemical enterprises
worldwide to adopt the QC 080000 Hazardous Substances Process
Management system. Through the setting up of a control database
and a regulation database for hazardous substances, it controls
more than 40 substances covering heavy metals and organic
compounds to comply with related country and regional product
and environmental standards from the EU, US and Japan. In
addition, the inks business is continuously upgrading its capability
in product safety evaluation and risk control. The factories adopt
fully pipelined manufacturing in benzene-free production base
while control system is automatic and linked to an ERP system for
comprehensive production process monitoring.
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Safety and Quality Monitoring

Besides the computerisation of production processes, quality
management also involves the monitoring of raw materials and
finished products. Professional quality inspection personnel
checks the information of incoming raw materials against the
corresponding quality testing reports, and will then carry out
inspection and testing on random sampling basis according to the
technical specifications shown in the ERP system. Alternatively,
simultaneous inspection and testing can be carried out. In other
words, inspection and testing indicators are jointly developed
with a supplier and, after independent inspection and testing
of the raw materials are carried out by both parties, the testing
reports from both sides are compared. In addition to carrying out
inspection and testing of raw materials, responsible departments
also supervise production processes, including the inspection and
testing of auxiliaries, equipment, tools and packaging containers
used in the production processes so as to ensure that there is no
contamination during production.

Inspection and testing of finished products are the most important
product quality control point and is the responsibility of the quality
department and production department. Production systems
will develop respective “quality control indicators” for different
products as bases in inspection and testing by related departments.
For coating products, for example, the durability of outer-wall
coatings will be evaluated by subjecting it to accelerated sunlight
and rain damaging. Simultaneously, a sunlight exposure test is
carried out by putting a surface coated with the product outdoor
and inclining the surface at a 45° angle facing south. Durability
indicators such as a change in colour, loss in lustre, pulverisation
and peeling off of coating film will be assessed. If there is a
serious problem in product quality that recalling of a product is
necessary, product recall guidelines are also in place. In the year,
for the coatings and inks businesses, there was no incident in
which a product had to be recalled because of safety problems.

Four testing laboratories recognised by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS) have been
successively set up in the Group’s coatings and inks plants. These
laboratories can offer professional services in product safety and
quality testing and their test results and reports are recognised by
more than 170 countries and regions around the world.
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Demonstration of coating film Demonstration of workability Testing with respect to HSE
properties — hiding property, — time required for coating indicators — testing for VOC
washability, pencil test on film to dry, levelling power. and toluene diisocyanate (TDI)
coating hardness, cold and contents.

heat resistance, etc.

BEEREF Customer Relationship

EERPERLEERERNEZR ET2 The Group understands that giving feedback is a customer
SEASEEER NEBRA4RRERE right, as well as an important channel for the Group to obtain
HEERAERNEEERE - flun - 28 A valuable suggestions and maintain a long-term mutually trusting
BRI TEM B R B S LR cooperative relationship with customers. For example, coating and
BIZF - UBRERNEREIERLE ink businesses have a clear customer complaints mechanism and
o EFARKEKEEEERFER formalized handling procedures to ensure that customer opinions
#0.72% © are taken seriously and duly handled. In the year, the rate of

quality-related complaints for the coatings segment is 0.72%.
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Every business segment has a designated department to receive complaints, with their contact information
available on the official website. For coatings business which involves retail, its contact information is also
printed on paint cans, customers can also go to a distributor’s store or the Bauhinia office network to
lodge complaints via the Bauhinia product complaint system.

BRIBEPIE AT B BRRFRE R - URRFANA T HERNE 282 IREIEE o 10IRFTLFE EIE
B RERBL AR D B A ER 4R 5| R 45 HERA 0PI IRAE -

The department-in-charge of the customer complaints will first assess whether the complaint is valid and
whether it is related to product quality or services. While the customer will be informed if the complaint

is deemed invalid, valid complaints will be followed up by relevant department according to the complaint
classification and internal guidelines.

EEMPIFTENETERRELMENE - WERTEREERE - BRGHETRERPESIIRFRFIAERERRE -
The responsible department has to identify the root cause of a problem and define improvement measures
within a specified period. It is then recorded in the ERP system or complaint handling system for future
reference.

RFRBTREFTAZLPRERELR - UHIBEFPHMER - MBRP IR ENFE - ¥BTSEREM
BN BDIE S| ATAR BT »

After a complaint is processed, the customer will be informed of the result and the customer satisfaction
will be noted. Any goods return or compensation involved will follow each business segment’s related
internal guidelines.
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Long-term Values in Communities

The development of the Group for almost half a century owes
much to social progress. Therefore, the Group upholds the
principle of “From the Community, For the Community” to
reciprocate the society where it operates to grow together.

As a corporate citizen, the Group makes the best of its expertise
and resources by proposing strategic community investment as a
means of connecting various stakeholders in order to build a long-
term mutually beneficial relationship and to promote the balanced
and healthy development of its businesses. The Group’s “Policy
on Community Investment, Sponsorships and Donation” offers
guidelines in the selection of community investment projects by
the Group or its subsidiaries. A subsidiary can choose suitable
projects according to the needs of the community in which it
operates and these projects will be monitored by a designated
department in the Group. The main points of this policy include:

e Focus on projects from where the Group operates
e Encourage employees to participate

Partner with reputable non-profit organizations

Give priority to projects related to environmental protection
and underprivileged groups

SENEBBHAAMLSE - EP - ZSETOBERRBRRER  FETOHERE - Ft - [55F8H1E
RHBREERBNERE R — - R TIRHEHN AL & - HERE TEMRELRME - SXBAT
R’ REANREBEBOHRELATLMY -
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While the Group’s businesses span across countrywide, the second and third tier cities are however
lagging in development and rife with social problems. For this, “underprivileged groups” are one of the
Group’s key targets in community investments. Other than providing immediate livelihood relief, the
related projects can also foster community harmony and encourage personal development which would be
beneficial to the Group’s long-term stability.

As a member of chemical industry, stakeholders generally believe that environmental protection is a
material aspect of sustainability for the Group. For this, promotion and education in environmental
protection are also a key focus of community investment.
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The Group has both short-term and long-term community
investment projects. The short-term ones allow it to get in touch
with different social issues and develop more long-term co-
operation opportunities. The long-term ones allow it to gain an in-
depth understanding of social issues or even to bring far-reaching
changes to society.

Mobile Eye Surgery Centre Donation
Programme

4

2020 &mem =
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Donate ~ mobile eye surgery
units before
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Yip's Chemical’'s mobile eye surgery units handled more
than cataract removal surgeries in
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In the course of its development in the mainland, the Group
has noticed that there are many cataract patients in the
underdeveloped regions. These patients are usually poverty-stricken
and with disabilities, which make them unable to self-care and
seek for medical help. As a result, they become a burden in their
families and their livelihood sees little chance of improvement.
For this, the Group has set a long-term social investment project
to help this large and widely scattered underprivileged group to
receive effective medical treatment in order to revive their sight
and regain their living and working skills.

! BIEEENEE Jr?IJE*EEA;JHw ETﬁﬁ‘ﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ*ﬁ&.ﬁgﬂEP%K.:HE&'“#B%VHE
! Included the two surgery units donated before Donation Programme and the ten units pledged in the Donation Programme.
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Since 2010 Yip's Chemical started a “10-Year Mobile Eye
Surgery Centre Donation Programme” in collaboration with Asian
Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness and China Disabled
Persons’ Federation. The objective is to restore vision for mainland
cataract patients through the donation of a number of mobile
eye surgery units, each of which costs more than HK$2.5 million,
inclusive of the equipment costs of the advanced ophthalmological
surgery instruments. With a team of professional medical
personnel, each mobile eye surgery unit annually stations at no
less than 6 impoverished counties and carries out an average of
2,000 cataract removal surgeries. To date, the Group has donated
8 mobile surgery units respectively to Jiangsu, Shandong, Inner
Mongolia, Yunnan, Heilongjiang, Shanxi, Hunan and Hebei,
amounting to over HK$21 million in total donations. Up to 31
December 2016 since the launch of the programme, these surgery
units have successfully carried out surgeries for more than 67,300
cataract patients.

The scope of this donation programme is further broadened
through the Group’s own resources and business networks. To
better help treated cataract patients embarking their new life,
the coatings group offers free wall-refurbishing services for the
decrepit living quarters of some of the patients. By helping with
treating peeled off, cracking and moulding old paints, the service
materially improves their living environment and allows them to
enjoy their colourful renovated homes when they recover their
eyesight. Meanwhile, the coatings group has also started through
its official WeChat and Weibo sites an online charity programme
called “Wishing you sight from our heart”. Every time a public
member shares the message of this programme, an amount would
be donated towards repainting the walls of the old houses for the
cataract patients.

In addition to participating in the donation of the mobile surgery
units, every year Yip's Chemical Volunteers, the corporate
volunteer team, will visit a recipient province so that more
employees will understand the benefits brought by the surgery
units and the contribution the donation programme has made in
the area. In the period under report, 16 members of the corporate
volunteer team went to Heilongjiang to conduct cataract
prevention education and visit cataract patients and ex-patients.
The corporate volunteer team also mobilized other stakeholders
such as distributors to participate in related volunteer activities—to
make mini-visits to the mobile surgery unit in Jiangsu.
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B Inter-generational Integration

EFENFERNEER IS BERAER A= In the year, the Group continued to focus on the issue of
B AR HEREHeEES F8N “inter-generational integration”. It collaborated for the second
FEMMEETE - [EER S Epera ] consecutive year with St. James' Settlement in running a year-
BEEETIBNAFKSENTE B8 round “Cross-Gen Integration Program”. Under this programme,
—ZINEEETRG  RHEEREAR the corporate volunteer team partnered with children from the
EREEHETENE - 2F XN EHEE Sham Shui Po district to promote transgenerational integration and
HEES  REBE REZIIGRS pass on the message of taking care of each other through a range
ENERNEERETIZE R ELH AR of volunteer services. In the year, 7 activities were run, including
ErEw o 5B ENRERRE —REE visits during festivals, house-cleaning and children volunteer work
IKBERIENE - IR EBEE training. The objective was to care for the elderly and cultivate a
B PRI E L o sense of responsibility towards society among the children. The

programme also sponsored the elderly and children to learn ink-
wash painting and African drum together, which aimed to provide
more opportunities for interaction between the two generations
and to tap the artistic talents of the participants.

EBEETHFHIERNNE T38EE T /) The corporate volunteer team contributed 385 volunteer hours
B BEEMNEEENREEREAE A for this project. This continuous project offers more benefits to
Mz MR IHEXBEETERERK children learning and also allows the cultivation of stronger bonds
15 SEERARAER between the volunteers and the beneficiaries, making the project

all the more meaningful.

EREIRIBGR-ZE——FKY  SRIXRAEEZNET  HEEARBHEMEZ  E5EHREED
T BREMEBN  BERAHNRETIH N SEGLX2AMBETRMEEREEE - TERRBIREBRERESBIE
SIREEE - NZT—"F - AR RKBAME TMHRMNELIRIERREA1,328/ N\ : BAERBEANLMEE TR
RIRANEGE200A - EREIHETIRBE - ——FNLAMRLUR » 2 AREHER2EE TRIEMBAARD
Bl 56,756/NFF K 1,279 AR ©

Yip’s Chemical Volunteers was set up in 2011 to foster corporate citizen spirit through a group of professional
and high-calibre employees. As such it is the mainstay of the Group’s community investment. In addition to
the above-mentioned programmes, mainland and Hong Kong members of the corporate volunteer team are
also active in participating in different community service activities, including advocating for green living and
caring for socially vulnerable groups. In 2016, Yip’s Chemical’s Hong Kong and mainland employees and their
relatives together contributed 1,328 hours in volunteer services involving 209 volunteers. Since founded in
September 2011, the cumulative hours of service and the total number of volunteers involved were 6,756

\hours and 1,279 persons respectively.
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In addition, Yip's Chemical has been an active supporter of a
non-profit organization-run “Seagull Scholarship Programme”
by offering summer internships to undergraduates sponsored
by the programme. In 2016, 25 undergraduates in the Seagull
Programme were assigned to different departments to undergo
a one-month internship. Besides getting paid, each intern was
provided free accommodation and board as well as transportation
expenses.

To encourage participation from stakeholders, the Group has
arranged through WeChat to let all employees vote for volunteer
activities in 2017. Other than encouraging the active participation
of employees, this is also the first step in the Group’s revamping
of its volunteering strategy. The objective is to bring to light
different society needs through venturing into different volunteer
scopes in the coming year. The results of the voting reveal that
while Hong Kong employees wish to expand into art-related social
services, their mainland counterparts are concerned with projects
aimed at improving air quality. The progress of the projects will be
updated in the next issue of the ESG Report.
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Long-term Values in Environment

As some of the raw materials used by chemical enterprises are
natural resources, the Group understands that a well-conserved
environment is closely related to the sustainable development of
its businesses. In other words, environmental considerations are
inseparable from operation. The Group’s environmental affairs are
under the supervision of the HSE Committee, but since different
plants have different production methods and policies of different
localities of operations vary, environmental protection measures
are carried out by individual plants in accordance with their actual
circumstances.

SEREFREENTHEREYR  MHEREEREERBRENREZ BT EHEITER - BREHBEER
S TRBEIE BT PIRERE TET R TR IEVOCH R - BIFAE B RSIRE R R EASH A - iR
SKERIERRME - BUERFMERBERKPRIRE - MR FENBE TN —F—AFEH5/KEIEREABIEH
AKERHER - MR - TN FRRXERFEBETE  WE—FPZEE2MVOCKE - RinEE

The approach of clean production and environmental protection measures are carried out by plants
according to their actual circumstances. Apart from coatings and inks businesses, the solvent plant situated
at Jiangmen also strives to raise the VOC handling efficiency, such as installing pipelines to capture waste
gas and reduce unorganized emission. The plant also upgraded the sewage treatment facilities. Emission
after treatment is well beyond the national standard. The plant in Taixing also upgraded it sewage
treatment facilities to reduce waste gas produced from sewage. The two plants began leak detection and
repair project from 2016 to optimize the VOC collection and treatment system.

HEsR B K AR e R R B O IRIR ARG P
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Machinery maintenance and energy conservation measures are
an important aspect in the Group’s environmental strategies.
Every year each plant has to report on the energy conservation
measures being implemented and the corresponding effectiveness.
Plant machineries which are low in energy efficiency, wasteful of
water resources and negatively affecting product quality and the
environment will either be upgraded or replaced. For example, a
large stirrer took long time to shut off after production is finished,
the plant concerned therefore reshuffled the operating system
to allow the simultaneous carrying out of some production steps
to shorten the time the stirrer wasting electricity. A plant also
installed water metres at strategic points of the water usage
process in production so that, from the water usage data, it can
identify abnormal pipe network points for carrying out inspection
and repair to reduce water wastage. One plant in the inks business
succeeded in reducing water usage by 38% after undergoing
corrective measures.
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Stakeholders are also very concerned with the Group’s measures
in managing its emissions. The plants of the coatings and inks
businesses in Huizhou and Zhongshan (Guangdong Province) as
well as in Shanghai and Tongxiang (Zhejiang Province) are all
ISO 14001 certified and their products are all qualified for the
China Environmental Labelling, making them way ahead in their
respective sectors in the mainland. As the mainland’s air pollution
policy is now being revised, the Group’s professional team is
closely watching policy development as usual. They are also
preparing for an upgrading of equipment in the coming year to
ensure that production in all plants is in compliance.

The Group's environmental measures are not limited to conserving
energy and minimising emissions: the clean production principle
it advocates in fact covers the whole life cycle of products. Clean
production concerns also with minimising waste of raw materials,
reducing environmental impacts during production, adopting
stringent waste disposal measures and even in developing
environmentally friendly products. The objective is to ensure that

when a product is being used by a customer, it will still pose the
least damage to the environment.
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VD BRFE Case Study

BB X E Clean Production
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Phase 1 of the Jinshan Coatings Factory in Shanghai was completed in 2013 and its phase 2 began operative
in 2015. Currently its production capacity accounts for over 50% of the total of the coatings group. In 2016,
the plant won the distinction of being a state certified entity for demonstrating clean production. It shows
how the Group incorporates environmental considerations in its business decisions to achieve long-term
business development.

1 2 3 4 5
, MR\ 2
e |
d - '
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o O @ @
EEmER SUEBRE BRmER RERBREE EHRRER
Considerations Manufacturing Emission Environmental Launching
in Factory Processes Management Risk Green Products
Construction Management

I #Z M Z & Considerations in Factory Construction

THEABFECHCIIXER RTHTEARBERE HERTEE T IAENRERR B
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Shanghai’s Jinshan district is a government designated chemical industry park because the site of
the park has relatively low ecological value. Since environmental risks of chemical enterprises are
already a consideration in infrastructure construction, the district is a good fit for the Group’s clean
production goals. For example, by virtue of an underground pipeline network for industrial raw
materials and fundamental chemical materials that links to Shanghai Petrochemical, volatilisation and
leakage risks of organic compounds during transportation is minimised.

BRSIIBI PR REENETIER30% - BMENMBRITMAEMZE  AREEREERE - 8B
g R BRI R R EYRETERE R - AtHBRERBRCEY -

Currently Jinshan Factory is 30% further away from residential areas as dictated by statutes. Related
considerations have also been incorporated into the layout of the factory: since the western side is
closer to residential housings, more dangerous and more volatile Class A chemicals are kept on the
south-eastern side while Class C chemicals are kept on the north-western side.
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Environmental considerations have also been incorporated into the factory design and construction
processes. For example, in view of the fact that some large machinery may generate noise during
production, soundproofing and vibration damping equipment have been installed. In addition, 25%
of the premise is set aside as a green area with special consideration in merging the green area with
the buildings to minimise the impacts of noise pollution.

F11E3B7 2 Manufacturing Processes

WERBIFG  BITHEAEMRDDITESHREERSR  HALERRE < 1t MEEBTEEERES
L RN E O EEAETELE - DURERMEHERE R R AR - T RBUERITAEY -

Green consideration begins from planning, it organizes orders for bulk production to reduce wastage
of resources and products. Fully piped manufacturing mode with automatic control are carried out to
reduce wastage of raw materials and gas emission due to volatility, so to better control pollutants.

BB Use of resources

B & H ] 17 &5 (e

. Items Solvents Resins Pigments Auxiliaries
Raw materials

e 17,357 7,893 3,735 1.633

Quantity (unit) I tonnes I tonnes I tonnes I tonnes

2 024 041 0.053 0.023

B Ag 28 4t o5

Packaging R e ST O
g2 5,882 160 3,735
Quantity (unit) I tonnes I tonnes I tonnes

=, 0.083  0.0023 0.053

ARBEEE

Public utility ] ] S

consumption 5 40,251 4126,532 43.58

Quantity (unit) I8 tonnes kwh I tonnes

o, 0.60 58.41 0.00062
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I HEHMYIEE Emission Management

PRI D RRER - BEX - BEMES - *IUZHBENE2HMRERNLRE - B MABNFRYEE
HIE S R B MR AR RBEFERE - ERANEES B R BUTEBMEBIE B REERERR
REBEOTER - WHEBEESBRZZENBA -

Emissions can be divided into exhaust gas, waste water, solid wastes and noise. The main emissions
from Jinshan Coatings Factory are exhaust gas and noise, but corresponding equipment and measures
are in place to minimise the environmental impacts of all four main types of emissions. For the year
under review, the Group did not receive any notification of significant violation of environmental laws
and regulations regarding emissions and discharges from relevant government authorities, that caused
substantial impact to the Group.

BEREEXH RVOCKME - TEREEEBERLEWNIEL - MEWEHEEERSRY - BLUFIEKRE
ERERRAREREEBRE - WAl AEBBEERELCYORBILERER - MFEHE#E—TREEREN - I
SEREHARB1700BRAVOCKIBR B AN E MR R RRIENE - Bt =T —+FR7TH °

The main components of exhaust gas are VOC and dust that come from the volatilisation of chemical
compounds in the production processes. Organic pollutants are collected and then treated with an
activated carbon regeneration device and a wet-type dust removal device. Solvents can be recycled from
the regeneration device for reuse. The factory wants to further reduce exhaust gas emission and plans
to invest around RMB17 million to upgrade its VOC treatment device to improve collection rate and
treatment efficiency. The upgrading is expected to be completed within 2017.

RERBEETHNARBEEHENE MR LREERT - ARNE  BE  EEHEREKESHEARNER
EEMEETRE -

Noise comes from the operation of large machinery during production. The factory has installed building
noise insulation, basic vibration damping, vibration insulation, pipe-wall mufflers and water-straining nets
to bring down noise to meet legal requirements.

FEKHR BB BRI SR - BEREERBEVEE K& B Z TR E IR B B AR )5 KEE o
More than 60% of the waste water is domestic sewage. Waste water from equipment cleaning will first
be treated by flocculation and sedimentation before being discharged with domestic sewage.

BT NEEREME WO R - JBEBUTRAHEYRIZARIERIE o FNER5S BT £ B BE KA)800MA
Hazardous wastes from the solid waste will first be isolated and passed on to government recognised
waste treatment companies for treatment. In the year, Jinshan Factory generated around 800 tonnes of
solid wastes.
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RIER B EE Environmental Risk Management
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Production in the Jinshan plant is of considerable scale and employs the use of a host of chemical
raw materials. For this, the plant has carried out environmental risk assessments to protect it from
environmental risks and to ensure its long-term operation. The Environment Risk Emergency Response
Plan lists all the risk sources of the plant, the respective responsibilities of various departments in case
of emergencies and different response plans for different incidences. The plant will regularly conduct
emergency response exercises of different scales and the processes of the exercises are standardised. The
main risk of the Jinshan factory comes mainly from possible leakage of raw materials during storage and
transportation which may cause air and land pollution. The factory did not come across any situation in
which it had to activate its emergency response plans in the reviewing period.

#HIRREM Launching Green Products
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The coatings business has all along been driving advancement in environmental protection in the industry.
It keeps developing green products so that consumers have more eco-friendly options. In 2016, the
coatings group introduced a V-series of low-odour paints for industrial as well as household use. Its S-series
of paints is based on an odourless formula and employs a no-additive technology that uses diatoms,
bamboo charcoal and an antibacterial material as ingredients. The VOC control technology of the coatings
group can bring down VOC contents to less than 10g/L, which is far lower the national standard of 120g/L.

o ZREETRE S HEEFEEBEENMEESENR AR BREEEFAEHNEMEZEBRNRE
& o

Furthermore, through its official website, the coatings group also teaches consumers how to choose
suitable household paints.
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About the report

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited. The reporting scope in respective
areas is based on the influence of businesses to stakeholders.
This report covers the Group’s performance and measures in the
areas of sustainable development for the reporting period from 1
January to 31 December 2016 unless otherwise specified.

This report is prepared in accordance to the Environmental, Social,
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, with selection of sustainability disclosures
which is applicable and material.
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As of 31 December 2016, the Group has a total number of 3,795
employees. 80 of the employees are from Hong Kong while 3715
of them are from different provinces in China.

The Group places great emphasis on the management and
development of human capital. The employees are encouraged
to strive for improvement through internal and external training
programs, on-the-job training and participation in the Group’s
educational subsidies, allowing for self-development in knowledge
and skills and maximizing their potential in their work. We offer
a suitable platform for development of highly committed and
capable employees, regardless of their background, geographical
region or educational levels. Through versatile experience in
challenging roles, the current management team of the Group has
come through the ranks to advance to positions of management.
Besides the focus of developing employees internally, the Group
seeks not only to attract talent from outside but also to recruit
top graduates from the best tertiary institutions in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, and abroad as well as provide them with
training and development opportunities. The Management Trainee
Program has been implemented for a number of years. Some
of the management trainees have demonstrated their excellent
capabilities and been advanced to positions of leadership within
the Group.

The Group offers a desirable work environment, sets up different
programs for motivating employees to strive for improvement
and to upgrade their skills in order to sustain the development
of business. From time to time, the Group will make reference
to market trends for the review of remuneration policy so as to
ensure reasonable and competitive compensation and benefits.
These include basic salary and performance-based bonus to attract
and retain talents.
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BEFHE4E
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, aged 69, is the Chairman and the Co-founder
of the Group and Mr. Ip was re-designated as the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012.
Mr. Ip focuses on the leading of the Board, the Group’s long-
term development strategy and the planning and inheritability of
human resources of the Group. He is the brother of Mr. Yip Tsz
Hin, the Deputy Chairman of the Group, a Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, an Executive Director of the Company as
well as a member of the Senior Leadership Team and the father
of Mr. Ip Kwan, a member of the Senior Leadership Team and
a Co-President of the Bauhinia Coatings Group. In 2006, Mr. Ip
established “lp Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited” with the
objectives of fostering education in China and providing care for
the underprivileged groups in Hong Kong.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, aged 58, joined the Group in 1977. Mr. Yip
is the Deputy Chairman of the Group, a Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, an Executive Director of the Company and
a member of the Senior Leadership Team. Mr. Yip has 40 years
of experience in the manufacture of and trading in petrochemical
products. He is the brother of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wong Yuk, aged 53, joined the Group in 2015. Mr. Wong is
the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an Executive Director
of the Company and a member of the Senior Leadership Team. He
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group
before assuming his current positions. Mr. Wong obtained a
Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering from The University
of Hong Kong and completed a Master in Business Administration
with The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1992. Before he
joined the Group, he was the Managing Director — China Strategy
and Investment of Methanex, a global market leader in methanol.
He had also worked with Shell for over 26 years and was its
General Manager — Shell Specialities China/Hong Kong and China
Local Senior Downstream Representative. Mr. Wong has more than
30 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical industry.

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, aged 50, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Ho is
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group, an Executive Director
of the Company, a member of the Senior Leadership Team
and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained
a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Accounting from The
University of Hong Kong and completed his EMBA with The China
Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously, Mr. Ho
had worked for several listed companies in Hong Kong as their
chief financial officer, executive director and company secretary.
He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, finance, taxation and company
secretarial work.
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Mr. Wong Kong Chi

BERLE
Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 52, joined the Group in 1987.
Mr. Kwong is an Executive Director of the Company and a
member of the Senior Leadership Team. Mr. Kwong was appointed
as the General Manager of the Inks Group in 2015. He obtained
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from The Open
University of Hong Kong and has over 20 years of experience in
the field of marketing and management of petrochemical industry.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, aged 67, was elected as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in 1993 and was
re-designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in
2004. Mr. Tong is a partner of the law firm, Messrs. Cheung Tong
& Rosa Solicitors, legal advisers of the Group on Hong Kong Law
which receives usual professional fees in connection with services
rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 30 years and is also an independent
non-executive director of Country Garden Holdings Company
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1993. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong retired in 1993 after
working in the merchant banking industry for over 10 years.
Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.
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Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Ku graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and began his career at Shell Chemicals.
Mr. Ku has extensive managerial experience in the oil &
petrochemical industries in the Greater China region. He was
a Director of Shell Hong Kong Limited, a Board Director of
the Business Environment Council and the Chairman of Tianjin
International Petroleum Storage and Transportation Company
Limited. Mr. Ku does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, aged 58, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 1992.
Mr. Ng retired in 2011 and was thereafter re-designated as a
Non-executive Director of the Company. He was re-designated
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in 2014. Mr. Ng obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and a Master Degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong Kong
Baptist University. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. Mr. Ng does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies.
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Management Executives

Mr. Ip Kwan, aged 34, joined the Group as an assistant to
Director of the Group in 2007. Mr. Ip is a member of the Senior
Leadership Team and a Co-President of the Bauhinia Coatings
Group. He has been the General Manager of the Hong Kong
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China) Company Limited
since 2011. He is the son of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the London School of Economics with a Bachelor’s
degree in Government and Economics. Before joining the Group,
he had worked in the investment banking industry for three years.

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong, aged 53, joined the Group in 2010.
Mr. Fung is a member of the Senior Leadership Team and a Co-
President of the Bauhinia Coatings Group. He was the Head
and Senior Leader of Group Human Resources. He obtained a
Bachelor's Degree in Science (Economics) from The University of
London, a Master's Degree in Business Administration from The
University of Warwick and a Diploma in Training Management
jointly conferred by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
The Institute of Personnel and Development, United Kingdom.
Mr. Fung has extensive experience in different human resources
areas including organisational development, management
development, talent management and employee relations. He
worked in a number of multi-national companies from insurance,
petrochemical and pharmaceutical industries. Before he joined the
Group, he was the Group Human Resources Director of a Hong
Kong listed company.

Ms. Yau Ching Man, aged 33, joined the Group as Executive
Management Trainee in 2005. Ms. Yau is the Head of Operations
and a member of the Senior Leadership Team. She was the
General Manager of Best Lubricant Blending Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor Degree
in Computer Engineering from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Tse Yik Chu, aged 40, joined the Group in 2009. Ms. Tse is
currently the Director of Group Human Resources and a member
of the Senior Leadership Team. She was previously the Investor
Relations and Corporate Communications Director of the Group.
Ms. Tse obtained a Bachelor of Communication from the Hong
Kong Baptist University and a Master of Science in Finance from
the National University of Ireland. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Tse engaged in corporate affairs in an international oil
company. Ms. Tse also actively involves in public service and she
is currently a committee member of the Advisory Committee on
Enhancing Employment of People with Disabilities of Social Welfare
Department, a committee member of Rehabilitation Advisory
Committee Sub-committee on Public Education on Rehabilitation,
an executive member of a non-government organization called
Support the Employment of People with Disabilities (SEPD).
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Management Executives (continued)

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 55, is an experienced engineer.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1993 and has been the Managing
Director of the Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Development
Limited since 2005. He graduated from The South China University
of Technology. Mr. Zhao has over 30 years of experience in the
chemical industry and has extensive experience in management.

Mr. Chen Zhen Xin, aged 36, joined the Group in 2015.
Mr. Chen is the General Manager of Lubricant Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from Remin University of China, School of International
Studies. Prior to joining the Group, he has various experience in
lubricating procurement, logistics, project management, enterprise
resource planning systems, manufacturing, business development,
sales and retail gas station networking. Mr. Chen has over 14
years of experience in oil-chemical industry.

Mr. Leung Wing Ching lsaac, aged 49, joined the Group in
1996 and is the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. Leung is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy
from The City University of Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in the field of auditing, finance and management.

Dr. Chow Mai Mai, Miranda, aged 40, joined the Group as
Executive Management Trainee in 2003. Dr. Chow is the Head
of Corporate Development of the Group. Dr. Chow got her PhD
from the University of Cambridge and completed MBA program
at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2009. She joined the Group after completing her PhD studies
in the University of Cambridge. She was the Head of Research
& Development of the Group. Dr. Chow has nearly 14 years of
experience in chemical industry.

Dr. Kang Ning, aged 47, joined the Group in 2016. Dr. Kang
is the Chief Technology Officer of the Group. Dr. Kang got his
PhD from Institute of Chemistry, Chinese Academy of Sciences
and completed postdoctoral research at McGill University and
the University of Montreal. Before he joined the Group, he was a
manager of biomaterials division at Polymer Source Inc. (Canada),
professor (PhD supervisor) and team leader at Qingdao Institute
of Bioenergy and Bioprocess Technology at Chinese Academy
of Sciences, technical leader of Formulation Science in The
Dow Chemical Company, Asia Pacific Technical Director of PPG
Packaging Coatings, President of Jiangsu Changshun Group Co.,
Ltd. Research Institute, etc. Dr. Kang has over 25-year experience
in chemical area.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

69



EERE Governance Report

ESEHEE

Directors’ Report

70

ARAER(EFDREARFRENE
AR (RtGRAIARE]) RBE-F
—RFTZA=+RIEFEZHE RS
ERRAMBRE

TEXBRFRBEER

ARFB—RERRAT  EXEHE
AR EWEREERE B BER
WM« RBE-E—AEF A=+
AIEFR - ARENTERS HELE
ERBE -

BEAARMEAIMERSHEERBEE =S —X
F+ZA=+—HLEFEREEZE8F
15 BEHAEEEHOP S TSR LKA
BHEERERES(BEEES  HERAX
EEMFIAR G E 7 SR EE
wmA) R AR EBEE AR R
B2\~ BEFHRAFRESEISEZ
FRERERBEITRAHRE - 2FEEZ
REBHREBFENTERBARNEEE
FREAFEK SIUAR #HIZBE
EEREBEFHBEREAREGEER
HRIR o ZEHRIEARFHEEERRE
MEREESFHERESEMPEIEZE
BERAFHNBEHBERARFRE26227
B o EZMRERRERREN - 82
RIBVENEREMN  BHNGRAMBER
KM T AFELEHBET - &
SEZRHES MPBERFHNEI0
2328 - ZHh ARBZRBEBERK
BHHNEE LT REAREFEME
628 ° Br EilEB MmN - IR TE 2 EB
FEEEBENT

ERCIEEMBERIA - —TRFEFR

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in
solvents, coatings, inks and lubricants. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of the activities during the year ended 31 December
2016 as required by Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance
including, a fair review of the business of the Group with financial
performance indicators including turnover, sales volume and net
profit of the Group as well as turnover and operating profit of its
business segments and an indication of likely future development
in the Company’s business are explained in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Report of the Co-Chief Executive Officers from
pages 8 to 15 of this annual report. These indicators illustrate
the performance of the Group as a whole and of its individual
businesses in terms of business development and profitability in
attaining its corporate vision of “Towards a Century of Revered
Leadership”. The past five years’ trend of these indicators together
with other financial ratios of return on average total assets and
return on average shareholders’ funds are disclosed in pages 26 to
27 of this annual report. Particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year,
if any, can be found in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group’s liquidity and financial resources are
discussed in pages 30 to 32. Furthermore, the environmental
policies and performance of the Group are shown in pages 34 to
62 of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report. Save as
the above sections, details of the other activities required to be
disclosed are explained as follows:
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REV'EW (Continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s businesses and prospects as well as financial
conditions and results of operations will be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including business risks, operational risks
and financial risks. For business risks, all the Group’s businesses
are mainly carried out in the mainland so it will be subject to the
economic and political development and market situation of the
PRC. For operational risks, the Group is engaged in manufacturing
of chemical products and it is thus exposed to various
environmental, health and safety risks in running its operations.
For financial risks, the Group's financial assets and liabilities will
have market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk associated therewith. Details of
the policies on how to mitigate these financial risks are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

The relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Company include, among others, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622), the Cayman Islands Company Law
and the regulations in relation to its business including health,
safety and environmental protection, workplace conditions and
employment. In addition, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited apply to
the Company.

The Company seeks to ensure compliance with these requirements

through various measures such as internal control, risk
management and trainings.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REV'EW (Continued)

Relationship with Customers, Suppliers,
Employees and other Stakeholders

The Group maintains a large number of customers and suppliers,
which spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
The Group has good relationship with its customers and suppliers.
As the top 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
less than 5% of the Groups’ total turnover, the directors of
the Company considered that the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers. Further details of the
credit control system and credit terms granted to customers are
shown in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group's relationship with its employees and with investors and
shareholders are shown in pages 34 to 63 of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and in pages 85 to 104 of the
Corporate Governance Report, respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND LONG-TERM
INCENTIVE PLAN

The general description of remuneration policy of the Group is
shown in page 63 of the section headed “Human Resources”.

Long-term incentive plan primarily consists of Share Option
Schemes. Please refer to pages 206 to 211 of this report and note
29 to the consolidated financial statements for the details of the
Share Option Schemes.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 113 and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. An interim dividend of HK5 cents per share was paid
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) during
the year. The Directors propose the distribution of a final dividend
of HK10 cents per share totalling not less than HK$56,381,000 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members at
the close of business on 16 June 2017 and the retention of the
remaining profit in reserves.
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NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES

Details of movements in the number of issued shares of
the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The shares are issued pursuant to the exercise of the share options
under the Share Option Schemes (as defined in the section headed
“Share Options”).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 116 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution of the final
dividend represent the share premium, special reserve and
retained profits. Under Chapter 22 of the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available
for distribution of or paying dividends to Shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
share premium and retained profits of the Company, which
amounted to HK$917,386,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$665,488,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in notes 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

73



EEIRE Governance Report

ESEREE

Directors’ Report

74

EERBRBEH

FAMBEAREAMABILARRIZES

mF

IR FYTESE:
B

BITES !
Erer it (BT FERBETRAR)
(R=T—RF-HA—RAE
BRI EITHAEE)
BEREEEFTHAEED)
(R—ZE—RF—A—HEEE)
Fresea (B A T AREL)
(R=T—RF-A—-REHE
BIITRESTERER
BETREHENRITESR)
s e A4 (BT 4850
FPEIAR ST A4

FHITES :
BERE
BYFHTES
ERS L

HESEE
R@FRE

ERCIEEMBERIA - —TRFEFR

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and as at the date of this report
were:

Chairman & Non-executive Director:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Deputy Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 1 January 2016)
Mr. Wong Kam Yim (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)
Mr. Wong Yuk (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned as Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director with effect from 1 January 2016)
Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Kong Chi
Mr. Ku Yuen Fun
Mr. Ng Siu Ping
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Mr. Ho Sai Hou and Mr. Kwong
Kwok Chiu, being Executive Directors, will retire by rotation
at the annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at
the forthcoming AGM. All remaining Directors will continue in
office. Each of the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for a specific term until the closing of
the next annual general meeting at which he is being re-elected
by the Shareholders.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The fees of the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board.

The emolument payable to the Directors is determined with
reference to their qualification and experience, responsibilities
undertaken, contribution to the Company and the prevailing
market level of remuneration of similar position.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, at 31 December 2016,
the interests of the Directors and their respective associates in
the shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required
(a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under
such provision of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

e Long positions
R ERARIABR A HoB-AE
Number of Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares held +=A=+-8
RiER — RAER gy 53 BRERR BEARBRORE
Interests in ZERL
Interests in  Interests in Interests in Share Percentage of the
Shares Shares Shares Options' Issued Share Capital
A Rk A A ag of the Company
BEpg Name of Directors Personal Family Corporate Personal Total as at 31.12.2016
EEREE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 155,042,532 8,802,000 (a) 24,380,000 (b) - 188,224,532 33.38%
Ereras Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 33,540,248 14,000,000 (c) - - 47,540,248 8.43%
TrREE Mr. Wong Yuk - - - - - -
fEELE Mr. Ho Sai Hou - - - 200,000 200,000 0.04%
BERLE Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu - - - 200000 200,000 0.04%
EEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung - 700,000 (d) - - 700,000 0.12%
BELAE Mr. Wong Kong Chi - 100,000 () - - 100,000 0.02%
HEARA Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 20,680 14,000 (f) - - 34,680 0.01%
REBTRA Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2,532,000 50,000 (g) - - 2,582,000 0.46%

76 ERCIEEMBERIA - —TRFEFR



EEEREE

Directors’ Report

BEERERETHRAERE
Ao EZRRE @

s 4C §)

Mt

(a)

(b)

SRR E S 6,796,0000% B 4
mMEFR2EBLTHREIFE © 2,006,000
BRAIBEEZE TS -

ERNHRA—HMEESKESEESS
PR A A] 2 3 & #8 £5(20,300,0004% ) Al —
HEKBAECEESERARZBRA
71(4,080,0000% ) FT¥5 B - EEK L&
REEKREZESERARMERBEE
EEESBRARNBRREAES S
50% (H2EEZFHE100%) K%60% (FEE
PEREE100%) 2B FEHE - WG AE
BEZMER AL SRMD 2N -

WERNAXRFHELZZETFEERE
LA -

IERMNAEEREEZZEFEBOL
THAE -

WERNAEESELEZEFENELX
THAE -

WEROALTERFEEZEFHUEL
THAE -

WEROARBIEEZEFEINKL
THAE -

FTEBRERELLMEMBEERRITE
TA-

EFHEARRIBRES S (A E D HEK
D) TR ARBREZFHIEA LT 6B
Pt ] o

RERESE  EFHEEREERELE
FRERZLERHBARRZMBEARE
REE(EE)AR AR 2 EREEILER
_Hﬁ °

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECUR'T'ES (Continued)

Long positions (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

®

Out of these shares, 6,796,000 shares are jointly held with Madam
Liang Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing and 2,006,000 shares are
held by his wife.

These shares are held respectively by Ip Chi Shing Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable organisation (20,300,000 shares)
and Yip's Care Extension Foundation Limited, a limited company,
(4,080,000 shares). Mr. Ip Chi Shing controls 50% (together with his
wife control 100%) and 60% (together with his younger sister and
brother control 100%) of the voting power at the general meetings
of Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited and Yip’'s Care
Extension Foundation Limited respectively. He is therefore deemed to
be interested in these shares held by these two corporations.

These shares are held by Madam Yip Tso Ka Lai, Brenda, the wife of
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin.

These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong
Wui Tung.

These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong
Kong Chi.

These shares are held by Madam So Yim Ha, the wife of Mr. Ku Yuen
Fun.

These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng
Siu Ping.

All the share options are unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

Details of the share options held by the Directors under the
Company’s existing share option scheme (i.e. part of the interests
in the underlying shares) are shown in the next section headed
“Share Options”.

Each of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Madam Liang Bih
Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, holds one non-voting deferred
share of Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECUR'T'ES (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in
subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors,
chief executive nor their associates held any interests or short
positions in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Shareholders at the AGM held on 25 May 2012 approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the old share option scheme
which was adopted by the Company on 3 September 2002 (the
“QOld Share Option Scheme”, together with the “New Share
Option Scheme”, collectively known as “Share Option Schemes”).
The New Share Option Scheme will expire on 24 May 2022.
Options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the rules thereof. The main purpose of the New Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and motivate the contribution of eligible
participants, to provide incentives to them, to help the Company
retain eligible participants and recruit additional employees and to
provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long
term business objectives of the Company. Particulars of the New
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, movements in the
number of options which had been granted to certain Directors

ENEEBREZEEIT and employees under the Company’s Share Option Schemes are as
follows:
BREHE
Number of Share Options
R=B-R§ RoB-RE
-fA-H REE ’E +ZB=t-A
REAH ke BRECHED WA B BAN/EH HATE
Exercise Exercise period Outstanding Exercised Lapsed/Cancelled  Outstanding
Date of grant price of share options asat 1.1.2016 during the year  during the year as at 31.12.2016
BT
HKS
ES
Directors
It FEE “E-ZE-AT-H 592 ZF-RE-At-AZ 200,000 - - 200,000
Mr. Ho Sai Hou “Z--F-F+H
11 January 2013 11 January 2015 to
10 January 2023
BERTE I A= 592 “E-nE-AT-AE 200,000 - - 200,000
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu I S
11 January 2013 11 January 2015 to
10 January 2023
400,000 - - 400,000
EFAL
Eligible Persons'
“ZZ+ENA=A 4050 —ET+EMA=HZE 478,000 _ (326,000) 152,000
“T—+ENACA
3 April 2007 3 April 2007 to
2 April 2017
“ET\E+AZT-H 1950 —“EZ\FE+A=+-H% 320,000 (100,000) - 220,000
ZE-\ETA=TH
31 October 2008 31 October 2008 to
30 October 2018
“ZTNE+ARR 453% —ETNETAREZE 1,050,000 _ (340,000) 710,000
“Z-NFTARA
5 October 2009 5 October 2009 to
4 October 2019
“F-=F-f1-H 5942 “E-RE-At-HZE 5,560,000 _ (820,000) 4740000
Z3C=E-A1H
11 January 2013 11 January 2015 to
10 January 2023
7,408,000 (100,000) (1,486,000) 5,822,000
7,808,000 (100,000) (1,486,000) 6,222,000

' EOEREERRE AT A ERE
BATEFREBRENE DB EF S

FETALL

! Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1
January 2016 and his number of share options was transferred from
“Directors” to “Eligible Persons”.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no option was granted
to Directors or employees. In respect of the options exercised
during the year, weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised was HK$2.544 (adjusted by the Stock Exchange).

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December
2016, the following shareholders (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company disclosed above) had interest in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positons

—E—-XRE
+=B=+—~H
HARAR B BT
BREZBDL
Percentage of
the issued share

[

[ A8

FERFEER iR EE capital of the
Name of Substantial 514 Number of Company as at
Shareholder Capacity shares held 31.12.2016
ERFR L EDBEAA 47,547,913 8.43%
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen Beneficial Owner
FMR LLC BT (FHED) 37,702,000 6.69%
Investment Manager (Note)
B &E Note:

REFEHFRBERY  RZT—XF+=A=
+—H ' FMR LLCH# R &% H37,702,0000% 24
NP 2 - MFMR Co., InciiEA Lt

Betn -
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Under the SFO, as at 31 December 2016, FMR LLC was deemed to be
interested in 37,702,000 shares of the Company, which were held by FMR
Co., Inc.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person,
other than the interests disclosed above in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”,
had notified the Company of an interest or short position in the
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group's total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, their associates
or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the Company’s corporate governance is set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 86 to 104.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016 and at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares capital as required under the Listing Rules.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the New Share Option Scheme and the Old Share
Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$3,494,772.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that each
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director,
Auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance to cover
Director’s and officer’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and officers arising out or corporate activities.

Such permitted indemnity provisions have been in force
throughout the year under review and is currently in force at the
time of approval of this report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group paid rent
of HK$960,000 and HK$600,000 to Goldex Investments Limited
and Galsheer Investments Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip
Chi Shing (the controlling shareholder of the Company and
the Director) and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (the Director), have beneficial
interests respectively.

Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director, an entity connected with a director, and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or its subsidiary companies had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

On 10 November 2016, Atlantic Treasure Limited, Midland Realty
(Comm.) Ltd. and Radiant New Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a provisional agreement for the sale
and purchase of 27th Floor and Space Nos. 3 and 4 on 1st Floor,
Fortis Bank Tower, Nos. 77, 78-79 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong (the
“Property”). The sale and purchase of the Property was completed
on 18 January 2017. The said Space No. 4 of the carpark space
was rented to an independent third party at a monthly rental of
HK$4,400 until 28 February 2017. The Property is currently held
by Radiant New Limited for the purpose of self-use office.

CONTRACTS CONCERNING
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

Save for employment contracts with directors and full time
employees of the Company, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any principal
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during
the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who shall retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017



EEEARE
Corporate Governance Report

RV
RABBRNEFRRKEZ BEER - DIZ
NEEHES BE - HEDN - nEEH
MRS 2 BEBRSEAE RREM
IR ABIZ - ARAREHZ_T—
NFETZAZ+T—BIEFER BRUER
YIRBEE SN 0 KRR ETHRAHE
FEmRANT EmARR DK s +mzl &
¥TATARCEE RS (PR -
ARBITERIREZEZESHNEREER
Tt —&n EE AR I (FRIHEE
A5 1IBZEA5.418) °

EHRAREBETESER
5 RS Al
ARFERM LT RAEH LD ATET
BHR SN HROEETR (R
T NIFAEERTTES T DT AR
2 RSN - ARAREES
WRERE-B—~FT-A=t—BI
FETMTRETARTORE -

Statement of Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to achieve the Group’s objectives
of maximizing values for its employees, customers, suppliers,
business partners and shareholders, and safeguarding the interests
of them. The Company has complied with all code provisions of
the “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
except that the Company does not have a nomination committee
on the ground as stated under the section headed “Composition
of the Board” (CG Code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4).

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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The Board

The Board’s principal duties are setting policies, monitoring
the execution of such policies, and providing supervision and
assistance to the overall management of the Group.

Composition of the Board

As of the date of this annual report, the Board is chaired by Mr.
Ip Chi Shing and comprised a total of nine Directors, namely,
four Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The number of Independent
Non-executive Directors represents one-third of the Board as
required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Each of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is
appointed for a specific term until the closing of the relevant
annual general meeting at which he is being re-elected by the
Shareholders. The list of Directors with their roles and functions
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

With effect from 1 January 2016, Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned
as an Executive Director of the Company and Mr. Wong Yuk was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on the even
day.

Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section of
Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles on pages 64 to 69.
Mr. Ip Chi Shing who is the Chairman is the brother of Mr. Yip
Tsz Hin who is a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Save as
disclosed above, the Directors are not otherwise related to each
other.

The Company has received annual confirmations from all
three Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
still considers the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent. Two of the Independent Non-executive Directors
possess the appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
related financial management experience.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to
ensure that it has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group's
business to discharge its responsibilities effectively. Currently, the
Board is responsible for the nomination and appointment of new
directors. The Company considers it is more beneficial and efficient
for the full Board to perform the functions of the nomination
committee.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Policy
is summarized as follows:

e The selection of candidates of the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

e  The Board will report on the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Policy.

e  The Board will review the Policy at appropriate times so as to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board reviewed its
composition and structure in accordance with the Policy.

The Company has adopted procedures for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. Mr. Wong Yuk, a newly appointed
Executive Director is offered a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction upon his appointment.

Directors and officers liability and company reimbursement
insurance coverage has also been arranged.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board

ESERERATRHER

Regular Board

During the year ended 31 December 2016, five regular Board
meetings, eight other Board meetings and one Non-executive
Directors meeting were held by the Board. The attendance of each
Director at these meetings is shown in the table below:

EESHMEBELER
Other Board

HITES: Executive Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance

BFHEE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 5/5 8/8

Fk4E Mr. Wong Yuk 5/5 6/8

IS4 Mr. Ho Sai Hou 5/5 8/8

BRI R e A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu 4/5 2/8

EZgEAEBLEE ESTHMESRHRESR

Regular Board Other Board

FHITES : Non-executive Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance

BEEREE(ER) Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) 5/5 1/8

BB E Mr. Tong Wui Tung 5/5 1/8

ESgEfeBEEX ESTHMHSBRUREER

Independent Non-executive Regular Board Other Board

BYFHTES: Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance

mEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 5/5 0/8

HEERE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 5/5 1/8

RBFEAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 5/5 1/8
5T Remark:

E-_Z—RE+-H=T—HILFERETH
BEHANEZEEEE IREBRTIRESS
BElew HRESEFHERSLFRES
S2H - BRRITEEERAGHIN  EFEN_-F
—REETERT EEMEESSE A
BEAREBRIHEEGEREIWATRLE
ZEH o

EEE_ZT—RFT+_A=+—HILFE
N EEETFEIFRITIBLIFRNITE
FROTT - RAEBERTERHFOEE

Five regular Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2016, which involved the active participation in person by all the attending
Directors. Besides these regular Board meetings, eight other Board meetings
were convened during 2016 to approve routine business or discuss any
matters that required the Board's timely attention.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Chairman of
the Board held a meeting with all Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of
Executive Directors.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the role of the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
included, amongst others, ensuring that the Directors have access
to all necessary information and that all Board procedures were
followed. The Company Secretary was also responsible for offering
opportunities of continuing professional development to all
Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to help
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Directors were also provided with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. The
Company Secretary, Mr. Ho Sai Hou, is a full time employee of
the Company. Mr. Ho confirmed that he fulfilled the requirement
of taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year under review.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Company, from time to time, provides in-house trainings for
the Directors in the form of seminars, workshops and reading
materials on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations, management, financial and business issues to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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The Board (Continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(Continued)

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in various
professional development seminars and courses. A summary of
training received by Directors during the year ended 31 December
2016 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:

$EHE B
Type of Trainings
BER/HEE BAEM B R
R BB S kS E wL2E
Seminars and/or
conferences and/ Reading and

B85 Directors: In-house training of forums on-line studying
HEKELE(ERE)  Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) v v/
EERSE Mr. Tong Wui Tung v/ v/ v
HFEEE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin v/ v
=mBEE Mr. Wong Yuk v v/
At SR 4 Mr. Ho Sai Hou v v v
FREIRR S A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu v/ v
HEELSEE Mr. Wong Kong Chi v

HERF A Mr. Ku Yuen Fun v
RBFEAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping v v
ExgRE Delegation by the Board

EFe/ARAINESENER KRR
BERE  RENEEKE  REBETEEE
SREEMNBR  HEILENTERHES
SELRENEBAGHAGA - EHE
“E-ARFTZAZTRALEERN &
ERTR - BHEEREEET - 528
RER—FE—A"F-A—-BEFREEET
B BEFEathERELARAE
BT REERETRAAE ([BEITHRE
) - AT ERATIR - AARIKILT BEE
BEK(REEFK ) (TR SERTEE
g BhBETHARETHELENRTE
BEEBEESFEGEKRZTIE - UL
RER/TEERBNOFIEIFERES
EORENREEBEEEERRBANE
TERORE -

The Board, as the highest governing board, is collectively
responsible for leading, planning and controlling the businesses
of the Group, and also for performing the corporate governance
duties and functions as more specifically set out in the list
of matters reserved for the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the position of the Chairman of the Board
was held by Mr. Ip Chi Shing. With effect from 1 January 2016,
Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as the Chief Executive Officer and
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Mr. Wong Yuk were appointed as the Co-
Chief Executive Officers (the “Co-CEOs"”) of the Group with
effect from the even day. As disclosed in the section below, the
Company established the Senior Leadership Team (“SLT") (formerly
known as “Group Executive Committee”). Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and
Mr. Wong Yuk, the Co-CEOs, currently oversee the work of SLT.
The above structure is to ensure a clear distinction between the
Chairman’s duty to manage the Board and the management’s
duty to oversee the overall internal operation of the Group.
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The Board (continued)
Delegation by the Board (Continued)

The Board has delegated to SLT with broad management
responsibilities including, but not limited to, formulating and
implementing policies and business strategies, as well as
supervising the performance of the Group’s different business
segments. SLT currently comprises a total of eight members, four

of which are Executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Yip
Tsz Hin, Mr. Wong Yuk, Mr. Ho Sai Hou and Mr. Kwong Kwok

Chiu.

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained
and is subject to regular review. The more important matters
include:

setting of long term objectives and strategies

approving preliminary results announcements

approving annual budgets

approving major capital expenditure, acquisitions and
disposals

establishing risk management policies

approving notifiable transactions and connected transactions
declaring and recommending the payment of dividends
appointing new directors

establishing Board committees

reviewing and monitoring of internal control and risk
management

reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance and compliance with CG Code
approving major policies and guidelines

Senior Leadership Team (“SLT")

SLT members

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Mr. Wong Kam Yim

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)
Mr. Wong Yuk

Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Mr. Ip Kwan

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong

Ms. Yau Ching Man

(appointed with effect from 1 January 2016)
Ms. Tse Yik Chu

(appointed with effect from 1 January 2017)
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The Board (Continued)
Duties and responsibilities

e Assist the Board in setting the policies and strategies
o Execute the policies and strategic plans set by the Board

o Supervise the businesses of the subsidiaries
e Assist and co-ordinate the operations of subsidiaries, and
maximize the benefits for the Group

Currently, there are three committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Health, Safety and Environment
Committee. All the Board committees are empowered by the
Board under their own terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee and
Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee was formed in June 2005. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Ng Siu Ping was the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. Major roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include:

o establishing a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy

e making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management

o determining the remuneration packages of all individual
Executive Directors and senior management

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is

available on the Company’s website, HKEx's website and from the
Company Secretary upon request.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting and the attendance of each member
at this meeting is shown in the table below:

HER
24=] Member Attendance
REBTFxAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 11
EERR I E Mr. Tong Wui Tung 1/1
mEERE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 11
HRF L Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 11
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In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee:

reviewed the reward schemes for the SLT and the General
Managers of the subsidiaries

reviewed the principles and policies of the remuneration
structure of the Group’s Executive Directors and senior
management with reference to an external consulting report,
and submitted recommendations to SLT for further discussion
assessed the performance of executive directors and approved
the remuneration packages of the Group’s Executive Directors
and senior management effective from 1 January 2017
after considering market remuneration levels of comparable
companies in the market

Directors’ emoluments consisted of payments to Directors in

connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The fees paid to each Director and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised
one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors and was chaired by Mr. Wong Kong Chi. Major duties of
the Audit Committee include:

e reviewing financial information of the Group

o overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system,
management and internal control procedures

o monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor

risk

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on
the Company’s website, HKEx's website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended

—BHIEFERIT TSGR SKERE 31 December 2016 and the attendance of each member at these
ez HEREEYINT - meetings is shown in the table below:

HE =
24=] Member Attendance
RIBFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4
BEELSE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4
R E Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
FERR A Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4
EZEgHET  EREES In these meetings, the Audit Committee:

s UAXREE-_ZT-—RAFFER-T— e reviewed the 2015 annual and 2016 interim results before
NERHERRERESTSRERY submitting to the Board for approval and in doing so, the
HETER - TETEHNNARE committee focused on material deviations of the Group's

FBERZESHEIRAKERRE
HIEFEBEZERREE UEH
i EEREASHRECZZESR
B NETAEREREERT
o EHAIBEIHoHE  HAHE
FFEERERERETH® - R
NEERT RN ERES B R AFS
FET I RE 2 BN #E A N EBEEET
FT &

performance from past year’s results, major areas of
judgment, selection and application of accounting policies

and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

o received reports from the internal audit department,
discussed material findings with the head of internal audit,
reviewed the adequacy of resources of the internal audit
department and effectiveness of the internal audit function
and approved the internal audit plan
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The Audit Committee (Continued)

e reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems in accordance with established
guidelines and procedures

o discussed the audit plan with the Group’s external auditor
and assessed its independence with reference to its policies
for maintaining independence and reviewed the extent of
non-audit services provided

o considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function

o approved the audit fees paid to the Group’s external auditor

An Audit Committee meeting was held on 16 March 2017 to
review the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Health, Safety and Environment
Committee

The HSE Committee was established on 1 January 2012 in order to
enhance the importance of the health, safety and environmental
protection works to the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the HSE Committee comprised three Independent
Non-executive Directors members and was chaired by Mr. Ku Yuen
Fun. Major duties of the HSE Committee include:

e  the adoption and renewal of the Group’s health, safety and
environment policies

e the determining of the Group’s appetite for health, safety
and environment risk

o managing the Group’s monitoring environment for health,
safety and environment matters, including organization
structure, reward and punishment systems, resource inputs,
operation culture, etc.

The terms of reference of the HSE Committee is available on
the Company’s website and from the Company Secretary upon
request.
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The Health, Safety and Environment
Committee (continued)

ZEReNHE_T—ARF+-_A=1+—H During the year ended 31 December 2016, the HSE Committee
IFFERTTHOREE  SKEREHES held four meetings and the attendance of each member at these
H2 R EREHEAT meetings is shown in the table below:

HER
24= Member Attendance
mRFEAE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
ERESRE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4
REBFxHE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4
EZEe%h  REe In these meetings, the HSE Committee:

o EHHEBELE@EFERFRA
FREBERERTE

EHR

e FERHTFEEERN="FREZZ

RIRET 8

s EERELERABEMNEENLH

FEEHLEKE

e REFHERBBNEFIBEMLZE
&F%%E’J%ﬁi CHERET AR

FE PR 2 E

BERZE

ESERZBMEARNEL

EEAR

AREREAEBEPHRE MIRE
FRREMAEZEE - LR
ZRB R RATRELSE

YN
B R E

2 7Hh - EFE W T MBI AT B HAR
SEEEFSEREZRNEERERLR

ZERTHEERE °

RBE 2 MERBERSE

SR EE IR S AR -

105E 1128 2 %

R EE R AR E R

ARABRENEBETIEE ©

MR ERR

—RNEFEKT - BT R NP IER
FFrEmRAEEEBR - W ABEEE
RGO AR PR - NES BT B AR
ey %@E’; %ﬁiﬁ%ﬁiéﬁﬁ%‘%%ﬁ
TREZEZER

o reviewed the annual inspection report on factories drafted by
the Group’s HSE Department
o reviewed the 3-year HSE reports drafted by subsidiaries

o supervised the implementation of HSE policies as well as
attended safety inspection of an operating site

e followed up the new regulations in relation to the HSE
passed by the authority and ensured the compliance of the
new rules and control the operation risk

Accountability and Audit
Directors’ and Auditor’s responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and their announcements
to shareholders and commit to the presentation of a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditor’s reporting responsibilities are stated in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 105 to 112.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an internal audit function. The internal audit
department was set up in 1997 to monitor independently the
implementation of the internal control procedures, compliance
with group policies and to make recommendations on the
effectiveness of the internal control systems. The head of internal
audit reports to Ms. Yau Ching Man, the Head of Operations of
the Group and a member of SLT, and to the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company
and reviewing their effectiveness. The risk management and
internal control systems ensure the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget,
internal audit and financial reporting functions of the Group.
The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The business risks are identified through a detail review on
all business aspects conducted annually. Their risk level and
associated controls effectiveness are assessed based on a set of
approved standards. Additional measures are identified if it is
deemed to be necessary to further control the identified risks. The
result of the detail review is documented in the Risk Register for
half yearly review. For assurance purpose, the assessment of the
risk management system effectiveness is covered in the Internal
Audit process.

The Board adopted the Group Information Policy and Guidelines
for Handling Inside Information in 2013 and revised the aforesaid
policy and guidelines on 1 December 2016. The Group formed
a team to manage and control the inside information (the "IS
Team"”). The IS Team members include any Board members,
the Chief Financial Officer, a representative from the Company
Secretarial Department and any authorised persons. The IS Team
members review and monitor the Group’s activities to identity
if there is any inside information and to make any accurate and
adequate disclosure.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group established
a risk management team. The team is responsible for identifying
the risk of the Group, managing the risk and reporting their duties
to the SLT regularly. The SLT reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems for the period from 1 June 2015 to 31
May 2016 and the risk management annual report was submitted
to the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(Continued)

The Board oversees the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, is conducted by the Board at least annually.
The effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems was reviewed by the Board at the Board meeting held
on 19 August 2016 to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks. The Board confirmed that the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems for the period from
1 June 2015 to 31 May 2016 was reviewed and is considered
effective and adequate. The Board will review the same for the
second half year of 2016 in the year of 2017.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee paid/payable to
the Group's external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is
set out as follows:

/B

Fee paid/payable

FHET

iRt 2 BR 7% Services rendered HK$'000

ENZIRT Audit services 4,250
FEBEZIRTE Non-audit services

EH R ERE Interim review 720

RS
ARBRE—EERINRD - FIERNDE
HRMNKRENBRESEIRNEE ° X
Rz (R EAMEIRIN) EFISNARFN
BYIBESERZAAN(E7ERAA]) M
ERBRANE -

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the
same voting rights and are entitled to all dividend declared. The
rights of the shareholders are set out in, amongst other things,
the restated articles of association of the Company (the “Restated
Articles”) and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
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Rights and Procedures for Shareholders
to convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Restated Articles, a general meeting
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
shareholders deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company which carries the rights of voting at the general
meeting.

A general meeting may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder which is a recognized
clearing house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at the
general meeting of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 28 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Rights and Procedures for Shareholders
to convene a General Meeting (continued)

Pursuant to Article 116 of the restated Articles, no person other
than a retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Board,
be eligible for election to the officer of Director at any general
meeting unless, during the period, which shall be at least 7 days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a
member of the Company (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given, of his intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the head office
and Hong Kong principal place of business of the Company, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Company by
post to the head office and Hong Kong principal place of business
of the Company or via e-mail through the Company’s website
(please refer to “Contact Us” at www.yipschemical.com).
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Shareholders’ Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders of the Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meeting to communicate with Shareholders directly.

The 2016 AGM was held on 7 June 2016. The attendance of each
Director at this meeting is shown in the table below:—

“E-RFRFRRRAGNR_T—REX
ALRBT - SEENRRERZHEE

NEHAT

AGM Attendance
BITES ! Executive Directors: BAERRASHER
HFEEE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 0/1
FrasE Mr. Wong Yuk iVAl
fAtEsEE Mr. Ho Sai Hou 1/
BB R S0 Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu 11

AGM Attendance
FHITES Non-executive Directors: BAFRRAGHESR
R EE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 11
BB E Mr. Tong Wui Tung 1/1

AGM Attendance
BYFHTES : Independent Non-executive Directors: BERRASHER
BmELLAE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 1/1
HERFEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 11
RIAFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 11

BE-_T—"F+-A=+—RALFE "

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no change in
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the Company’s constitutional documents. The latest version of the
Restated Articles of the Company is available on the Company’s
website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.

Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Group strives to maintain a high level of corporate governance
in every facet of its business; provide investors and shareholders
with accurate, transparent and timely information; and seek good
two-way communication with stakeholders.
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Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders (continued)

The Group fully understands the importance of maintaining
timely communication with investors and shareholders. For this,
the Group’s Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department regularly holds meetings with investors and
shareholders so as to build a good long-term relationship through
continuing dialogues. Immediately after the announcement of
interim and annual results every year, the Group will hold an
investor briefing or audio conference. A webcast or recorded audio
conference will also be hosted subsequently so that investors and
shareholders from Hong Kong, the mainland or the overseas will
be able to learn timely the Group’s operating performance and
major development.

After the results announcements the Group will also take the
initiative to arrange meetings or teleconferences with investors
and shareholders where the management will answer their
questions to ensure that they have a thorough understanding
of the results and development. In the annual general meeting
of shareholders every year, the Group is able to maintain good
interactive communication with shareholders through direct and
open dialogues.

In 2016, the Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department arranged around 30 face-to-face meetings or
teleconferences with shareholders, institutional investors, fund
managers and analysts from Hong Kong, the mainland and the
overseas; the department met around 50 investors from Hong
Kong, the mainland and the overseas in the year. In case of need,
it would also arrange visits of the Group's plants for investors
and shareholders so that they can understand the production
process of each of the businesses and gain a better grasp of its
operational situation.
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Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders (continued)

In addition to meeting with institutional investors, the Group
also values its communication with retail investors. Therefore
media conferences were held in the year to update media the
Group's latest development and to raise the Group’s profile at the
retail investor level. To ensure the timely and fair announcement
of important information about the Group, the Group is
extensively using its corporate website for uploading interim
and annual financial statements, announcements, press releases
and presentation materials. Investors and shareholders can thus
quickly and easily browse or download the information they need
so that they can keep abreast of the latest development of the
Group. The Group has also set up Yip's Chemical Facebook page
and WeChat subscription page for posting the Group’s latest
information regularly. The Group expects to enhance constructive
and engaging conversations with various stakeholders from Hong
Kong, the mainland and the overseas through these social media
platforms.

The Group has received widespread recognition from the
investment community for its excellent investor relations work. It
was awarded “2016 Corporate Gold Awards in Investor Relations
Benchmarking” by The Asset.
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To the Shareholders of Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip's
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 113
to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

Valuation of trade receivables

We identified the valuation
of trade receivables as a key
audit matter as the allowance
for doubtful debts is based on
estimation and judgement by
management. In determining
the allowance for doubtful
debts, management considers
the customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis
of the trade receivables.

Refer to note 20 to the
consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to
valuation of trade receivables
included:

e Obtaining an understanding
of the Group's provision policy
on trade receivables and
management’s assessment
on the recoverability of trade
receivables;

e Evaluating the reasonableness
of the Group’s provision
policy on trade receivables;

e Testing the aging analysis
of trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the relevant
sales invoices; and

e Testing the subsequent
settlements of trade
receivables, on a sample
basis, to the relevant bank-in
slips or remittance advices.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation
of inventories as a key audit
matter as the allowance for
inventories is made based on
management’s identification of
aged or obsolete inventories
and estimation and judgement
on estimating selling price of
finished goods subsequent
to the end of reporting
period. Allowance is applied
to inventories based on
assessment of net realisable
value by the management, by
considering the current market
conditions, aging analysis and
subsequent selling prices of the
inventories.

Refer to note 19 to the
consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation
to valuation of inventories
included:

e Obtaining an understanding
of the Group’s provision
policy on inventories and
management’s assessment
on the allowance for
inventories;

e Evaluating the reasonableness
of the Group’s provision
policy on inventories;

e Testing the aging analysis of
inventories, on a sample basis,
to the relevant purchases
invoices and goods receipt
documents; and

e Testing the subsequent sales
or usage of inventories,
on a sample basis, to the
relevant sales invoices or
stock movement records.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

107



Bt#& %R Financial Statements

B ZEENR &

Independent Auditor’s Report

108

FEREXEE

HREREE

BMHOFLMAE
HERRELSEE

o B A [ T J8E 23 IR 73 B ik P A 2

B EZE ZEEHE

B AIHERF BR Bt EEEEH
PEFTE R AR EPNESIEYNCIFS
bl g & a3 U
B = 2 2 RER TAETIRF B
BREREZE

B REZZE

B REE WERE T
EZEMEA REIREEFTA
AR E 7 kA &l M A RV
HIRTE ° RIRAX B2 IRET

BNkstE - &

BEMHEED b2l e

I K e B 2 )

DIREI SR - I

Bt A EHEER EEEEER

HEE - RES ZRIRIER IR

IR T S K fr] IREZHIENR

B Al AL LR TE KAZFEFEARF

sk EARF Eip N =N

Z. RIEBRENTE
nH o &

BLHREUS

A MFE25 © STHIRETR IR
BRANE TN

& ARIRSE

EREE MR
SN S8R
EREIRD
TERIEER B
HFEAAIE

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences attributable to

the undistributed profits of subsidiaries in Mainland China

We identified deferred tax
in respect of temporary
differences attributable to
the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in Mainland China
as a key audit matter, as it
involves the determination by
management on the dividend
distribution plan of these
subsidiaries. Based on the
dividend distribution plan,
management estimates the
amount to be distributed
from subsidiaries in Mainland
China and estimates the
provision for deferred taxation
accordingly. Any change to the
dividend distribution plan could
potentially have a significant
effect on the withholding tax
payable.

Refer to note 25 to the
consolidated financial
statements.

Our procedures in relation to
Group's estimation of deferred
tax on undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in Mainland China
included:

o Understanding from
management the latest
dividend distribution
plan for all subsidiaries
in Mainland China and
their judgement and
consideration thereon;

o Obtaining the movements
of the deferred taxation
accounts prepared by
management and verifying
the actual withholding tax
paid by the subsidiaries
in Mainland China during
the year; and

o Evaluating the
appropriateness and
reasonableness of the
withholding tax rate
adopted for deferred tax
calculation and discussing
with management on the
adequacy on the deferred
tax being recognised.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continueq)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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HE-T

—NF+ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RF —T—hEF
2016 2015
Bt &E FTHERT FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
| Turnover 5 8,555,646 8,584,225
SHEE R A Cost of sales (6,967,660) (7,204,662)
ER Gross profit 1,587,986 1,379,563
HA Other income 61,234 79,136
HEfh s K eS8 Other gains and losses 7 (50,004) (93,281)
HEREHEER Selling and distribution expenses (421,390) (388,624)
—RRITHER General and administrative expenses (726,439) (744,543)
MEER Interest expense 8 (59,475) (70,217)
B A% Al ) Profit before taxation 9 391,912 162,034
BiE Taxation 10 (148,744) (74,643)
IR AR Profit for the year 243,168 87,391
Hn2mE (S H )Wz Other comprehensive (expense) income:
Hig T~ e s n A2 ltems that will not be reclassified
BmMIER subsequently to profit or loss:
RAFBEE=2HEH Exchange differences arising on
MELZIENZ% translation to presentation currency (259,436) (274,633)
M B HE R Gain on revaluation of properties 47,648 =
(211,788) (274,633)
HigrgegE3 o 82 ltems that may be reclassified
BzMIEE ¢ subsequently to profit or loss:
e R AR R Net adjustments on cash flow hedges 14,215 (2,074)
B BRI R T Exchange differences arising on
EAVIERE5 translation of foreign operations (12,803) (19,929)
1,412 (22,003)
AKEEMEES Other comprehensive expense for the year (210,376) (296,636)
NE2EU(SZH )45 Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year 32,792 (209,245)
RELMF NN Profit for the year attributable to:
RNAFRE Owners of the Company 169,343 47,847
IR i A Non-controlling interests 73,825 39,544
243,168 87,391
EmEdEE (i) @REE Total comprehensive income (expense)
151058 - attributable to:
P N/NGT ) 8L Owners of the Company (11,842) (218,037)
FEIE R Non-controlling interests 44,634 8,792
32,792 (209,245)
FIR AT Earnings per share 12
HAR — Basic HK30.0 cents®&{ll HKS8.5 centsi&flll
— — Diluted HK30.0 cents#& 1l HKS8.5 centsi# Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZT—"F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2016

—E-RF —E-hF
2016 2015
i FTHET FHT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FEREEE Non-current assets
ME - WE KE&E Property, plant and equipment 13 1,597,930 1,723,360
B TS Prepaid lease payments 14 248,805 225,430
L& Investment properties I5 226,330 93,200
S Goodwill 16 69,574 69,574
EEE Intangible assets 17 1,217 2,461
BEEYE  HERRE Deposits paid for acquisition of
B+ HE ERETS property, plant and equipment
and land use rights 36,089 178,131
HiIERBNEE Other non-current asset 18 4,600 4,600
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 23 4,468 140
2,189,013 2,296,896
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 808,203 739,286
E o rEW AN EWEE  Trade and bills receivables 20 2,804,610 2,733,113
HibEU R 2 Fa~ I8  Other debtors and prepayments 20 353,591 288,567
SEU R Imabaukizher Prepaid lease payments 14 6,684 5,823
PTEEMIAE Derivative financial instruments 23 4,152 1,114
52 ERSRITIF 3K Short-term bank deposits 21
— =& B A2 H — with original maturity within
three months 49,175 22,525
—Z A= {E R 14 %5 — with original maturity more than
three months - 24,363
RITEBRA S Bank balances and cash 21 921,928 1,327,380
4,948,343 5,142,171
REBAE Current liabilities
FEfTERFR R FERT & AR Creditors and accrued charges 22 1,771,877 1,553,870
FERIBER Taxation payable 72,002 41,200
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 23 311 13,809
&8 — —F KRR H Borrowings — amount due within
one year 24 789,848 1,171,344
2,634,038 2,780,223
RBEEFE Net current assets 2,314,305 2,361,948
BEERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 4,503,318 4,658,844

14 ER{CIKEARAA - —F—
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RZT—"F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2016

—E-REF —T-AhF
2016 2015
liF THET FHT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FRnBAE Non-current liabilities
TESRIT A Derivative financial instruments 23 47 3,084
BB — —F1%5|H Borrowings — amount due after
one year 24 1,456,471 1,603,819
BIEFIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 25 41,812 7.742
1,498,330 1,614,645
3,004,988 3,044,199
BRAR #E Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 26 56,381 56,371
B Reserves 2,472,868 2,538,088
AT REELES Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 2,529,249 2,594,459
FEIE R RS Non-controlling interests 475,739 449,740
3,004,988 3,044,199

SRR _T—tHF=-A-+—HitE
RRETIEFE1I3EEFE224HMERE
Bs - WA TESEREKREE

85 BrE
B=x =

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 224 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

IP CHI SHING YIP TSZ HIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRNKDTRRZRE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRRRE TTORER EATRRR NREHRE FakEs
BE  BREE  Shae  Non  HMBE ERBE  EERE  Gpitl  Propety RERA Non-

Share  Share option distributable  Hedging Translation  Legal redemption revluation  Retained &3t controling GE
apita premmm feserve reseve  resene  resene  resee resene reseve profits  Total interests  Totdl
i Tan Tén TR TEw TR TR TEm T TR TR T
HKS000 KK 000 HKS00  HKS000  HKFOOD  HKSI000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O0D  HKSO0D  HKFOOD  HK§'000

R5-RE-F-0 At lanuary 2015 526 56696 883 67666 (38719 40098 51047 SH6 B3 1751340 2951008 449688 34006%
R Foftfor the yer = = - - - - - - STV T TR F ]
RAENEE/ERR xchange difrence arsng on
FREERAENES  transation thet wil not be
redlssfied to profit o loss - - - - - B8 - - - - B8 BOTY) (4%
THEEFABHER  Diohange difrence that may be
EfZE redlssfied to proft o loss - - - - - (1999 - - - - (1999 - (1999
BEREHRIEEE  Netacjustments on cash fow hedges - - - - o - - - - - o -
RERERAEE  Totol comprehensive expense for
the year - - - - o s3s0) - - - g e 819 (209,45)
I Subvtotal 5,276 566,980 883 67666 (93 139188 5704 SM6 38320 1799188 2732971 45480 3191451
REREEAER  Shatesissted at premium upon
BARAZEE e of s optors s m - - - = - - X N
REGROGEE,  Bpensesincured in comection wih
g st of shres - [ - = - - . - - : n . m
MREREREEE  Share optons canceled and tranfer
A to retaned profs - - (139 - - - - - - 13 - - -
£E Transfer - - - - - - 699 - - 699 - - -
BAAQFRERS  Diidends paid to owners of the
Company - (o4870) - - - - - - - (B (1408D) - (1083
EFHEATEER  Diidends pad to on<ontoling
figke shareholder of a subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - Bu) B
RIZ-RETZR At31 December 2005
=i 56311 504539 133 61666 (5953) 139188 84040 546 38321 1697638 2504459 449740 3,049
KEL Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - - 169383 169383 ;385 23168
RASnEL/EL 2R xchange diferencs arsng on
REFHAENRE  trandation thet wil notbe
redlssfied to proft o loss - - - - - (B0 - - - - (230281) (29155 (299,436)
BAEFARHES  bichange diferenc thetmay be
%E reclassiied to proft o loss - - - - - (12803 - - - - () - (1803
ﬁ% QWZHE@%‘E Net adjustments on cash fow hedges - - - - - - - - - s B s
MEENRENE G o revalation of properties
(feERE) (netof defrred tar) - - - - - - - - g - g - g
RERENEEE  Tobl comprehensie income for
the year - - - - 1A (243,08 - - hem 16933 (1184)  Med W
I Subvtotal 56371 504539 1233 67466 8208 (1038%) 84040 5416 85969 1806981 258617 494374 3076991
REREEGER  Shaesissiedatpremium upon
BRN AR eercse of share options 10 05 ) - 5 - - - - - 195 5 19
HERMEREE Shareoptionscanceled and tansfer
éﬁ”’ M\J fo retaned profis - - (128 - - - - - - 1B = - -
SAHENTZEE  Release upon deregistation of
Subsicaries - - - - - (o) (91) - - 06 - - -
g Transfr - - - - - -l - - (wom) - - -
ERAAZRERS  Diidends paid to owners o the
Company - - - - - - - - - (53563 (53563) - (3583
BAMBATEIR  Divdends paid to non-contoling
feke shereholders of subsidares - - - - - - - - - - - (1863)  (1863)
RZB-RETZE A 31 December 2016
==l 56,381 504744 595 67,666 8208 (114067 118207 5416 8599 1791300 2529249 415739 3,004988
A IR 6 4+ BB 10 T PR B K B O B BB The non-distributable reserve represents capitalisation of retained
TSR B R M ARERERER A TRIE profits of certain subsidiaries established in Mainland China for
TES ()BT EE B R A L capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds shall be
= SR Y used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production
EE(E - operations.
A 93k 2 55 TE (e 8 B B 7 BASNHT B A &) The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer
BIEAEEME 2 EFERBEA 2GS of profits of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal
F| requirements in the relevant place of registration.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-T—R"F+=-B=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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—E-RF —T—RF
2016 2015
THERT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
S e Kb Cash flows from operating activities
FREL BT A Profit before taxation 391,912 162,034
KA - Adjustments for:

BB Amortisation of intangible assets 1,203 1,260
T+ TR S 5 Release of prepaid lease payments 5,718 6,053

mE - BE& Depreciation of property,

RE2ITE plant and equipment 136,946 133,353
WEMENREEN Increase in fair value of investment properties (5,125) (19,400)
PTESRTA Fair value change on derivative financial

NREZE instruments (9,686) (13,105)
FEEH Interest expense 59,475 70,217
FEUA Interest income (18,511) (32,593)
HE GEEE Net loss on disposals/written-off of property,

R K S5tk e b plant and equipment and land use rights

{52 FR#E 2 5185 58 20,364 13,423
RIBIREMH Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 21,718 50,062
IHTFEEE Allowance for slow moving inventory 12,934 20,131
BB ERIREE 2 Amount recovered from doubtful debts

FIE (5.017) (539)
WEERARRS Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on

e vEN E58 intra-group balances 24,067 (20,370)

RETEEESEFA 2 Operating cash flows before movements
4T A R TRIE S in working capital 635,998 370,526
ZEOCENM) R (Increase) decrease in inventories (125,277) 811
B S EWIEES R EWEZYE  (Increase) decrease in trade and bills receivables
(38 h0) 4> (252,864) 574,234
HbEU AR 278318 (Increase) decrease in other debtors and
(& hn)w prepayments (94,397) 112,827
EBRANERTE Increase (decrease) in creditors and
AR ) accrued charges 322,590 (75,153)
EEFELEZR® Cash generated from operations 486,050 983,245
AR B R R 2 1 ¥ 5 %4 Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland China paid (109,250) (103,497)
REEBEREEZ Net cash from operating activities
FRERA 376,800 879,748

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ZB-R¥F —E—RF
2016 2015
FTHERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEBZRER Cash flows from investing activities
FAZR=1E A1&25 Placement of short-term bank deposits with
IS EBIRTTIE AN original maturity more than three months (100,000) (24,363)
BEYE  MELEREG Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
k2 plant and equipment (55,192) (120,741)
BEYE  MENRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (42,005) (231,245)
RREZR =8 A% H Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits with
ZREHRITIER original maturity more than three months 124,363 24,964
BEHFE Interest received 18,511 32,593
HEYE  ERERMEN  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
T b RIS 3R equipment and land use rights 3,229 910
BT 2 B3R 4 X H Net cash used in investing activities (51,094) (317,882)
RMEEB RSN Cash flows from financing activities
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (2,749,751) (3,215,122)
SAFFE Interest paid (59,475) (70,217)
ZATARE Dividends paid (53,563) (140,823)
SN ENGIER S Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
f& AR B of subsidiaries (18,635) (8,740)
HigEE Borrowings raised 2,220,907 2,906,875
ITRRAD FTIS I8 Proceeds from issue of shares 195 2,315
BINEITER Share issue expenses = (4)
RO E ZERPTH 2 FIR 4 ST Net cash used in financing activities (660,322) (525,716)
Be A eEEF Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
ORtA>) 380 (334,616) 36,150
ZKE%)]E%ZL%%&L%@%%E Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,349,905 1,342,723
EREEMEE I FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (44,186) (28,968)
AREKEF 7B & KIR4 %% Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 971,103 1,349,905
e MReEEEHDIT  Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
fETT i YNEAen Bank balances and cash 921,928 1,327,380
R=EAREIEZ Short-term bank deposits with original maturity
R AERERTT I 5K within three months 49,175 22,525
971,103 1,349,905
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General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars while the functional currency of the Company
is Renminbi (“RMB"). The reason for selecting Hong Kong
dollars as its presentation currency is because the Company
is a public company with the shares listed on the Stock
Exchange, where most of its investors are located in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading
in solvents, coatings, inks and lubricants.

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods
and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: bearer plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
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Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current or prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the
related amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets

and HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture3

Amendments to HKAS 7  Disclosure initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses*

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, or appropriate.
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2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 relevant to the Group are
described as follows:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

121



Bt#& %R Financial Statements

FEMBREME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

122

2. eI RRIETE R
R ([ FEBIBE R
EHEA NER @)

BB HREZERFE
€T R

e FIETAEBBZIEARET .
RremBEZHEmSE &
78 B 75 R 5 4 Bl BB 95K AR T %
cEBEZEERBRES MO
B AREREEH BN EM
ZEKEANZY - BRIER HAb
2HEKEFHERZEEEER
REBTESEYNBERER
et - emAaEzE
BERBSIB AR EESEE
TEEHMHEZIER - REF
BeHERE395  EEASE
BESEAREINRZSHE
BE2BEERNRBEZHSENRA

275 .

<

S

E\/

s BMREMEERE  BEMHK .
HEERESRARE —BTAH
ERERER - MIEEB G
FERIFEINRIBT —HEH LN
ERBRXRKE - ZEHERE
REBRF —EAERAAEL
BHERBRRESREHR
MIRMERBR 2B - R
BR B 1A R RS R RRE
B mamEd RETEFR
BEREHECHLES ATHER

EREX -
o - REMBERERET .

EB SR F3HN =Y
e - RER B HRE
RN - A EH IR 2
RGBEHESIABREEE -
LHRERAAERERLTT
B TEBEARIEEFS:
ZIESRMEBEBE ZRER D BEA
Bl e kAN - B BEBMEE B
ERFAH - MRA T HOH
BRENCIABEBEEERR
EIE o

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
guantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. In addition, the expected credit loss model may result
in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group’'s financial assets measured at
amortised costs.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue", HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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2.

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ’control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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2.

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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2.

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$86,948,000 as disclosed
in note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors of the Company complete
a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules"”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQ").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy share-based payment transactions);
and

3 assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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(Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of business
(see the accounting policy business combinations) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwiill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and freehold land held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held
for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
below).
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(Continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and bills receivables, other
debtors, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
ranging from 30 to 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade or other debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of
which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group are mainly derivative
financial instruments.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of an
identified financial instrument that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedging relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the
cash flow of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest rate
swap contracts).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve are transferred from the cash flow hedging
reserve and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Cash flow hedges (Continued)

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes
the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating lease, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’'s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue

from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing above.
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(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial
disposal of the Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of
a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on acquisition of foreign operations before
1 April 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency
items of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost
prevailing at the date of the acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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(Continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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4.

Critical Accounting Judgement
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumption
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying
accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries in Mainland China

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
calculation of deferred tax in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in Mainland China, and confirmed the
Group’s intention and management on the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in Mainland China.
In making the judgement, the directors of the Company
considered the overall needs of operating cash of the
Group.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement
and Key Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty (continued)
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(ii) Key sources of estimation

uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$69,574,000
(2015: HK$69,574,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Valuation of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based
on assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables.
The management identifies the doubtful debts based on
aging analysis and the subsequent settlements of the
trade receivables. In determining whether an allowance
for doubtful debts in required, the Group takes into
consideration of the customers’ credit history, settlement
patterns, subsequent settlements and aging analysis
of the trade receivables. Where the expectation of
the recoverability of trade receivables is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade receivables and allowance
for doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate
has changed. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$1,671,012,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$68,075,000)
(2015: carrying amount of HK$1,566,326,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$110,716,000)).
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uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management of the Group is responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model, and will report the valuation findings to
the board of directors of the Company to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and
liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Notes 15 and 28 provide detail information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value
of various assets and liabilities.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement
and Key Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty (continued)
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(ii) Key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in operation. Estimation of net realisable value are
based on the latest invoice prices and current market
condition. Where the net realisable value is less than
the carrying amount, impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
is approximately HK$808,203,000 (net of allowance for
slowing moving inventory of HK$21,388,000) (2015:
HK$739,286,000 (net of allowance for slowing moving
inventory of HK$27,004,000)).



FEMBREME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-T—R"F+=-B=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

ERBERTEEHR
X
BEBRENENARS HEEY
2B RERAE  EMBRITIR
SHEAARBLE -

DEER

REBAR  AREREEHBE
ERAIFSRET 225G HHED

FEOEERBDE - BOBHE - (i)
4~ (i) & e (iv) B8 o

REBEEF 2 DRETEEBOT

BE - BLEREBRBERAAN
HEEmR

Z28 - SBEREERZFKER
Em

HE — SLENBEEMBRAMN
B

HEm — ZEMNEERBMER

RENEZ SRR KM 3 2
AREBESHHEMER -

DREEMNEEDBERE RN
WA - TTESRMIARAAREBEZE
£ REMELABEZEE  HE
CEEECZAE RRITREAR
FEE AT RIEDE R o bk AmE A
RABRITRAR(AREZERE
BRRE)REZEN  BEEELE
TR B R RIRFHE ©

5.

Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold to customers during the year, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group’s reportable operating
segments under HKFRS 8 included four business divisions,
namely (i) solvents, (i) coatings, (iii) inks, and (iv) lubricants.

Principal activities of the Group’s reportable segments are as

follows:

Solvents - manufacture of and trading in raw solvents
and related products

Coatings - manufacture of and trading in coatings and
related products

Inks — manufacture of and trading in inks and
related products

Lubricants — manufacture of and trading in lubricants

products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of interest income, fair value change
on derivative financial instruments, fair value change of
investment properties, gain or loss on disposal of corporate
assets, central administration costs and interest expense.
This is the information reported to the Co-Chief Executive
Officers of the Company, the Group’s chief operating
decision makers, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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5. EXBERIEER® 5. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

PEER @) Segment information (continued)

() PEWERFE (a) Segment revenue and results
REERBBEFARES RE An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by
BN EEBREED reportable and operating segments for the year under
S 8 review is as follows:

25
R4
Reportable
BN B ik BEE segment  RHEE &a
Solvents Coatings Inks ~ Lubricants total ~ Elimination  Consolidated
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn 1A Thn
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEZE-ANETZH Year ended 31 December 2016
St-ALEE
pElie Segment revenue
HWHE External sles 510775 1690,1% 1429793 3907 8,555,646 - 8,555,646
HEREE Inter-segment sales 117,565 5,884 2,076 50 125,575 (125,575) -
bk Total 5,225,315 1,696,080 1,431,869 321,951 8,681,221 (125575) 8,955,646
= Results
nERE Seqment results 339,892 26,666 100,380 1,677 468,615 (99) 468,516
NERAEREE,  Exchange loss arising from a
EXEE(MET)  foreign curmency bank loan (note 7) (10,583)
TESRIARLEZ Fair value change on derivative
2{e(x) financial nstruments (note 7) 9,686
REMENRER (2 Gain on fair value change of
I (FsE7) investment properties (note 7) 5125
FARMA Unallocated income 21,553
RARER Unallocated expenses (42,910)
fls &R Interest expense (59,475)
Bfanad Profit before taxation 391912
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5. EXBRTEER

TEER @)
(a) PEWREREEE)

Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

£j

At

Reportable
B 21 hE Bk soment A &4
Solvents Coatings ks Lubricants total  Elimination  Consolidated

TR TR TRL TR TRL TR THL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

HEZE-RETF Year ended 31 December 2015

ST-BLER
bkl Segment revenue
Mg External sales
AEREE Inter-segment sales
4% Tota
2 Results
pip it Seqment resuls

NERTEREE 2 Exchange loss arising from a
EXER(IET)  foreign currency bank loan (note 7)
fiESBI AN EZ Fair value change on derivative

21t (MW7) financial instruments (note 7)
RENERAEZ2 Gain on fair value change of

Y (KzE7) investment properties (note 7)
RARKA Unallocated income
#HRER Unallocated expenses
HEER Interest expense
Bfianad Profit before taxation

7 $R ] 5 & EL T HM K & B9 155K
A

488300 1876316 1477148 37665 8584225 8,584,225
123,6% 14673 15,486 3 154,578 (154,578) =

5006792 1890989 1492634 348388 8738803 (154578) 8584225

135,5% 60,922 68,857 (25,519) 239,85 35 240,209

(11,632)
13,105

19,400
37,292
(66,123)
(70.217)

162,034

Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as
external sales.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT * YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 155



Bt#& %R Financial Statements

REMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. EXERIEER® 5. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
KE LW : ;
DEER @ Segment information (continued)
(b) HA&EHR (b) Other information
Ret B BRBEX D BEER Amounts included in the measurement of segment
BETIISHE profit or loss or segment assets:
EX VL)
Reportable LEEE
| B it BE segment  Corporate Ba
Solvents Coatings Inks ~ Lubricants total level  Consolidated

i Tin i T i T i
HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS000 HKS'000

BE-E-AETR  Yearended 31 December 2016

St-L5E
EEGEERE (I Additions to non-current assefs (note) 30,158 9831 27,033 1,24 68,246 28,951 97,197
N% BERFEZIE  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 51,066 m B 7326 128,946 8,000 136,946
BithsEs Release of prepaid lease payments 1452 304 929 187 5,60 109 5718
BYRE B Amortisation of intangible assets 886 - 294 - 1,180 3 1,203
REBERTE Allowance for bad and doubtful deb, net (1) 9,52 5,48 1,929 16,701 - 16,701
iELEE Alowance for slow moving inventory 138 (288) 307 2113 12,934 - 12,934
HE /HEME  FRR  Loss on disposaliwritien-off of propert,

FERTHEREZER  plant and equipment and land use rights 2,485 5319 7917 4,367 20,148 26 20,364
REMFLRE (ain on fair value change of investment

B pogets : - : : _ Gmy W
BE-Z-TETZH  Year ended 31 December 2015

St-L5E
EEGRERE (I Additions to non-current assefs (note) 147857 75,603 36,406 4499 264,365 87,621 351,986
% BERFEZNE  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39,140 4476 36,43 7,980 125,030 8303 133353
BlitheEs Release of prepaid lease payments 1532 333 %1 167 6,053 - 6,053
BYEE/EH Amortisation of intangible assets 936 - 2% - 135 5 1,260
REGERTE Allowance for bad and doubtful deb, net 10,779 20457 15,801 2,486 1953 - 49513
BEGEER Alowance for slow moving inventory 8,607 9,767 3 1719 20,131 - 20,131
HE /EEmE  FRR  Loss on disposaliwritien-off of propert,

FERTHEREZER  plantand equipment and land use rights i 4003 6,401 274 13563 (140) 1343
RENZLAE Gain on fair value change of investment

Slohs properties - - - - - (19.400) (19400)
M- ERDEESTBEERT Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Ebo

156 ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR



FEMBREME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-T—R"F+=-B=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. EXERIEER® 5. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

DEER @ Segment information (continued)

() $$E%§UR%§%%?§ (c) An analysis of the Group’s segment assets
Mo BEERDEAED and segment liabilities by reportable and
ks operating segments is as follows:

3| 28 e b bzp:] &a
Solvents Coatings Inks  Lubricants Consolidated

TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ-RE+=ZA=+—F At 31 December 2016

EE Assets
2HREEE Reportable segment assets 2,588,632 1,388,783 1,574,947 321,354 5,873,716
At RABEE Other unallocated assets 1,263,640
BABEE Consolidated total assets 7,137,356
Bf& Liabilities
2INEAR Reportable segment liabilities 842,168 460,880 429,451 51,845 1,784,344
RN Taxation payable 72,002
ELHEERE Deferred tax liabilities 41812
i RHE AR Other unallocated liabilities 2,234,210
RABAR Consolidated total liabilities 4.132,368

RZZ-FE+-A=+—-F At 31 December 2015

BE Assets
2INEEE Reportable segment assets 2,494,300 1,472,570 1,571,345 309,143 5,847,358
Hit AP EEE Other unallocated assets 1,591,709
BABEE Consolidated total assets 7,439,067
afE Liabilities
2YHEEE Reportable segment liabilities 673,895 410,457 440,939 57,590 1,582,881
FERHR Taxation payable 41,200
EERELE Deferred tax liabilities 7,742
Hit R EER Other unallocated liabilities 2,763,045
GREERE Consolidated total liabilities 4,394,868
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5. 2B EER @ 5.

Turnover and Segment Information
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(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(d) For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources
between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than short-term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, investment properties, other non-current
asset, derivative financial instruments and the
unallocated assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings and
the unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was substantially generated from
customers located in the Mainland China (place of domicile
of the group entities that derive turnover) amounting to
HK$8,016,141,000 (2015: HK$8,353,246,000). Substantially
all of the Group’s non-current assets excluding derivative
financial instruments were also located in the Mainland China
(place of domicile of the group entities that hold such assets)
amounting to HK$1,980,744,000 (2015: HK$2,170,088,000).

Major customers

No individual customer of the Group has contributed over
10% of the turnover of the Group for both reporting
periods.
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6. EEMEREEME 6. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments
ENSENTI108(ZZE—HF : 10 The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2015:
BIEZSZMemT ¢ 10) directors were as follows:
#iEs FifEs BuRunEs
Executive directors Non-executive directors  Independent non-executive directors
ESU £33 AtE L £ EER AT LT Hiy At BHEER
Yip Wong Wong Ho Kwong Ip Tong Ng Waong Ku Management

TszHin -~ Kam Yim® Yok SaiHou KwokChiu  ChiShing  WuiTung  SiuPing  KongChi  YuenFun Totl  executives
Tér TR TR TR TEm T fEr  TEm T T TEm TR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000

BECT-AETZA  Yearended 31 December 2016

:+'E¢E
EE Fess 0 - a0 40 0 - ] 0 50 W -
Efbe - Other emoluments
EeREhREN Saaries and ofherbenefs 3102 B X I ¥ RV R ) - - - R T 1]
SR MR Discretionary bonus
AL )] S R - - - - - i
UNIHE Retirement benefit scheme
contrioutions m - 90 160 134 - - - - - 597 J4]
i Total emoluments 4667 SaM B M 14 b7l 0 50 W 6B N6
§ES FiES BUHES
Evecutive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
B R AR BER 511 EER RAT Bt IR HEA Bt EREEE
Yip Wong Ho Kwong Ip Tong Ng Wong l Ku Management

TszHin - Kam Yim® SaiHou KwokChiu  ChiShing  WuiTung — SuPng  KongChi  ChakMan*  Yuenfun Total  executives
fin TH B TR T fEr A TR TR TEn TR Tin
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS00D  HK§'000 HK$1000

BECE-RETA  Yearended 31 December 205

STItER
EEk Fess 10 0 10 10 = ) 0w 50 100 W3 -
:0iE - Other emoluments
FERAMEN Saars and oter benefs 39 05 1 W0 13 . . . = T R 15
3?%”‘&%@“ Discretionary bonus
AL ® 3 08 - - - - - - W™ 1w
A IRE e Retirement benefit scheme
contributions M3 176 106 134 - - - - - - 629 662
k3 Totd emoluments 360 2686 2176 28 1389 30 0 500 100 W 10 127%
A EFrE s iITES 2 5o = B ét ¥ The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
BEURANTRAEREIET IR mainly for their services in connection with the management
HZRIE o LA EFAFIERITTES R of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
B IEITES 2N ES emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
ZVERBNATIEE ZRTS - non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their

services as directors of the Company.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 159



Bt#& %R Financial Statements

FEMBREME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. EEMEREEMNE = 6.

Directors’ Remuneration and

Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

MEE

(@ BEZT—RFTZA=+—HIE (a)
FE - LMEEZHSREMBEF
BIELEHEM£1,560,0007 T
(ZZ—H% : 1,560,000/87T) °

(b)  FBEMRBNSE 2 EAT2E (b)
FE B - AARERAEY
5 2 St BB TIRTE -

© EFFEERTBEERAAFY ©
B ATIRABE, - LA A s
S BHIREBTHRARAIE
2 R -

# RIZE-RF-A-HEZEARK #
NETES -

* RIE-RFRA=TBRREARR *
A IFITES -

@ R-T—AF—A—BEEAAT @
HITEE -

REESMUMERS A BPALRA
AEEE(ZT—0F :3fu) - A
BN EMKE - Hfu(=F
—RHEF2)EREZMEWT

Notes:

The directors’ salaries and other benefits above included
operating leases rentals of HK$1,560,000 (2015: HK$1,560,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics during the year.

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Mr. Wong Yuk were the Co-Chief
Executive Officers of the Company, and their emoluments
disclosed above included those for services rendered by them as
the Chief Executive.

Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 1
January 2016.

Retired and resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 30 June 2015.

Retired and resigned as executive director of the Company on 1
January 2016.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2015: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of
the remaining one (2015: two) individual(s) were as follows:

—E—XEFE —T—RF

2016 2015

FHET FH&TT

HK$’000 HK$'000

e N EHAER Salaries and other benefits 2,025 4,902
R ET B TR Retirement benefit scheme contribution = 138
2,025 5,040

FEVA £ B3RS BAR - AN EISALR
SHZAB(BRERES) IREHK
FRARSI B MA S EEMARE
BB 2 B Sk BERR AR AR o ks R
BEFAEMERS BEAREER

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

During both reporting periods, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director
waived any emoluments during both reporting periods.
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BEEMEREEME

HEM(ZZT—0%F : 2f0)EEZ
e gEEmT -

6. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: two)
individual(s) were within the following bands:

—EB—RF —T-0F

2016 2015

EEAH BE A

No. of No. of

employees employees

2,000,00187c 22,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
2,500,00178 7c23,500,0007 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
1 2

ERRRERE e (BB
BEZAE  WE)BEMT :

The emoluments of the management executives (including
five highest paid individuals, if any) were within the following

bands:
—E-RE —T—FRHF
2016 2015
EEA™ EE A
No. of No. of
employees employees
T IC 21,000,000 7T HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 1 2
1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,00087c  HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 6 3
1,500,001 522,000,000/t  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 2
2,000,001 75£2,500,000/87C  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 2
9 9
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7. HttsmREE

AREEE H A Yz (B8 843

7. Other Gains and Losses

The Group’s other gains (losses) comprise of:

—E—XEF —T—RF
2016 2015
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
INBIRITEREEZ Exchange loss arising from a foreign currency
B 34 518 (M 3E() R MIzE5)  bank loan (Note (i) and note 5) (10,583) (11,632)
Pt B S 40 R NS H # Fair value gain on derivative financial
BHIAXNZHTESR I A instruments of a cross currency swap
2 AR ERE contract and foreign exchange forward
(PR 3EG) 2 T 5E5) contracts (Note (i) and note 5) 9,686 13,105
NEE Sub-total (897) 1,473
HAb SN AEsR I 22 B EEHE 2 Net exchange loss arising from other foreign
HIE H 1R currency balances and transactions (17,167) (51,208)
FIERREFEE (X))  Allowance for bad and doubtful debts,
net (Note (ii)) (16,701) (49,523)
HE FEIEWE - RE &R Net loss on disposal/written off of property,
BRI FE A2 FEE  plant and equipment and land use rights (20,364) (13,423)
WA N R EE# 2 Uz Gain on fair value change of investment
(Pff5E5) properties (Note 5) 5,125 19,400
(50,004) (93,281)
MHsE Notes:
iy RNRZZE—=FNWAF "£EFE () In April 2013, the Group raised a new bank loan in

S—2xBaRxT] R
B 3X24,800,0002 Tt( # & ©
198,648,00075 7T ) ° A& INEE [E LR
BRERK AKEIZEEEREHS
HILAKE 78 SRz NS SRITEI K ©
ERBBBEA L Z AR ERINE
BITERZ FHIBE D B R K &
2324 °

(i  ANRREEFEPFEE S ERFR (ii)
Z B 2 RBRER R B
FERE R RO RIER Mt RRE
BRZE -

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

Australian dollar (“AUD") of AUD24,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$198,648,000). In order to minimise the exposure to foreign
currency risk, the Group entered into a cross currency swap
contract to hedge economically against the foreign currency
bank loan. Details of the fair value of the cross currency swap
contract and the foreign currency bank loan are set out in
notes 23 and 24 respectively.

The directors of the Company assess the recoverability of
the trade receivables on a regular basis and determine the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts after taking into
accounts of the repayment history and settlement situation of
the relevant debts.
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8.

MNEER 8.

Interest Expense

—EB-RF —T—hEF
2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RITREENFE Interest on bank borrowings 47,712 56,715
MEIEHEFE A7 S B  Net loss arising on interest rate swaps
Z B mEE R designated as cash flow hedges of
EAEZRER floating rate debts 11,763 13,502
59,475 70,217
AI_\SM . .
BR 4 A 5 A 9. Profit Before Taxation
ZE-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BRI ADEF D IR TF&  Profit before taxation has been arrived at
I8 : after charging:
B E#E Amortisation of intangible assets 1,203 1,260
ZEET B < Auditor’s remuneration 4,250 4,142
WERAESZ HZFEKA Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 6,967,660 7,204,662
ME - BERBM#E2ITE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 136,946 133,353
HEWE 2 K EHE T3 Operating lease payments in respect of
5 rented premises 22,030 22,136
FEF 3 A S BB Release of prepaid lease payments 5,718 6,053
EIKA  BIEEEHSE  Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration
(HizE6) (note 6) 667,897 683,557
WD 5T A (GEAEAD and after crediting (included in other income):
WA
FLEWA Interest income 18,511 32,593
ERERZBN/#EEE Government grants recognised 20,802 15,861
HEWACREES L Rental income (excluding direct outgoings: nil
T(—ZT—HF: (2015: HK$445,000))
445,000 7T)) 4,829 3,557
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10. %418 10.Taxation

= —F-h%F
2016 2015
FHBT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000

IRATRETE — A B KB Current tax — Mainland China
REE Current year 106,469 64,655
FEFOFR Withholding tax 36,616 15,435
143,085 80,090

FEIEFETE (FI5E25) Deferred taxation (note 25)

B Hong Kong 575 (238)
e N7 Mainland China 5,084 (5,209)
5,659 (5,447)
148,744 74,643

BB RS E G R R F
16.5%Ft& -

RIEFEAREFNBEDCERSH A
([EEMERED REEMBEIA
BRG] - RE KRB AR 2
EKE-TTN\F—A—H#EE25% -

AEBETRHBEARERLE ZHE
REAFEERERDHRMEE
BREBIS%LZFAF/HRE - pEK
ELEMBHRENT AZENBE
BRIFHERE -

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are eligible as High and New Technology Enterprise,
and are entitled to an income tax rate of 15%. EIT of
Mainland China has been provided for after taking these tax
incentives into account.
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10-ﬁlﬁ(%) 10.Taxation (Continued)
HAd rA#ER 2 MBI IRB B FDA Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
R ERBRTH - prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
MIBZHERERWT - A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
ZE-RF —E-A0F
2016 2015
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
G 0ping Profit before taxation 391,912 162,034
BAM TS E25% Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate
SHE 2 BIAR B of 25% (2015: 25%)
“ET—AF :25%) 97,978 40,509
T T BTS2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
2 tax purposes 27,167 36,331
ERYFHOW A LTS 2  Tax effect of income not taxable for
-2 tax purposes (2,676) (9,104)
AT LARESR AT 18 & 18 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Eapihis 7 44,359 35,409
B Z FIARERR IR Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
BRERE 2 previously not recognised (7,920) (10,387)
HAMBAR ZEEFKE  Effect of income tax on concessionary rates
HEEH o2& for certain subsidiaries (53,242) (28,904)
RO FIFEIRL 2 22 Effect of withholding tax on undistributed
profits 42,033 10,033
H Others 1,045 756
ARFEERIA Taxation for the year 148,744 74643
N0 PTAS BB R T 5 AR & B KB The domestic income tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction
DEBAERIEER 2T o where the operation of the Group is substantially based.
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1.8 11.Dividends
—EB-RF —ET—hEF
2016 2015
FHET FA&T
HK$°000 HK$'000
RERNER BIREE 2 AXE : Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
ZE—RNFEFRHEE Interim dividend for 2016 of HK5.0 cents
FA%5.07E1 (2015: HK10.0 cents) per share
(Z==—A%F:
F8210.0%40) 28,191 56,330
“E-RFRRIRE Special dividend for 2015 of HK4.5 cents
%4550 (2015: final dividend for 2014 of
—E—RF: HK15.0 cents) per share
T -NFERERE
A% 15.0710L) 25,372 84,493
53,563 140,823

EXZZBREFHBE_T—RF
ToA=+—HIEFEREERI0
Al - #2542 1056,381,0008
T WA R RTZ RRE

FREG LIRFHE

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

A dividend equivalent to HK10 cents per share totalling not
less than HK$56,381,000, in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016 has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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12.3RER

ARBRREEERERREFHE
BN TIRETIEMFTE

12.Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

—E-RE —ZT—FHF
2016 2015
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
IERN TR FE(EH A Profit for the year attributable to owners of
MErEGRERR the Company and earnings for the
BHERAN 2 BT purposes of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 169,343 47,847
gk =]
Number of shares
T B F iz
‘000 ‘000
FESRERETZ Weighted average number of shares for the
N s purpose of calculating basic earnings
per share 563,810 563,320
AR T mRES 2 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
HETE
A Share options 50 378
STEFRESRARN Weighted average number of shares for the
DN AR SR purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share 563,860 563,698
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13.9% - BMERRE

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

Bk
£EBR
HELE BAERE
R#F  Furniture,
EEIE  Leasehold fixtures AE BER#ES
Construction land and  and office Motor  Plant and &t
in progress buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery Total
TEx BT BT TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAE AT COST
W=—F—hF—A—H At 1 January 2015 101,142 830,482 174,991 47,354 1,185,496 2,339,465
INEEEZEHE Currency realignment (5,612) (47,054) (4,975) (2,197) (68,580) (128,418)
BB Reclassifications (98,055) 89,000 5,462 - 3,593 -
hE Additions 79,427 6,845 13,539 2,025 202,685 304,521
&/ Disposals/written off (1,593) (2,732) (23,619) (4,910) (51,139) (83,993)
RZE—RE+A At 31 December 2015
=+-H 75,309 876,541 165,398 42,272 1,272,055 2,431,575
INEREEER Currency realignment (5,173) (48,212) (7,758) (2,628) (77,035) (140,806)
EX v Reclassifications (38,243) 28,820 1,696 - 7,727 -
hE Additions 14,763 80,874 17,027 1,665 55,904 170,233
HE /H Disposals/written off - (503) (7,616) (4,517) (23,952) (36,588)
sHER Surplus on revaluation - 50,627 - - - 50,627
BAREME Transfer to investment properties - (115,180) (9,439) - - (124,619)
R-ZE—R&E+=A At 31 December 2016
=1+—H 46,656 872,967 159,308 36,792 1,234,699 2,350,422
RERABE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RZE-h%—A—H At 1 January 2015 - 179,963 102,770 30,781 375,541 689,055
INELE =S Currency realignment - (12,678) (3,096) (1,520) (27,239) (44,533)
FRME Depreciation for the year - 31,135 19,570 4,424 78,224 133,353
HE /e 5 Eliminated on disposalAwritten off - (3,200) (20,117) (4,229) (42,114) (69,660)
R-Z—H%+=RA At 31 December 2015
=g - 195,220 99,127 29,456 384,412 708,215
INELEER Currency realignment - (17,599) (470) (2,262) (31,008) (51,339)
FRME Depreciation for the year = 29,915 17,874 3,460 85,697 136,946
HE /e Y Eliminated on disposalAwritten off - (334) (4,927) (2,663) (5,652) (13,576)
BAREMER K Elimination on transfer to
investment properties - (23,573) 4,181) - - (27,754)
RZE—"E+=A At 31 December 2016
=H - 183,629 107,423 27,991 433,449 752,492
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZE—7"E+=A At 31 December 2016
= g 46,656 689,338 51,885 8,801 801,250 1,597,930
R=F—h%+=A At 31 December 2015
=1+—H 75,309 681,321 66,271 12,816 887,643 1,723,360

EXFmtz Y - BB MBI R TIABEAR

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

ERIA T ERFTE depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:
FAE i VATE 492 1) e 5 B 5k Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining term
2% UBEEEHE of the lease or 2%
BF VATEAY 2 i BREE HA Sk Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining term

2.5% @ AEREE
4.5%%25%

of the lease or 2.5%

R - RER Furniture, fixtures and office  4.5% to 25%

MANERE equipment
B 9%ZE25% Motor vehicles 9% to 25%
R K B 6%%=20% Plant and machinery 6% to 20%
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14. 78+ A€

14.Prepaid Lease Payments

—E-REF —T—hEF
2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AREEFEN LIS BIE © The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
BEAIMDRIFH Leasehold land outside Hong Kong
ZHEE T 255,489 231,253
DITERSE R - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
JEMBNE EE Non-current assets 248,805 225,430
MENVEE Current assets 6,684 5,823
255,489 231,253
15. REW%E 15.Investment Properties
FAT
HK$°000
DffE FAIR VALUE
W—ZE—hF—HF—H At 1 January 2015 73,800
ANAEE Increase in fair value 19,400
NZZTE—RE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2015 93,200
SN 4L KR Currency realignment (3,780)
B - BERREEA(MFE) Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note) 96,865
BB LA S A (BEE) Transfer from prepaid lease payment (Note) 34,920
RN E Increase in fair value 5,125
RZE—ARFE+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2016 226,330

AEBREMEZAABETIRER

SEYBBEZBIAER
EED - ZRBEBRFEERD
RERRETZHEERE

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties have

HEfE been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at the
EIEDA end of the reporting period by an independent qualified

professional valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, not connected

with the Group.
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15. 8REWM#E»

HEDEAERLEEETE - IR
RELMERRDL2REETS
FAHEEBREHERSERER R T

15.Investment Properties (continued)

The valuation was arrived at by using direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the properties in their existing
states with the benefit of vacant possession and by making

RELE - BELBEAREENSE
U SRR L3 B 2 3T B T 45 7 R
BR5 - REHMEZRAER
MEZ & REERERBABE -

reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market. The direct comparison approach is based on
market observable recent transactions of similar properties in
similar location. In estimating the fair value of the properties,

the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

AEBURBERTENKREYE
NAREDBRARERRIE=MR -

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties situated
in Hong Kong and PRC is classified as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

Mz : REBE=T—X"F+=-A=1+—
ItFEE AEEEFEIESY
% BERIBAREMN LA
AR WEEBAETBIE
ZHUERES KA - BAKRE
MEE ZEMESRBKEER
W % #977,487,00058 7T ° 1 B
HERCEREEBEENSELD
29,839,000/ TRt AV E (A
&

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group changed
the use of certain of its property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments and had leased them out to
independent third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer
to investment properties, these properties were revalued with
a gain on revaluation of approximately HK$77,487,000. This
amount net of the corresponding to deferred tax liability of
approximately HK$29,839,000 has been credited to property
revaluation reserve.
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15. REVE =

TRUIIN-F
—AR-%-

—R"FE+ZA=+
AFE+=ZA=+—H

BRANMEEZSRENEZAAR
BE(LEZMERMGERMTRBEA

BB - WA

r#%ﬂ( D/\A{E

AFEMNBABBRN A BREERE

DENRAERRNEEFR

15.Investment Properties (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
value of these investment properties as at 31 December

2016 and 31 December 2015 are determined (in particular,

the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

REREBRAREEE

FERENE 2 REE BEBEG \UER

Carrying value of investment MMAE MEZBE

properties held by the Group in the %3l REFEREIEGARE Relationship of

consolidated statement of financial ~ Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and key EXELBERANE unobservable inputs to
position hierarchy  input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value

RZZ-RE+ZA=1-H

At 31 December 2016

BAERCIAENE 12 3R4E(T  £E=H };ztti&/ﬂﬁ““{ifﬁ/ﬂfﬁﬁ&i@ BYRRBANT280081233008  BTARERUAEA

BIERENEREEEE) R ELAR REBTS LB TELR T Mm%ﬁ%ﬂth?%@* Uitk  BRAAAE
%&3( EBEB(I151,100,0007% HERG RENENIERIEIUT I 52
Ri - BE  BRE)

Ground, 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floor Level 3 Direct comparison method assuming ~ Price per square feet, using market direct A slight increase in
excluding the computer server room sale in their existing states and comparables and taking into account the price per square
on 4th Floor, by reference to comparable sales of location and other individual factors ~ feet will increase
1 private carparking space and 3 transactions as available in the such as size, building facilities, levels, significantly the fair
lorry carparking spaces of Yip's relevant market. age of building, etc., which is ranging value.

Chemical Building in Hong Kong from HK$2,800/sq.ft to HK$3,300/
HK$ 151,100,000 sq.ft.

RPE PSR ERN IXRAEER £=R ERUBERREAR N HERAS  STHKRRNTARMISSOTEAR %HW%W

75,230,000 70 REWHS LAREH TELR 3,650 RAMAER B BRELAE
HERS 5 Wi R A ERIRZ (fim
A BFRiE - BE  BRE)

An industrial development in Qingpu Level 3 Direct comparison method assuming ~ Price per square meter, using market Aslight increase in
District, Shanghai, the PRC sale in their existing states and direct comparables and taking the price per square
HK$75,230,000 by reference to comparable sales into account of location and other meter will increase

transactions as available in the individual factors such as size, building significantly the fair
relevant market. facilities, levels, age of building, etc., value.

which is ranging from RMB3,550/sq.m.

to RMB3,650/sg.m.

R=B-2%+=A=1-H

At 31 December 2015

BARRIIAR! 283893200000 £=H  EEURIBRERNTHEREZ  STAREENT270081E29008  STAREHEARA
BT REBMS LA 727&% T RETSERTMEHE AR BERALE

HERS - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ REMERIRZ (A - £F
Fif - BE - BES)
1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor of Yip's Level 3 Direct comparison method assuming ~ Price per square feet, using market direct A slight increase in

Chemical Building in Hong Kong
HK$93,200,0009

LR EFH ARIE 2 L BIRE AT

/‘\/_\

BEz2AREMENEESHRARA
A8  ROBUIIRIREWE -

sale in their existing states and
by reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the
relevant market.

comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as size, building facilities, levels,
age of building, etc., which is ranging
from HK$2,700/sq.ft to HK$2,900/
sq.ft.

the price per square
feet will increase
significantly the fair
value.

All the Group’s property interests held under operating

& leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.
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HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
16.BH & 16.Goodwill
FH&T
HK$'000
RAME AT COST
R-ZE—RF— s ZZ—HF At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
—RA= and 31 December 2016
—T— /—$+ ﬂ +—H 71,462
AR IMPAIRMENT
R-_TE—hF— —ZT—HF At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
—A= and 31 December 2016
—=— ¢+ H +—A 1,888
BRE{E CARRYING VALUES
RZE—RFR At 31 December 2016 and 2015
—E-AE+=-HA=+—8H 69,574

REBEFFNE 2B DRKER
PTHEEEMERZEBEHPR
BeHReELABN(REELE
fiz]) - BEZEEEDS OENAT

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGU"s) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

—R"ER
—E-AHE
2016 and 2015
TR
HK$'000

ReELBUZAIRESRETIIRE
EREEMEE - T8
RAZEERIIREBFAZIUE
K BEENBHHEBEREEK
AZBHMETE - BIEE AR RBR
B EERERZRCE
A B {7 BT TED 1 E R e 2 W T B R
HERIRK  BRERTGENHER
ZREEAMEL - HEEREE
RAZZEAIREBEED RIEH
BRI ZB(CMETE -

BT

REMCTEMERAT - —2

59,479
10,095
69,574

Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Manufacture of and trading in coatings

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
5 {5 3B Bk from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the year. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the

market.

—REREH
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16.

17.

[ 30

16. Goodwill (Continued)

AREFHZERN  AEEIRRE
EEEMEZSBREEEBMNZ
BB BESEZARAF(=ZE
—RF: AF)RESRER - WER
= BT 35 35 B 3 B S B B M RT A %
& EA BN AT TR R 2 A
KA 73% (ZE—FE : 6.5%) %
REETRETE - REASEN
TEEEER  FEEEENT5%
F14% (ZF—HF : 0%%E20%) ©
HE-_T—X"E+-_A=+—AH1t
FE - AEBVERRTARES

18 -
BVEE

17.

For impairment assessment purpose, the Group performed
impairment review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets for the next
five years (2015: five years) for each CGUs approved by
management using a discount rate 4.73% (2015: 6.5%)
which reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates per annum range from 5% to 14% (2015: 0% to
20%) in light of the Group’s industry growth forecasts. No
impairment loss has been recognised by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

KA E
R=-Z-aF—A—-H
MNELHER

B

REB-H4%+-A=+-H

MEEEZE

RZE—R"F+-A=1—H

BN AE

RZZ-h%—A—H
INELBEE
FREE

Bt

RZZE—h&+-A=1—H

MNEREZE
FREHE

RIB—"E+-A=t+-H

FRHE

RZE—RE+-A=1—H
RZZE-RF+-A=1+—H

AT COST

At 1 January 2015
Currency realignment
Written off

At 31 December 2015
Currency realignment

At 31 December 2016

AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2015

Currency realignment

Provided for the year

Written off

At 31 December 2015
Currency realignment
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2016
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

Intangible Assets
THEHE BRERmE
AT Non-  Trademarks

Technical  competition and ait
knowhow covenants patent brands Total
THT TR TR THER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
10,581 19,177 1,952 31,710
(83) (916) - (999)
(5,000) - - (5,000)
5,498 18,261 1,952 25,711
(81) (934) - (1,015)

5,417 17,327 1,952 24,696
10,274 16,733 878 27,885
(72) (823) = (895)

129 936 195 1,260
(5,000) - - (5,000)
5,331 16,846 1,073 23,250
(78) (896) = (974)

122 886 195 1,203

5,375 16,836 1,268 23,479

42 491 684 1,217

167 1,415 879 2,461
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7 > .

17. 8 EE = 17.Intangible Assets (continued)
FiimEEECRESRAR - 2% The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
BB ETERBESER T34 5 intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
B the following periods:

A xRN 5- 104 Technical knowhow 5 — 10 years
TR Tk 105 Non-competition covenants 10 years
PR N h& 106 Trademarks and patent brands 10 years
BiTMBHRERABIIE =7 RERE Technical knowhow represents technical knowledge and
B@BEBR  WMERAEERNE techniques acquired from independent third parties to
EE R A K 7T o manufacture certain insulating varnish, ink and screening
products.
PREBHARRNEBLTRE - R Non-competition covenants represent the right to restrict
Hl & E R E 5 S g T R105F the vendors of assets or acquirees, after acquisition of the
ZEEFBANAINERRAER - entities, to carry on the same business for specific periods for
10 years.
BRG] =T A Trademarks and patent brands represent the brand names
EnBRmEANESERATRAEM acquired which have high recognition and awareness in the
BE o market.

18. HitERBEE 18.0ther Non-Current Asset
e NEASERBESMESZ The amount represents the cost of club debenture held
PR T 1 3R 5 B R H2 A ARORL 2 51 R by the Group and is measured at cost less accumulated
BEER(AE)E - impairment losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period.

A .

19.%78 19.Inventories
ZE-RE —ET—RF
2016 2015
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Raw materials 472,595 403,394
R Work in progress 23,964 24,659
BUpX ah Finished goods 311,644 311,233
808,203 739,286
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20. 2 5 UK R B ER
% HibEWIRA K TR
IR

20.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments

= —T-hF

2016 2015

FHET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

B S IE Trade receivables 1,739,087 1,677,042
T SRR Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (68,075) (110,716)
1,671,012 1,566,326

e Z ik Bills receivables 1,133,598 1,166,787
2,804,610 2,733,113

B 5 EWRE
RIS MRS E AL E S HY

Trade receivables

An aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the

HIBRREE DTN ¢ invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-RE —Z—hfF
2016 2015
FER FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE={AA 0 - 3 months 1,374,642 1,222,008
POz 75 & A 4 — 6 months 226,663 235,534
~NEA A E Over 6 months 69,707 108,784
1,671,012 1,566,326

AEBAFHERERFREI0XR
EOARNTNEZFEER - AEEKE
MRS R Z RS ABRER
FEFREMNEED -

EEMTMHELA > NEBEAZ
EEENAREGFEEERPZEE
EEx EFXecEHEEEARASE
REFEEFERBREESEM -
BEPZREGEMEHN - KD73%
(ZE—EF:70%) 2B 5 EHK
RERBEARBHTERE HRE
RBBEAEEMRAZEEZEH R
B REESRWHIBEETRRET

s
=

o

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. A longer credit period may be granted
to large or long established customers with good payment
history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Approximately 73% (2015: 70%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired as they were
assessed to be of good credit rating attributable under the
credit control system used by the Group.
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20 ESENFERERE
B HttEWRR KA
FFIE =)

B EWFEIE =)

AEBBHEBERBIED AN
FEUER X - #BARE{E A459,336,000
Bt(—Z — A F ¢ 471,399,000/8
TL) c ZEE m AR IR R EHE Y
ERVRBATLRARKEEN
R B - NEBWEREZE
RIBEL ARG - AEEH
ZE R R AR o

20.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are past due
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$459,336,000
(2015: HK$471,399,000). These past due debtors are all
closely monitored and by past experience, they will eventually
settle their debts, so the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

NBEHKREBBHERREZEZE S The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which

FEWEE TR E HE Y R ST are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
T period based on the invoice date:

—B-RF =T hF

2016 2015

THET FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

ZZ=EA 0 - 3 months 240,726 223,138

Mz EA 4 — 6 months 148,903 139,477

~NEA A Over 6 months 69,707 108,784

459,336 471,399

EETEE SRR 2K E %
K BEFAREEELEERSH
B AEEERZEZRRERER
BRZEMEH  ARAEER
B ARBYESREREER
% AARBRBEAERSTREP

.
papi: i
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In determining the recoverability of the trade debtors, the
Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
debtors since the credit was granted and up to the reporting
date. The directors of the Company considered that the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.
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20. B B EUGREA R EWE

% HEWRR K E

WEIRE)

E S EWFEIE®)

20.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

RERER Allowance for doubtful debts:
—E—REF —T—AF
2016 2015
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F4) At beginning of the year 110,716 88,269
INEEEETE Currency realignment (4,498) (6,090)
R REER Impairment losses recognised 21,718 50,062
RARFER W E 2 78 Amounts recovered during the year (5,017) (539)
LA AT Y B 2 FROE Amounts written off as uncollectible (54,844) (20,986)
FR At end of the year 68,075 110,716

HRNERABAMBERE LS
FEM R RMEHRE - AEBHZE
BRI ERT A TR

BREE

JEW R B ARITAFIES - BN E
WERTT AL K2 R 1 R 2 T HIEE
R AEBRERBREZEFIA
B ARTT AR 2 SRITAERE R
B SRR -

WRETHBSE T AEENRITA
HERBENHTHREBEN
BARBE - RITALERGETE
HPBEBEARITHRARRITNZE
RITARERDEIE AT -

RZF—XR"FE+=ZA=+—8"
AEEBRMERAEZESER
639,079,000 7L( = & — f F :
415,688,000/ 7T ) K & T R 17 &
HEZE LEFENESENE SR
Ko At REBEBEHZEE S
ECRITELEZESHEAARKE
B WHEREMNEREAZERX
B BEEERITEAKES 5 H
E| o

Impairment is made for trade debtors that have been placed
under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Bills receivables

Bills receivables represent #R777# 5, [EZE (“banker's acceptances”),
i.e. time drafts accepted and guaranteed for payment by PRC
banks. The Group accepts the settlement of trade receivables
by customers using banker’'s acceptances accepted by PRC
banks on a case by case basis.

These banker’s acceptances are issued to or endorsed to the
Group and with maturity date in general not longer than six
months from the date of issuance. The banker’s acceptances
will be settled by the banks, which are state-owned banks or
commercial banks in the PRC, on the maturity date of such
banker’s acceptances.

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain banker’s
acceptances with an amount of HK$639,079,000 (2015:
HK$415,688,000) to creditors to settle the trade payables to
them. Accordingly, the Group continued to include the full
amount of these endorsed banker’s acceptances under bills
receivables and recognised the relevant payable to creditors
until the maturity date of the endorsed banker’s acceptances.
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20 E SRR EREKRE 20.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

B HittEWERRKRTE Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

N RE )

EHEIREE Transfer of financial assets

LT AREENERRENERAES The following were the Group’s bills receivables that were
FRBREAE FIRITEE T HIE either discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers with full
e ARASEYEERZ TR recourse. As the Group has not transferred the significant
ERMEARR KB - EEEE risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues
HHEREWERCREE - ~&E to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables.
MRERIR BN ZEE T IRITRERE I The Group has recognised the cash received on the bills
REREBHREE - ZFRKER receivables discounted to banks as a secured borrowing.
REHK AR AR EE R & IR These receivables are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s
MK ° consolidated statement of financial position.

A2HERENRT AREERENERT

RITHENRE HEBNERRE
Bills receivables Bills receivables
discounted to banks endorsed to suppliers @t
with full recourse with full recourse Total
ZB-RE —T-1f ZB-Af "T-nFf ZB-xf —T-I1F%
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

TR TAT TR TAT TR TAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

DEEEEERE  Carrying amount of

transferred assets - 2,359 639,079 415,688 639,079 418,047
EBEEREE  Carrying amount of
associated liabilities - (2,359 (639,079) (415,688) (639,079) (418,047)
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20. B B EUGREA R EWE

21.

% HEWRR K E

WEIRE)

H B AR R A RRE

HitERERRANRIBELIZERE
BNHERRE  REHERAS
Ko FEYOE TRIR B o

BHRMEALERER R EME
WRRBHETIILIFABREEER
Az R EE A

20.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Other debtors and prepayments

Other debtors and prepayments mainly consist of payments
in advance to suppliers, commission receivable from suppliers
and value-added tax recoverable.

Included in trade receivables and bill receivables and other
debtors are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate:

—E-REF —T—FRHF

2016 2015

FHERT FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 3,363 3,462
EVAE A, United States dollars (“USD") 28,138 28,048
HE(HE]) Japanese Yen (“YEN") 625 =

THRITIFR ~ BRITHE
BREE
EHBTERRBTERRRE D

ENSAIFFABBAEERR 26
B EEZHRA

21.Short-Term Bank Deposits, Bank

Balances and Cash

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the group entities to
which they relate:

—E-RE —T—AfF

2016 2015

Fix FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ETT usD 214,447 147,767
B TT Hong Kong dollars 9,586 15,270
AR EE RMB 49,876 48,282

MER =A% HRERITHE
FIRFEFE112%23.30% (ZZT—
FEF 1 3.30%)5FESN - FTAERRTIR
IEFIEFFE0.001%E6% (=F
—HE :0.001%E5%) "ETE -

Other than short-term bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months carrying interest at 1.12% to 3.30%
(2015: 3.30%) per annum, all remaining bank deposits
carrying interest ranging from 0.001% to 6% (2015: 0.001%
to 5%) per annum.
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180

22. B IR R BT E A

é &iHJHE FE - BR 3k K& FE &T

EHBEE S EMNEKR
1,362,338,0005% T(ZE—RF:
1,161,050,0008 7T) - REETEE
BFEREFBANR ENEIH®
RERN - BNHERS - BN AR
RBEE o

RBERREZERAHZESEN

22.Creditors and Accrued Charges

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of
creditors and accrued charges included trade creditors of
HK$1,362,338,000 (2015: HK$1,161,050,000). Remaining
balances mainly consist of receipts in advance from
customers, payable of staff salaries and benefits, sales
commission, storage and transportation, etc.

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the end of the

BRFKERER DTN T - reporting period based on the invoice date is as follows:
—E-REF —E—hF
2016 2015
FE T FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE=={@A 0 - 3 months 1,139,905 982,601
MZE 7S EA 4 - 6 months 218,760 169,161
SNEA M E Over 6 months 3,673 9,288
1,362,338 1,161,050

R EEREBRE TN IEABREE
RAZINBEEB EE 2 RIA

Included in creditors are the following amounts denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the group
entities to which they relate:

—E-RE —T—hF

2016 2015

FET FHBT

HK$'000 HK$'000

=TT usD 123,583 199,855

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR
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23.

TTESmT A 23.Derivative Financial Instruments
wE ERE
Current Non-current
—®-x%F C-T-EF =®-AF "FT-IF
2016 2015 2016 2015
FTET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fTECRMEE Derivatives financial assets
D EskEE 2 Derivatives under hedge
fT£IA accounting
R EE L Interest rate swap contracts 4,075 110 4,468 140
REIEH Forward contracts 77 = - .
HifTE TR (M Other derivatives (not under
H9PEERE) hedge accounting)
REIAH Forward contracts - 1,004 = -
4,152 1,114 4,468 140
TESREs Derivatives financial liabilities
LUhERAEE  Derivatives under hedge
ZOTETA accounting
FEBHE 4 Interest rate swap contracts 146 3,119 47 3,084
EHEH Forward contracts 165 = = -
HbfTE T B (3ELL  Other derivatives (not under
e ARE) hedge accounting)
B A 4 Cross currency swap contract = 10,661 = -
REIE Y Forward contracts - 29 _ -
31 13,809 47 3,084
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182

3.0TEE€M I A

IR & REH 2R &=
HEH

AEBEZEBHERITILZ AT
KA BBAKFBNEER
REENE  FRITZETEITE
BRITEEZRESRERBERE
EHE - RFANZIFRFEERER
BEEPIRITERE Z R —B(AEE
HRTHREZASR  BERNX
EEER) - EERA/NKIEMELH
B h TR  UREHTEE
ERERETARRSREL T T
B o

FEE R K B) 2 3 & 2 R M
E HPARREABM - BEZZT—
NE+_A=+—HILFEE BE
it = ¥ 8 B 5 N & 414,303,000
BL(ZE—AF ¢ F5182,074,000
BT)EREMEE R R 25 ER
NHER - EXTEH R AT R W
4 HAR & R PR 2 EA BRI A 1 [R) B R
REBzmAAL °

o =

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

23.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges

The Group entered into a number of interest rate swap
contracts with the commercial banks to minimise its exposure
to cash flow changes of its floating-rate Hong Kong dollars
bank loans from banks by swapping floating interest rates
to fixed interest rates. The terms of these contracts were
negotiated to match with those of the hedged bank loans
with the same notional amounts to principal amounts of
bank loans, currency and interest rate index. The directors
consider that the interest rate swap contracts are highly
effective hedging instruments and have designated them
as cash flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow exposure
to interest rate movements. Net adjustments on cash flow
hedges of gain of HK$14,303,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: loss of HK$2,074,000) have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity. The directors expected the accumulated sum is to
be released to profit or loss at various dates in the coming
maturity periods after the reporting period.
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3.OTESR T Ee)

LREREY 2R RE
HENw

RRE IR - WaE24FT #5552 $R1T
BEEREREREYHPEZ TRTT
B 71,354,319,000 (= —H
£ :1,739,583,000/% 7T ) © M &
NIReREH R 2 MERIFHELN 2
T BT ¢

23.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges (Continued)

Included in borrowings as disclosed in note 24 were bank
loans of HK$1,354,319,000 (2015: HK$1,739,583,000) which
were under cash flow hedges and the major terms of the
interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

HE Z#A WEGE S THEL
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
—~"F+=ZA=t+-H

At 31 December 2016

30,000,000/ 7T “T—+FNA+EH BIL=EA 2 RITRERFS* 261
HK$30,000,000 14.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR* 2.61%
13,750,000/ 7T S —+ &/ \A=+—H BILT=EA 2 RITAERE 2.622
HK$13,750,000 21.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
11,250,000/ 7T Z—t+FNA+=A BLT=EAZRITRAERS 2,622
HK$11,250,000 13 9 2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
23,333,000/ T —t&+A+NA BIT=EA ZRITAZRE 2.67E
HK$23,333,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
20,000,000/ 7T —Z—+tHF+A=+—H BIT={AA ZRITAERE 2.63
HK$20,000,000 31.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
214,286,000/ 7T “E-NFRA=1+H BL=EAZRITRAERE 3.05/2
HK$214,286,000 30.5.2019 HK$3-month HIBOR 3.05%
66,700,000/ 7T —\ERA=-+=H B A A ZRITRERE 2.54F
HK$66,700,000 23.5.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.54%
150,000,000/ 7T —E-N\FXAt=H B E A ZRITRERE 3.2
HK$150,000,000 13.6.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.22%
100,000,000/ 7T —E-AF=R=1—H Br—EAZRITRERE 222
HK$100,000,000 31.3.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.22%
75,000,000/ 7T —NE+A=+NA Bl A ZRITRERE 320
HK$75,000,000 29.10.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.20%
100,000,000/ 7T - N&—HAZH Bl A ZRITRERE 2.85
HK$100,000,000 2.1.2019 HK$ 1-month HIBOR 2.85%
350,000,000/ 7T “Z-TFMA—A BT —EAZRITREERE 2.822
HK$350,000,000 1.4.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.82%
200,000,000 75 —“Z-ZF=A=+—H BLT—EAZRITRAERE 1.942
HK$200,000,000 31.3.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 1.94%
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3.UTAESm T A 23.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

LXE%WE%T)‘EFZ*U?.‘Z—?E Interest rate swap contracts under cash
HEN @) flow hedges (continued)
HE ZH A WEGZ R THER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed

R-ZE-2F+-HA=+—H
At 31 December 2015

135,000,000/87C —E—REAA=TH BLT=ER 2 RIOTRERFE* 1.83E
HK$135,000,000 30.9.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR* 1.83%
15,000,000/ 7T —E—RFNAA=TH BLT=EAZRITRAERS 1.95E
HK$ 15,000,000 30 9.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.95%
8,333,000/87T —E—RE-A=tNH BIT=EA ZRITAZRE 2.77E
HK$8,333,000 29, 1 2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.77%
20,000,000787C —E-R"F¥=ZA=-1+=H BL=EAZRITRERFE 2.70[2
HK$20,000,000 23, 3 2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.70%
15,750,000/ 7T —E—R"FNA+=H BL=EAZRITRERE 2.74E
HK$ 15,750,000 12. 4 2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.74%
10,500,000/ 7T “E-RFMA+=H BIT=E A ZRITAZRE 2.2
HK$10,500,000 12.4.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.22%
70,000,00078 7T —Z—+FN\A+HH BT =EA ZRITRERE 261E
HK$70,000,000 14.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.61%
32,083,000/ 7T —2—+FNA=Z+—H BIT=EAZRITRERE 2622
HK$32,083,000 21.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
26,250,000/ 7T —Z—+FNA+=H BL=EAZRITRERE 2622
HK$26,250,000 13.9.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
46,667,000/ 7T “T—+F+A+NH BTl A ZRITRAERE 267E
HK$46,667,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
40,000,00078 7T —Z—+F+A=1—H BT=EAZRITRERE 2.68E
HK$40,000,000 31, 10 2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
6,000,000/ 7T —“E—R"¥RA++H BITAEAZRITRERE 22612
HK$6,000,000 7. 5 2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 2.26%
14,000,000/ 7T —Z—X"FRATLH BITANEAZRITRERE 1.69/2
HK$ 14,000,000 17.5.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 1.69%
300,000,0007 75 “Z-NAFRA=TH BIT=EAZRITAERE 3.052
HK$300,000,000 30.5.2019 HK$3-month HIBOR 3.05%
100,000,000787T —Z-\FRA-+=H Br—EAZRITAERE 2.54
HK$100,000,000 23.5.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.54%
150,000,0007& 7T —Z-N\FX~At=H Br—ERZETRERS 3.2
HK$150,000,000 13.6.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.22%
100,000,00078 7T —E-HhE=A=1—H Br—EA 2 RITRERS 2.222
HK$100,000,000 31.3.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.22%
100,000,000/ 7T —Z2-NF+A=+NH B —EAZRITRAERE 3.20E
HK$100,000,000 29.10.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.20%
150,000,00078 7T “E-NF—HA=H Br—EAZRITRERS 2.85E
HK$150,000,000 2.1.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.85%
400,000,0007 7T —ZE-ZHMA—H BrL—EAZRTRERE 2.822
HK$400,000,000 1.4.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.82%
* HIBORIEB B IRITRIZEHF BFX - = HIBOR represents Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.
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23.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts

The Group entered into a number of foreign exchange
forward contracts. As at 31 December 2016, the change in
fair value of these contracts recorded a loss of HK$88,000
and was recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (2015: a gain of HK$976,000 was
recognised in profit or loss). The majority of these contracts
are deliverable forward contracts. Such contracts were
entered into as part of the Group’s treasury operation for the
purpose of capturing the price differential between the spot
and forward foreign currency exchange markets by entering
into purchase contracts that were denominated in USD with
the similar amounts and maturity dates on a one by one
basis. Each of these arrangements, when contracted by the
Group, will lock in a pre-determined return. Accordingly,
although the valuation of each of these foreign exchange
forward contracts may give rise to a gain or loss at a
particular date within the term of the respective contract,
such gain or loss will eventually be substantially offset by
each of these arrangements. The directors consider that the
forward contracts are highly effective hedging instruments
and have designated them as cash flow hedging instruments
for hedge accounting purpose for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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23.TESR T B

MERHEHN @

RBEBMR > AEBEAZ 2T EH
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23.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts
(Continued)

The ranges of the notional amounts of the major outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts to which the Group is
committed at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

HE ZHA E=x
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
R-B-RE+=-HA=1+—8H

At 31 December 2016

E704,007FE T —E—+tF—HA+A x5,/ AE¥6.948
Buy USD704,007 16.1.2017 USD/RMB6.948
E820,368%E T —Z—+t&—A+/\RH x5,/ ANR#6.948
Buy USD820,368 18.1.2017 USD/RMB6.948
51,080,648 T —E—+tF—A=+=H x5,/ AR#7.033
Buy USD1,080,648 23.1.2017 USD/RMB7.033
£890,902E T —E—+H&-A=H ./ AR#7.036
Buy USD890,902 3.2.2017 USD/RMB7.036
B 978,483 T —T—+t&-F+H x5,/ AR#7.039
Buy USD978,483 7.2.2017 USD/RMB7.039
51,034,884 T —E—+&-A+=H x5,/ ANR#7.041
Buy USD1,034,884 13.2.2017 USD/RMB7.041
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23.

TTESR T B

MERHEN @

EfE

Notional amount

FHA
Maturity

23.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts
(Continued)

fE=

Exchange rates

R-E-HAF+=-HA=+—H

At 31 December 2015

E766,0003 7T
Buy USD766,000
&5,737,0005 7T
Buy USD5,737,000
E731,00037T
Buy USD731,000
E702,00037T
Buy USD702,000
E 841,000 7T
Buy USD841,000
H342,0003 7T
Buy USD342,000
E702,000%7T
Buy USD702,000
E701,0003 7T
Buy USD701,000

—F—NRF-At+t=H
12.1.2016
—E-RF-AZ=+H
20.1.2016
—E-R"E—H=-tHH
25.1.2016

—E—R"FZH—H
1.2.2016
TR FZA=H
2.2.2016
—E-RF-AAH
5.2.2016

—E-ARF_AAAH
5.2.2016
—E—XF-A+HAHH
15.2.2016

¥,/ AR#6.500
USD/RMB6.500
x5,/ AR#6.457
USD/RMB6.457
En/ AR¥6.506
USD/RMB6.506
En/ AR¥6.614
USD/RMB6.614
o,/ ANR#6.523
USD/RMB6.523
./ AR#6.531
USD/RMB6.531
%,/ AR#6.530
USD/RMB6.530
¥,/ AR#6.534
USD/RMB6.534
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BHEREN

P55 Y
AEEUBBEBHAH  (EASE
EREEEz —2D  BEEZIE
1IN R B A 2 TE 4878 1 3 R AN S
BITEF - R-ZZT—R"FE+-A=
+—H AR EZEHRE 2
710,661,000 L( = F — A F :
12,130,000 7)) E R 1B M ERR ©
FENEAEBFVREHEEE
Bk At BEBERBAGOM
BEXSESOHERAREAHE
Sl EsEE AEBEEEEER
ERARERBEBEARTHES LR
B ARG B HNEE SR 1T B B A Y INE
WS sk s TR 8 o

RZZE—AF+_A=+—H ' &
EEAEZ AR WEERESY
ZHEERT :

HfE BMA

Notional amount Maturity

(Continued)

Cross currency swap contract

Cross Currency Swap

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract
as part of the Group's treasury operation for the purpose
of minimising the exposure to foreign currency risk and
to hedge economically against the foreign currency bank
loan. As at 31 December 2016, the change in fair value
of the contract recorded a gain of HK$10,661,000 (2015:
HK$12,130,000) which was recognised in profit or loss. The
agreement, when contracted by the Group, was locked in a
pre-determined return. Accordingly, although the valuation
of the cross currency swap contract may give rise to a gain
or loss at a particular date within the term of the contract,
the management of the Group expected that such gain or
loss will eventually be substantially offset with the exchange
gain or loss arising from the foreign currency bank loan at
the end of the contract.

The notional amount of the outstanding cross currency
swap contract to which the Group was committed as at 31
December 2015 was as follows:

WEUEE XRE Ex
Receiving floating Pay floating Exchange rates

R-ZB-HEF+-A=1+—H
At 31 December 2015

E4,509,000/27T ST

Buy AUD4,509,000 29.04.2016

AEBYERE P GHERB R
Hi B e R TSP RAMR

EROTETADRAAEFE - R
BARERRN  RZTB—RF+=
A=+—RLlfTETAZFHED
BERE_R(GHBER2HME28) ©

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

NEMARZTH BT={8A

BLT=EAZES B/ %718.01
BBR - BBSW + 1.25% RTTRAIZEIFE + 1.80%

AUD3-month HK$3-month ~ AUD/HK$8.01
BBR - BBSW + 1.25% HIBOR + 1.80%

The Group did not designate any hedging relationship on
the cross currency swap contract for the purpose of hedge
accounting.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value. The
classification of the measurement of the above derivatives at
31 December 2016 is Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy (see
note 28 for details).
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[+ .
24.6 8 24.Borrowings
—EB—REF —T-RF
2016 2015
FHERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBBRITEN Borrowings included bank loans:
WITER Bank loans 2,246,319 2,772,804
FEREZMERR Discounted bills with recourse = 2,359
2,246,319 2,775,163
St Unsecured 2,246,319 2,775,163
RITERFERATELEEBE*: The bank loans are repayable as follows*:
—FR Within one year 789,848 1,168,985
—FEREMERN More than one year but not exceeding
two years 772,214 659,848
MEBRERFNR More than two years but not more than
five years 684,257 943,971
2,246,319 2,772,804
AEIR =R FRHA N T *: The discounted bills are repayable as
follows*:
—FR Within one year - 2,359
2,246,319 2,775,163
B BR—ERFELERH  Less: Borrowings due within one year
EREAGEZEE shown under current liabilities (789,848) (1,171,344)
BN EERSABZEE Borrowings shown under non-current
liabilities 1,456,471 1,603,819

* SRR GRT RN
438 B 85 o

REBRITERZFHERLSHBR
ITRIZEFR B M .I25%EEBRTT
FZEFENM2.05% (ZF—RHF : &
BIRITREREN0.9%EFBIRTT
RZEFBM2.05%)  FIR—BRE
MAEAZEA(ZZE—RF : SMAE
ERAEREHFE—R - RZFT—
AF+-—A=+—H ' —£#R7E
2 F F 2 58 7T — BBR-BBSWN
1.25% °

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
out in the borrowing agreements.

The Group’s bank loans carry annual interests at the range of
HIBOR plus 1.125% to HIBOR plus 2.05% (2015: HIBOR plus
0.9% to HIBOR plus 2.05%). Interest is repriced in the period
from two weeks up to six months (2015: two weeks up to
six months). As at 31 December 2015, there was a bank loan
which carried annual interest at AUD-BBR-BBSW plus 1.25%.
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HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
24. 88 ) 24.Borrowings (continued)

—E-RE —E—RF
2016 2015

BRI Effective interest rates
1.45% Z 2.79% 1.14% = 3.75%
BE Fixed-rate borrowings 1.45% to 2.79% 1.14% to 3.75%
1.87% Z 2.78% 1.12% £ 2.27%
FEREE Variable-rate borrowings 1.87% to 2.78% 1.12% 10 2.27%

& & 8 $5105,000,000% T( — & —
T :476,045,00087C) EBEE -

Included in borrowings are HK$105,000,000 (2015:
HK$476,045,000) at fixed-rate borrowings with the

BEAYEN—FERNTHE - contractual maturity dates within 1 year.
EHEEAETHWIENEBEE®EA R Included in borrowings are the following amounts
LRI T E 2 FUA ¢ denominated in currency other than the functional currency

of the group entities to which they relate:
—E-RE —FE—RF
2016 2015
FEx TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HKD 166,700 240,000
=S usb = 18,686
RT AUD - 25,535
ERCIEEERIRA - —T ~FEFR
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25. R IEEE

N AAEEERRZ = EEEH
BEEEE)RRAER EERZ
BRRD

25.Deferred Tax Liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

RABEF
BN
MEBERE Withholding
Accelerated taxon MIEEHME
tax BIERE undistributed  Revaluation Hitr b
depreciation  Tax losses profits of properties Others Total

&R TiER TiER TiER TiER FiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(i)
(Note)
RZE-RF—A—H At1January 2015 3,178 (428) 8,408 - 2,031 13,189
PAREEEEDR  Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (15,435) - = (15,435)
GrAMBZEER (Credit) charge to profit or loss @3) (195) 10,033 - 193 9,988
WZZ—R&F+-F At 31 December 2015
=t+-H 3,135 (623) 3,006 - 2,224 7,742
AAEBEEENR  Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (36,616) - - (36,616)
GFAMBzER (Credit) charge to profit or loss 713 (138) 42,033 = (333) 42,275
ERNBERER Charge to equity for the year - - - 29,839 - 29,839
INEEEZSR Currency realignment - = = (1,428) = (1,428)
RZZ—"E+ZF At 31 December 2016
= H 3,848 (761) 8,423 28,411 1,891 41,812
MiaE : EfhE BRKRPN U E L R Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax liabilities arising from fair
BARERABRKBEENE value adjustments on assets acquired (i.e. intangible assets,
WEE BffLttBEeRWE - prepaid lease payments and property, plant and equipment) on

55 B st ) T S A 2 IRSE IR &

' e

acquisition of subsidiaries.
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S5.EERIEBEEE @)

R—ZZE—R"E+-_A=+—8"
AEBBARFERARBEBRELY
940,056,000/ jt( = & — A F :
793,467,000/ 7T ) A] 4 K 85 K %K
wmAl e RZFE—RFE+ZA=+—
H - BHERNGEE4611,00008
(= Z — A F 3,777,000/ 7T )
REEFIREE - ARKERAR
REEFRE WABHERET
935,445,000% 7T( = & — f 4 :
789,690,000 7T ) #E I £ 1A & £ ©
KRIER TS EEF 908,732,000 7T
(ZZB—F%F : 712,464,000/ 7T) 7]
EIREISE A RN T —F
[k, 2 RIEIER -

AEBEERIE R B KPEDEMBR
& 7 16 I 48 A8 5T R g fe R B K

ETHBARIE =TT NF—A
—HﬂEﬁW%ﬁﬂ#%ﬁ%%%
BRI B A B R 5 Bl v A RIE I
THIE - FEIKEDSEMESHEER
10138 & A B ER A 2 IR BIR5 %
F10%M T EHMIENT - HRE
ERB/AEEIZEFIREERER
RIREfE - MR ZE RN A 78R A5 2R
A g NS RE - NS Bt
BAENBARIE_EZTNF—A
—HEERNAE TARED RRE
S A11,491,194,0008 (= F —H
£ : 2,032,623,0007% 7T ) E 3R IR FTE
I8 -

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

25.Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$940,056,000 (2015: HK$793,467,000)
available to offset against future profits. As at 31 December
2016, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such losses amounted to HK$4,611,000 (2015:
HK$3,777,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$935,445,000 (2015:
HK$789,690,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses,
HK$908,732,000 (2015: HK$712,464,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at
various dates up to and including 2021.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries
has been recognised taking into accounts the dividends to
be distributed from profits earned by certain subsidiaries
in Mainland China starting from 1 January 2008 under
the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law of Mainland
China that requires withholding tax with tax rate ranging
from 5% to 10% upon the distribution of such profits to
the shareholders. Deferred taxation has not been recognised
in respect of certain undistributed retained profits earned
by the subsidiaries in the Mainland China starting from
1 January 2008 amounting to HK$1,491,194,000 (2015:
HK$2,032,623,000) as the directors are of the opinion that
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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26. IR A

26.Share Capital

EE EBRITRAE
Authorised Issued and fully paid
—E-AEF

k=-—Z—H%F ZE-RF —ET—hF
2016 & 2015 2016 2015
FET FTET FHT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FREE0.10/8TT 21 Shares of HK$0.10 each 80,000 56,381 56,371

ERANTZ EBTRASG TS

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company

g during the year are as follows:
RH&E X
Number
of shares Amount
TR FET
'000 HK$'000
R-ZF—hF—-A—H At 1 January 2015 562,755 56,276
Tk R A (P eta) Exercise of share options (Note a) 956 95
RZZE—RAF+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2015 563,711 56,371
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁé(ﬁﬁﬁb) Exercise of share options (Note b) 100 10
R-Z—XRE+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2016 563,811 56,381
MiEE - Notes:

(a)

(b)

FAECETEROBEMBHEHEE

RBE-Z £¢+ H +—
AIEFEE BARA D BT
576,000/% - zoo,oooﬂ% &180,000
A& A& E(E0.1078 7T 2 X 15 -

EEB DRI E2.0048 7T * 4. 050,%75

F1.9507% 7+ $£956,00017 B& % 4
BT -
REBEZZ—XR"F+=-A=+—8

IEFE - AARQRE17100,0008%
FRRONOBITZEG - BRIEESD
B1/1.950/% 7T + #£75100,00017 88
FRAEHETTIE -

I]

K ZRARNZE RS o

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2015, 956,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 576,000 shares,
200,000 shares and 180,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company at a price of HK$2.004, HK$4.050 and HK$1.950 per

share, respectively.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016,

100,000 share

options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 100,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$1.950 per

share.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares

in issue in all respects.
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27.Capital Risk Management Objectives
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27.§z|s1§wﬁ‘§ﬁ B #ZEE I
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HEAKE SR E -
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R ETHEREB@BREER
AFEAREREBEARERE -

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

and Policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
mainly include the borrowings disclosed in note 24, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves including retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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28. €T A 28.Financial Instruments
SRTEER Categories of financial instruments
—E-XRF —ZT—hEF
2016 2015
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
EFNEWEEZ (8BS Loans and receivables (including cash
RIR&EHEAR) and cash equivalents) 3,820,030 4,185,665
PTESRIT A : Derivative financial instruments:
—EEAHHTA — designated as hedging instruments 8,620 250
— IR g R A - not under hedge accounting = 1,004
ERERE Financial liabilities
b= )N Amortised cost 3,719,244 4,057,254
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments:
—EEAEHTA — designated as hedging instruments 358 6,203
—JERE A EEE - not under hedge accounting = 10,690

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, other debtors, derivative financial instruments,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, creditors
and borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to market risk or
the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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28. €T B )
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 6% (2015: 4%) of the Group's
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities making the sale, whilst
almost 83% (2015: 75%) of purchases are denominated in
the relevant group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. As at
31 December 2015, the Group mainly had a cross currency
swap contract to reduce its exposure to potential variability
of foreign currency risk arising from changes in foreign
exchange exposure in AUD denominated bank borrowings.
The management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of AUD, USD,
RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The following table details the
Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease
in functional currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period end for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade and bills
receivables, bank balances, creditors as well as borrowings
(except for those AUD denominated bank loans hedged
economically with the cross currency swap contract). A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit after
taxation where functional currency strengthens 5% (2015:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency for net liability
position and vice versa. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of
functional currency against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
after taxation.
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

hiEE ) Market risk (Continued)
SNGE [P (48 Currency risk (Continued)
BBREDM(E) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
—E—RE —FE-RF
2016 2015
FHBxT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIT usD (4,970) 1,713
AR RMB (2,082) (2,016)
BT Hong Kong dollars 6,474 9,319

oM B S E A R FRIEAIE
HESEQRIIEERIIE K&
EEmMEmEIINERR - 2 AR
HBBE®AS% (T —RHF:
5% ) - ZN 5 B BR A 12 i I AR 2
1,051,000 (= — R F : &0
10,198,000%7T) » R 2 Al B R4

By 488
REE -

AEBBEREMEHZBRED
MRAA R Z A E R E R TR -

ERERA ARERARLTR
BERNER - REEE ST
£ NAESERR -

The Group is also exposed to currency risk concerning the
amounts due from/to group entities, which are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. When RMB strengthens 5% (2015:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency, profit after
taxation of the Group will decrease by HK$1,051,000 (2015:
increased by HK$10,198,000) and vice versa.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure on the cross
currency swap contract is disclosed in other price risk of this
note.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and bank loans (see note
24 for details of these borrowings). However, since the bank
deposits and the majority of the fixed-rate bank loans will
mature within one year, the management considers the risk
is insignificant to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank deposits carried interest at prevailing market
deposit rate and floating-rate bank loans (see notes 21 and
24 for details). In order to keep the Group’s bank loans at
fixed rates, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to
hedge against its exposures to changes in cash flows of
certain bank loans. The critical terms of these interest rate
swaps are the same to those of hedged bank loans. Interest
rate swaps are designated as effective hedging instruments
and hedge accounting is used (see note 23 for details).

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors consider
the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of less than three months and bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short maturity period and
thus it is not included in sensitivity analysis.
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For interest
bearing bank deposits with original maturity of more than
three months and borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole period. A 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings (excluding
bank loans under cash flow hedges of HK$1,154,319,000
(2015: HK$1,739,583,000)) and short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of more than three months had been
50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all of
other variables were held constant, the profit after taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$3,549,000 (2015: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,454,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest bearing
short-term bank deposits and variable-rate borrowings which
are not hedged against their exposures to cash flow interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

199



Bt#& %R Financial Statements

FEMBREME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—R"F+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

28. ST R ») 28.Financial Instruments (continued)

B 7 B E TR B AR B BUR
()

TGk (&)
H b EASE R
AEERETASRMT AMESHE
B E R - NEE 2 H i ERR

REBRERNA R - HMEERH
BRRBEREREH -

BREDHF
TG E DT Ty A& BROT A&
TAMES 2 EMERRRETE

o  MFIEIEHEL R EE
Tt/ TFESOEEL(ZE—1
&F 501I%£) T A E M
BRENE - BISh R 2 (EE
qu?‘kﬂ%%?ﬁﬁé\%’ﬂz&ﬁﬁﬁ
&) F 4 4 507,330,000 7T
—Z — 4 14,719,000

JT) °

o (HINERHIGH ZRHAER F
Ft,/ T PE5% (T —FH&F:
5%) * MATAEMmE S~ -
A ¥ & 2 (BB SR D15
701,635,000 (=& — R
F o BRFLIE I B i‘bu/ml\
3,244,000/ 7T) °

o fH)EHEHE N 2 RHEX
EF5% : (NEEEBEH2
RHAME R TS % 0 K(ii)is
HHIG KUF) R E S0 &R -
mATAEMmEEHTE  AEE
BHE-_ZT—AFt+t=-A=+—
HIEFE 2B &R D 5

()% AN1,818,0007% 7T * (ii)imk 2
1,818,0005%7‘5&(iii);‘;aw17,000
WETT ©

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its derivative
financial instruments. The Group’s other price risk is mainly
concentrated on the interest rate swaps, foreign exchange
forward contracts and cross currency swap contract.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to other price risks for derivatives at the end of the
reporting period:

° if the forward interest rate of interest rate swap
contracts had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the debit side of hedging reserve
would decrease/increase by HK$7,330,000 (2015:
HK$14,719,000) as a result of fair value change on
interest rate swap contracts.

e if the forward exchange rate of forward exchange
forward contracts had been 5% (2015: 5%) higher/
lower and all other variables were hold constant, the
debt side of hedging reserve would decrease/increase
by HK$1,635,000 (2015: the profit after taxation would
increase/decrease by HK$3,244,000).

e if (i) the forward exchange rate of the cross currency
swap contract had been 5% higher; (ii) the forward
exchange rate of the cross currency swap contract
had been 5% lower; and (iii) the interest rate of the
cross currency swap contract had been 50 basis points
higher, and all other variables were held constant, the
profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December
2015 would (i) increase by HK$1,818,000, (ii) decrease
by HK$1,818,000 and (iii) decrease by HK$17,000,
respectively.
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties are
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated the responsible personnel for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is limited as the
Group has procedures and policies in place to ensure they
are from banks or rural cooperative banks with acceptable
credit quality.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are mainly banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and bills receivables mainly from banks with good
reputation in Mainland China, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk on trade and
other debtors. Trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, which spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.
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Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings to ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had available
unutilised bank facilities of approximately HK$2,427,466,000
(2015: HK$2,508,312,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. For
derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented.
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

—EHE MENL  ANERRR
BfEBmE (FRBIE SREHE
EFHHE —BANL  Morethan  More than Total
Weighted -EAR BFEB-F  fyearbut 2yearsbut  contractual HEfE
average Less than 1 month less than less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month to 1 year 2 years Syears  cash flows amount
% TR Thr TEn Tén Thn TEn
% HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
RZF-RETZA At31.122016
=t-A
HTEEREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
ERETREMENE  Creditors and other payables - 733,375 739,550 - - 141295 1472925
& Borrowings
-8 - at variable rate 232 1,23 548,154 752,085 707,321 2,079,789 2,004,319
-EE - at fixed rate 2.09 114,199 63,799 47359 19,880 245,37 242,000
919,797 1,351,503 799,444 721,207 3,797,951 3,719,244
fTETR-BLE Derivatives - net settlement
MNERHAL) Foreign exchange forward contracts 4 i - - 165 165
fiETA-BEEE  Derivatives - gross settlement
MeEdHan Interest rate swap contracts
A - inflow (377) (2.943) (981) - (4,301) (4,238)
— it - outflow 39 307 1,026 - 4,497 4431
17 134 45 - 196 193
REE-RE+ZF  At31.12.2015
=t+-8
FEeRaR Non-derivative financial liabilities
ERESREMERSE  Creditors and other payables - 657,199 624,892 - - 128091 1,282,001
& Borrowings
-8 - at variable rate 1.89 49,512 607,297 604,668 927,865 2,189,342 2,117,118
-E8 - at fixed rate 1.72 456,699 65,602 73,909 67,960 664,170 658,045
1,163,410 1,297,791 678,577 995,825 4,135,603 4,057,254
fiATR-FLE Derivatives - et settlement
ERERLY Cross currency swap contract 5282 5379 = - 10,661 10,661
SNERBAL) Foreign exchange forward contracts - pL] - - 29 29
5282 5,408 - = 10,690 10,690
fTETB-@EEE  Derivatives - gross settlement
fleesan Interest rate swap contracts
—A - inflow (3,345) (31,247) (21493) (14,082) (70,167) (68.273)
it - outflow 3715 34,241 23470 15,099 76,525 74,476
370 2,99 1977 1,017 6,358 6,203
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28.Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

AREGRETEREERABE

SRAE ARE ARERE Fair value valuation

Financial liabilities Fair value as at Hierarchy techniques and key input(s)

RZB-RF R-Z-F1%
+=A=+-A +=A=1+-AH
31.12.2016 31.12.2015

RERFBRARIE EEBREHHEDE) BEREEHEINE) ER FERENE - RRREREDHARIZ IR
BUTESRTANN  -8,543,00087 - 250,000 7T AEE 7 FERE(HEM)REREHH =
LigPHAK (HBERRHABE RS EMREL)RE

BE(RESEHETE) BR(RBERENE) M= (RER R R ) W st o
-193,000/8 T - 6,203,0007%57C

Interest rate swap  Assets (under hedge Assets (under hedge Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
contracts classified accounting) accounting) estimated based on forward interest rates
as derivative - HK$8,543,000 - HK$250,000 (from observable yield curves at the end of
financial instruments the reporting period) and contracted interest
in the consolidated  Liabilities (under hedge Liabilities (under hedge rates, discounted at an applicable discount
statement of accounting) accounting) rate taking into account the credit risk of
financial position - HK$193,000 - HK$6,203,000 the counter-parties and of the Group as

appropriate.

NEERBRARIE BE-T A1E-10,661,00077T E-R ERELN - RRBEERE Dt RRH A RA
BITESRTIEM®E SEEERR(NER)RERNEHT = (1
BEHAL RERROTRE MR EWEGH) RADHIN

BERRMGH E (AR RRET) WS

Cross currency swap  Liabilities - Nil Liabilities - HK$10,661,000  Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
contract classified as are estimated based on forward currency
derivative financial exchange rate and market interest rate
instruments in (from observable yield curves at the end of
the consolidated the reporting period) and contracted foreign
statement of currency exchange rate and market interest
financial position* rate, discounted at an applicable discount

rate taking into account the credit risk of
the counter-parties and of the Group as
appropriate.

RERRBRARAIE BERBEAETE) &P - 1,004,000 T E-RH BEREM  RRRERBDARRHH RA
RITESRTAMI - 77,000 T SEERRR(HER)BERNEHF =1
EEHAaH Bf& - 29,0008 RERROTHERR ST W EGH) RADHIN

SfE- (REBYWEE) BEXRTISHE(RERERER) ik
- 165,0005& 7T it e
Foreign exchange  Assets (under hedge Assets — HK$ 1,004,000 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows

forward contracts accounting)
classified as - HK$77,000
derivative financial

instruments in Liabilities - (under
the consolidated hedge accounting)
statement of - HK$165,000
financial position

ERLIKEEBERAR - —T~FEFR

are estimated based on forward currency
exchange rate and market interest rate (